
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting
Tuesday, September 28, 2021

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at 775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order.
 

1:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.2 and 2.3 on
the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 1:00 p.m. on September 28, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

2. 1. Wellness Program   

 

2. 2. Presentation of Parks, Recreation, and Open Space Master Plan Update   

 

2. 3. Civic Park Discussion   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

3. Executive Session   

 

3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,   

http://www.mylubbock.us


3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

3. 1. 1. Discuss Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code   

 

3. 1. 2. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities
Development Corporation Board of Directors, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of
Directors, LECD Board of Directors, Planning and Zoning Commission, Urban
Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board of Appeals.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

4. Ceremonial Items   

 

4. 1. Invocation   

 

4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

4. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in support of the 5-5-5 Move Over and Slow
Down Rally at the South Plains Mall on October 9, 2021

  

 

4. 3. 2. Staff Recognition - Lubbock Fire Rescue - AHA Mission: Lifeline EMS Gold Plus
Award

  

 

4. 4. Board Recognitions:

Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors
George McMahan
John T. Hamilton



 

Call to Order
 

5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 28, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

  

 

6. Minutes   

 

6. 1. August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
August 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning
Commission
September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget

 

7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0129, Amendment 43, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Lake Alan Henry Fund, Health Benefits Fund, the Storm Water Operating and
Capital Funds to establish Capital Improvement Project 8667 Flood Protection Study, and the
Grant Fund; to accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Administration for the Airport Rescue Grant; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0130,  Amendment 44, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of
State Health Services.

 

7. 3. Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 1, amending the Adopted FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting
the Pay Plans; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

7. 4. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an amendment
to the Grant Management Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Market Lubbock,
Inc., dated January 25, 1996.

 

7. 5. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City
Manager to purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security Privacy
Insurance coverage from a carrier as yet to be determined, for which the premium amount
shall not exceed $114,393.



 

7. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0131,
abandoning and closing an Underground Water Line Easement on Lot 45-C, Northridge
Addition, located at 3106 Canyon Road, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

7. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0132,
abandoning and closing a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Section 1, Block AK,
Viridian Addition, Lubbock County, Texas.

 

7. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with Daniel B. Stephens and
Associates, Inc., a Geo-Logic Company, for installation of a groundwater monitoring well in
the right-of-way of Vanda Avenue and 44th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

 

7. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with the Air Force Civil Engineering
Center, for installation and maintenance of two groundwater monitoring wells, for collecting
water samples near the former Reese Air Force Base.

 

7. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections
30 and 34, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue
Roadway Expansion Project.

 

7. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15838, with Plummer Associates, Inc., for design services associated with the Reese Water
Line Improvements Capital Improvements Project.

 

7. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change
Order No. 2 to Contract 15325 with Red River Construction, Co., for the construction of the
Southeast Water Reclamation Plant, Plant 3 Improvements Project.

 

7. 13. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Public Works Contract 16027, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for rebuilding sections
of Frankford Avenue and Alcove Avenue.

 

7. 14. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of
the Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to the Texas Health and Human Services
Commission (HHSC) Contract HHS000780500002 and related documents, under the
Substance Use Disorder Community Health Worker program, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and through HHSC.

 

7. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the
Mayor in executing Contract HHS001081400001 and all related documents, under the
Substance Use Disorder Prevention Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the State of Texas, acting by and through the Texas Health and Human Services Commission.

 

7. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to



7. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 15629 and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, with
Methodist Children's Hospital d/b/a Covenant Children's Hospital of Lubbock, to provide
Network of Substance Use Disorder Treatment Services.

 

7. 17. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 364432, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance with
Purchasing Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract 00154, for the purchase of
cubicles for the Health Department.

 

7. 18. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31061849, in accordance with BuyBoard Contract 617-20, with Farber
Specialty Vehicles, for the purchase of a 2021 Mobile Medical Health Vehicle, for the Health
Department.

 

7. 19. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Public Works Contract 16023, with Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC, for
the renovations of the Abernathy Landfill Gate House, located at 17304 North FM 2528,
Abernathy, Texas.

 

7. 20. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 16135, with Parkhill, for remaining construction
administration professional services, for the Municipal Parking Garage project.

 

7. 21. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 10024401, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance
with Purchasing Association of Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract P10045, Omnia
Contract BNR105, and Sourcewell Contract 121919-HMN, for replacement furniture,
fixtures, and equipment at Citizens Tower and the Utilities Customer Services
Center damaged by the flood event of March 12, 2021.

 

7. 22. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 31061756, with Deere & Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract
032119-JDC, for the purchase of a 2018 John Deere 300G LC FT4 Excavator, for alley
maintenance.

 

7. 23. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001539, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of the Pluribus
Unified Network Management and Automation Software, for the City's voice and data
networks.

 

7. 24. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution approving the renewal of the Local
Administrative Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan
Special Crimes Unit, an interlocal agreement between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the
Lubbock Police Department, and Lubbock County, on behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff
and the Lubbock County Criminal District Attorney, in order to enhance the ability of local
law enforcement agencies to identify, investigate, and deter violent criminal activity
throughout Lubbock County.

 



 

7. 25. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement by
and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the United
States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022-High Intensity
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Task Force Agreement and any associated
documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the
Lubbock area. 

 

7. 26. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement,
by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the
United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022
Program-Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement - Task Force Group (Lubbock) and
any associated documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug
traffic in the Lubbock area.

 

7. 27. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement, and any associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, the United
States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug Enforcement Administration,
for participation in the FY 2022 - SURGE-Asset Forfeiture Sharing Agreement, to combat
trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area.

 

7. 28. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the
Texas Department of Transportation, for the temporary closure of State right-of-way during
the 2021 Mayor's Marathon.

 

8. Regular Agenda   

 

8. 1. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving the Civic Park project to be
located at 1301 Broadway Avenue utilizing the Wind + Water design as created by TBG
Partners and as recommended by the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing
Reinvestment Zone Board. 

 

8. 2. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, to execute a Grant
Agreement and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the CH
Foundation, for receipt of Grant Funds for the construction of a Downtown Civic Park,
located at 1301 Broadway.

 

8. 3. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to
serve as Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

 

8. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 0335-C, a request of Rudy
and Elida Morin, for a Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District
(C-4), at 1813, 1815, and 1819 East Broadway, located north of East Broadway and west of
Teak Avenue, Gearhart Addition, Block 2, Lots 20-23, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 5. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2690-D, a request of AMD



8. 5. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2690-D, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment District
(A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for
a Self-Storage Facility, at 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th
Street, West End North Addition, Tract D1, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 6. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-H, a request of
Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-Family
District (R-3) to IHC, at 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306,
and 310 Avenue Q, located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts
& McWhorter Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C and the north part
of Tract D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet of Lot 6, and
consider an ordinance.

 

8. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-I, a request of Stough
Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center,
at 5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition,
Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way, and consider an ordinance. 

 

8. 8. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-J, a request of Fusion
LED Displays DBA Sign-Express for Behold the Signs, for a Specific Use for a billboard on
property zoned Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), at 901 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located
south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Texas Avenue, Original Town of Lubbock
Addition, Block 7, part of Lots 22-24, and consider an ordinance. 

 

8. 9. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3135-B, a request of Westar
Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a bar at 11824 Indiana Avenue,
Suites #400 and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper
Plaza Addition, Tract C, and consider an ordinance. 

 

8. 10. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3257-M, a request of Hugo
Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and Rocket Partners I, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1)
with a Specific Use for Townhomes, generally located south of 137th Street and west of
Elgin Avenue, on 3.4 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1, and consider an
ordinance. 

 

8. 11. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3308-D, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for Dreambuilt Homes, Inc., Bushland Springs, LLC, Bo Properties, and
HomeMakers Building Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to
Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A), at 7211 through 7224 23rd Street,
located east of Upland Avenue on the north and south sides of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs
Addition, Lots 245-258, and 1.48 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43,
located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 26th Street, and consider an ordinance. 

 



8. 12. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3314-A, a request of SK
Architecture Group, for a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to General Retail
District (C-3), at 14101 Quaker Avenue, located east of Quaker Avenue and north of 142nd
Street, on 3.097 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4, and consider an
ordinance.

 

8. 13. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3443, a request of Dr. Piyush
Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments, for a zone change from Restricted Local
Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east
of Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block
E2, Section 19, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 14. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3444, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District
(T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue
and south of 58th Street on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34, and
consider an ordinance.

 

8. 15. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3445, a request of Hugo Reed
and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, for a zone change from
Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), located east of East Loop 289
and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6, and
consider an ordinance.

 

8. 16. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3446, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2),
at 5601 Ursuline Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, on
134.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 17. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3447, a request of AMD
Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility,
generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres of
unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6, and consider an ordinance.

 

8. 18. Public Hearing - Planning: Discuss and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending
Chapter 40 “Zoning” of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, amending Section
40.01.003 “Definitions” to add a definition for “Office/Warehouse”; amending Division 15
“C-3 General Retail District” to update General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and
amending Section 40.03.2233 “C-4 Permitted Uses” to add “Office/Warehouse” setting forth
regulations for outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.

 

8. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0133, pursuant to
Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code, for annexation of the property located
south of 34th Street and west of Upland Avenue, containing approximately 7.867 acres, out
of Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock
Central Appraisal District Reference Number R126622.

 



8. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings that the Willow
Bend Villas Public Improvement District Petition meets the requirements of Chapter 372 of
the Texas Local Government Code; accepting the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement
District Petition, which covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas, generally bounded by 19th Street to the north, Kelsey Avenue to the east, and railroad
tracks to the south and west; and calling for a public hearing to receive public comment on
the formation of a public improvement district in the area depicted and described. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 3. 3.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of
Appeals, Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board of
Directors, Lubbock Central Appraisal District Board of Directors, LECD Board of Directors, Planning
and Zoning Commission, Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board of
Appeals.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 4. 4.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Recognitions:

Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors
George McMahan
John T. Hamilton

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
August 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning Commission
September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget

Item Summary
August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
August 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Joint Meeting with the Planning & Zoning Commission
September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
8.24.2021 
8.26.2021 S UDC 
9.7.2021 S Budget 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 24, 2021
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 24th of August, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:05 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Citizen Comments 1; 2.1; Citizen Comments 1(cont.); 2.2-2.4; Executive Session; 4.1-4.4;
Citizen Comments 5; 6.1; 7.1; 7.3-7.18; 7.20-7.31; 7.33; 7.2-7.2.2; 7.19; 7.32; 7.34; 8.1-8.15;
8.17-8.19; 8.16; 8.20-8.26.
Item No.'s 7.34 & 8.26 were amended.
Item No. 8.16 failed.

               
1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Items 2.1 and 2.4 on
the Work Session Agenda, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no
later than 1:00 p.m.  If a citizen is attending the meeting by video or teleconference, they
may submit a citizen comment by email at citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than
11:00 a.m., on August 24, 2021. Submitted comments must include name and address. Each
comment will be read aloud for a period of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to
City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments
and express a position on agenda items. Any comment received that is in the nature of
asking a question will be referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a
response.

Citizens who appeared to speak in person, and comments submitted via email, regarding
item 2.1 (American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Local Funds) are noted under that item.

There were no comments submitted via email for item 2.4.

Sign ups: 



Aric Lampert appeared before City Council to speak in favor of item 2.4 (presentation and
discussion of the proposed Downtown Civic Park).

 
2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
2. 1. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Local Funds - Listening Session for the City Council to hear

and receive citizen comment and input from the public

Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave a presentation on the American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) and answered questions from City Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: City of
Lubbock allocations; ARPA eligible expenditures; commitment and expenditure deadlines; and
tentative funding categories, including public safety and preparedness, targeted critical
infrastructure, neighborhood recovery and revitalization, community support services, job
training and economic development, and arts, non-profits, and small businesses. 

Sign ups: 

Sarah McLarty, Jo Conatser, Adam Hernandez, Lal Williams, David Cho, Joy Harris,
Lindsey Maestri, Tom Laney, and Dina Jeffries appeared before City Council to speak on
this item. 

Comments received via email: 

Ali Duffy and Debbie Clark addressed City Council, via email, to speak on this item. Their
emails were read aloud by Courtney Paz, deputy city secretary. 

 
2. 2. Presentation and discussion of the Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program,

and discuss all funds of the City, including but not limited to General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Internal Services, Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Component Units, Related Entities,
Debt and Debt Obligations, Capital Improvement Program, and related and associated items; and
take action to direct the City Manager to make changes to said Budget.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council on
the proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program. Discussion included, but was
not limited to: the proposed property tax rate; sales tax; proposed rate changes relating to water,
wastewater, and solid waste; staffing; street maintenance; capital projects; vehicle and
equipment replacement; funding sources and expenses; and employee compensation
adjustments. Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council on City of Lubbock sales tax collections and historical sales tax trends. 

Floyd Mitchell, chief of police, gave comments on the proposed Lubbock Police Department
compensation adjustments and answered questions from City Council.

 
 
2. 3. Downtown Redevelopment Update

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 2 of 23



2. 3. Downtown Redevelopment Update

Brianna Gerardi, business development director, gave a presentation and update on downtown
redevelopment and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: one-way
to two-way street conversions, the Broadway tunnel public art project, Downtown Parking
Master Plan updates, historic district formation efforts, Market Lubbock Downtown Grant
Program updates, current development projects, and event updates.

Jorge Quirino, manager of downtown & special projects with LEDA and Market Lubbock, gave
comments on the Downtown Grant Program and answered questions from City Council.

 
2. 4. Presentation and Discussion of the Proposed Downtown Civic Park

Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation on the proposed
Downtown Civic Park and answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included:
project history, the Downtown Civic Park Advisory Committee, public input session results and
takeaways, cost estimates, and next steps. Elaine Kearney, with TBG Partners; and Samantha
Schwartz, with Overland Partners, gave a presentation on the phased implementation approach,
cost estimates, and potential design concepts for the proposed Downtown Civic Park and
answered questions from City Council. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Robert Taylor, chair of the Central Business District Tax
Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board of Directors, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

There was consensus among City Council to schedule a future work session to further discuss
the proposed Downtown Civic Park.

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recessed into Executive Session.
 
3. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 3:59 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 5:06 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:16 p.m.

 
3. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
3. 1. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
3. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
3. 2. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 3 of 23



 
3. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the
Building Board of Appeals, Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development
Corporation Board of Directors, LECD Board of Directors, Planning and Zoning Commission,
Urban Design/Historic Preservation Commission, and the Water Board of Appeals.

  

 
3. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.076 to

discuss or deliberate the deployment, or specific occasions for implementation, of security
personnel or devices; or a security audit.

 
3. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.086, to

discuss and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light,
reasonably related to the following categories:

a. generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those 
....costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating 
....characteristics and outage scheduling; 

b. bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric 
....Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies; 

• Resolution No. 2021-R0289 on matter regarding purchased power bidding and pricing.

c. effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and
....contracts;

d. risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;

e. plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other
....than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
....public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider);

f. customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system
....load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.

 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvened in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 5:06 p.m.
 
4. Ceremonial Items
 
4. 1. Invocation

Honorably Retired Minister of the Word and Sacrament, Presbyterian Church, Davis B. Price,
Lubbock Interfaith Association, led the invocation.

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 4 of 23



 
4. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem Steve
Massengale.

 
4. 3. Proclamations and Presentations
 
4. 4. Board Recognitions: Presented by Council Member Latrelle Joy

Appointments Advisory Board
Ryan Henry (unable to attend)
 
Building Board of Appeals
Russell Thoma, Jr.
 
Citizens Traffic Commission
Dr. Patricia Francis-Johnson
Carlos Mireles
 
Comprehensive Plan Oversight Committee
Dr. Nathanial Wright
 
Planning & Zoning Commission
Aviraj Patel

  

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 5:16 p.m.
 
5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on August 24, 2021.  If a citizen is attending the meeting
by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on August 24, 2021.  Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a period
of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules.  Citizen Comments is
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Public Hearings – Any person wishing to speak at a posted public hearing (Items 8.1 - 8.20)
may do so via Zoom by using the “Raised Hand” feature. When utilizing Zoom through a
telephone, press *9 to "raise your hand" and you will be placed in the queue.

No one appeared to speak in person; and no comments were submitted via email.
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 5 of 23



6. Minutes
 
6. 1. June 23, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic Development Alliance

July 27, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
August 2, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
August 3, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session
August 4, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Bond Election & Budget Work Session

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Latrelle

Joy to approve the June 23, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance minutes; the July 27, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes;
the August 2, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session minutes; the
August 3, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session minutes; and the
August 4, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - Bond Election & Budget Work Session
minutes. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve items 7.1; 7.3-7.18; 7.20-7.31; and 7.33. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.

2021-O0096, Amendment 39, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Lubbock Power & Light Operating Fund by increasing expenses in the Purchased
Power Cost Center 7315; increasing fund level expenses for the Franchise Fee Equivalent (FFE)
payment and Payment in Lieu of Property Tax (PILOT); and increasing revenues for the Power
Cost Recovery Factor (PCRF) and FFE.

  

 
7. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No.

2021-O0097, Amendment 40, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Grant Fund to accept and appropriate additional funding from the Texas
Department of State Health Services, Texas Health and Human Services Commission, and
Texas A&M University and authorize twelve full-time equivalent (FTE) positions.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis; and Katherine Wells, director of public
health, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0097. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 6 of 23



 
7. 2. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0320 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract HHS001083000001, an Interlocal Cooperation Contract, and all related
documents, with the Texas Department of State Health Services, for activities to establish,
expand, train, and sustain the public health workforce in support of Coronavirus 2019
(COVID-19) response, and in alignment with the Public Health Crisis Response Cooperative
Agreement for Emergency Response (Funding Opportunity Number CDC-RFA-TP18-1802)
from the Centers of Disease Control and Prevention.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0320. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 2. 2. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0321 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Texas Youth Action Network Community Partner Agreement and Statement of Work,
by and between the City of Lubbock and the Public Policy Research Institute at Texas A&M
University, to provide resources and assistance to community organizations that wish to develop
Youth Adult Partnerships, to incorporate the perspectives of young people between the ages of
10 and 24 into their work.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0321. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0098,

Amendment 41, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund, General Capital Fund, Information Technology Fund, Internal Service Capital
Fund, Fleet Fund, and Fleet Capital Fund to adjust transfers between Operating and Capital
Funds related to prior Budget Amendments and appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project 92676 General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 2020-21.

  

 
7. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0105,

Amendment 42, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Capital to amend Capital Improvement Project 8633 Comprehensive Plan
Implementation; respecting the General Fund Operating to appropriate additional revenue for
payment in lieu of Taxes (PILOT), from the LP&L Fund and for franchise fees from the LP&L
Fund, and to appropriate additional transfer to General Fund Capital and transfer to Gateway
Fund; and respecting the Gateway Fund to appropriate additional transfer revenue from the
General Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 7 of 23



7. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0106, the Fourteenth Supplemental
Ordinance updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement District Service and Assessment
Plan and Assessment Roll.

  

 
7. 6. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2021-R0290 authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract

15959, with LBK Defense, LLC, for security services.
  

 
7. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0291 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15991, with Randy Lewis, to farm approximately 4.82 acres out of Section 1259, J. H.
Gibson Survey, Garza County, Texas.

  

 
7. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0292 authorizing the Mayor to accept, on

behalf of the City of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Section 30
and 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway
Project.

  

 
7. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2021-R0293 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Family Residential Contract, by and between the City of Lubbock and WW Porter Investments,
for the sale of real property at 1502 Vanham Avenue, Wilson, Texas.

  

 
7. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0294 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 15015, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for providing
engineering services for the construction of the Low Pressure Supply Line Rehabilitation Project.

  

 
7. 11. Resolutions - Engineering: Resolution No.'s 2021-R0295 and 2021-R0296 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Service Contract 15916, with H.D. Weaver Ditching Service, Inc., and Service
Contract 16071, with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for pipeline construction services.

  

 
7. 12. Resolutions - Engineering: Resolution No.'s 2021-R0297 and 2021-R0298 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Service Contract 15917 with H.D. Weaver Ditching Service, Inc., and Service
Contract 16070 with Utility Contractors of America, Inc., for construction services associated
with water and sanitary sewer tap installations.

  

 
7. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0299 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Contract 14966, with Garver, LLC, for North Water Treatment Plant
ground storage construction phase services.

  

 
7. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0300 authorizing the Director of Purchasing

for the City of Lubbock, to execute a Cost Sharing and Reimbursement Agreement between the
City of Lubbock and Lubbock County, for cost sharing of orthorectified digital imagery, Light
Detection and Ranging (LiDAR), and mapping.

  

 
7. 15. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0301 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement 14327, with NewGen Strategies and
Solutions, LLC, for continued consulting services related to updating existing water and
wastewater rate models and cost of services.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 8 of 23



 
7. 16. Resolution - Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2021-R0302 authorizing the Mayor to execute the

Second Amendment to the Meredith Supply Agreement, with the Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority, for the continued purchase of raw water.

  

 
7. 17. Resolution - Public Works Streets: Resolution No. 2021-R0303 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15949, with Blackstone Concrete Ventures, LLC, for the partial rebuild of Mac
Davis Lane. 

  

 
7. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0304 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Lubbock Pico
Properties, LLC, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Market Lubbock Development Corporation.

  

 
7. 19. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0322 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Professional Services Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas
Tech University Health Sciences Center (TTUHSC), to provide the City of Lubbock Health
Department (COLHD) with employed physicians who work in the TTUHSC Dermatology
Clinic, to provide early and periodic screening, diagnosis, and treatment of sexually transmitted
diseases for the COLHD.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0322. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 20. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0305 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Community Development Funding Agreement 16059, and all related documents,
between the City of Lubbock Community Development Department and the Salvation Army, for
the Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act CARES
(ESG - CV), administered by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD).

  

 
7. 21. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0306 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Community Development Funding Agreement 16033, and all related documents,
between the City of Lubbock Community Development Department and Paul’s Project, for the
Emergency Solutions Grant Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act CARES (ESG -
CV), administered by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD).

  

 
7. 22. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0307 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to Community Development Funding Contract 15711, and all related
documents, with the Lubbock Housing Finance Corporation, to provide Mortgage Assistance to
qualified low-to-moderate income persons and families who have been affected by COVID-19,
through the Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus Relief and Economic Security
Act CARES (CDBG-CV), administered by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban
Development (HUD).

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 9 of 23



Development (HUD).
 
7. 23. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0308 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2, and all related documents, to the Lease Agreement by and between the City
of Lubbock and Host Marriott Services International, Inc., in connection with certain
concessions offered at the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
7. 24. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0309 authorizing the Mayor to execute Service

Agreement 15900, and all related documents, with JSM Airport Services, LLC, for the
operations and maintenance of the baggage handling system at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

  

 
7. 25. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2021-R0310 authorizing the City Manager to execute a

grant agreement between the City of Lubbock and the United States of America, by and through
the Federal Aviation Administration, to fund certain expenses and activities at the Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport relating to operations, personnel, cleaning, sanitization,
janitorial services, combating the spread of pathogens, and debt service payments, and related
documents pursuant to the American Rescue Plan Act.

  

 
7. 26. Resolutions - Human Resources: Resolution No.'s 2021-R0311, 2021-R0312, and 2021-R0313

authorizing the Mayor to execute contracts, by and between the City of Lubbock and Voya
Financial, MissionSquare Retirement Corporation (rebranded ICMA-RC), and AIG Retirement
Services, to provide administrative recordkeeping, education, communications, and
investment-related services for the City of Lubbock 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plans.

  

 
7. 27. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0314 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15863, with Arnold Oil Company, for motor oil and lubricants for Citibus.
  

 
7. 28. Resolution - Public Transit Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0315 authorizing the Mayor to

execute a Consultant Contract for Transit Services between the City of Lubbock and the
Lubbock Metropolitan Planning Organization (LMPO), to provide transit services related to
LMPO's Unified Planning Work Program for FY 2021-22.

  

 
7. 29. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2021-R0316 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Professional Services Contract 16003 with Turf Raider Land and Landscape,
for grounds, trees, fountain, turf and maintenance at the May 11, 1970 Tornado Memorial
in Lubbock National Bank Park.

  

 
7. 30. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0317 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31060986, with GT Distributors, Inc., for the purchase of emergency lighting
and equipment to be installed on ten police patrol vehicles.

  

 
7. 31. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0318 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001532, with Mythics, Inc., for the renewal of Oracle License
Maintenance & Support for the JD Edwards Enterprise One, and One View Reporting
applications, for the City's financial management system.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 10 of 23



 
7. 32. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0323 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 14220, with Benchmark Business Solutions, to add and
replace Workcentre printers and consumable supplies for the Lubbock Police Department Patrol
Division Stations and other City facilities.

James Brown, director of information technology, gave comments and answered questions from
City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0323. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (RECUSE) 

 
7. 33. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No. 2021-R0319 delegating authority to the

Director of Electric Utilities, to enter into and execute Purchase and Sale agreements, for the
sale of renewable energy credits (“RECs”) when the Director of Electric Utilities determines
that doing so is in the best interest of LP&L and its ratepayers.

  

 
7. 34. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2021-R0324 authorizing the Mayor of the City of

Lubbock to execute a Grant Agreement, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the Helen Jones Foundation, Inc., for the receipt of Grant Funds for the
construction of a Downtown Civic Park.

This item was amended.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Chad Weaver, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

Main Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan
A. Chadis, to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0324, as presented at the dais.

Motion to Amend by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member
Juan A. Chadis, to amend the main motion as follows:
 

removal of all references to the address "1301 Broadway" within the Grant Agreement

Vote on Motion to Amend
Vote: 7-0 motion carried

Vote on Main Motion with Amendment
Vote: 7-0 Motion carried

  

 
8. Regular Agenda
 
8. 1. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0107 approving the proposed 2021   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 11 of 23



8. 1. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0107 approving the proposed 2021
Assessment Rate for the North Overton Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the North Overton PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0107. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 2. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0108 approving the proposed 2021

Assessment Rate for the North Point Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the North Point PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to
be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0108. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 3. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0109 approving the proposed 2021   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 12 of 23



8. 3. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0109 approving the proposed 2021
Assessment Rate for the Quincy Park Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Quincy Park PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the
assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to
be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0109. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 4. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0110 approving the proposed 2021

Assessment Rate for the Valencia Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing classifications
for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in
the Valencia PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the
district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0110. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 5. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0111 approving the proposed 2021   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 13 of 23



8. 5. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0111 approving the proposed 2021
Assessment Rate for the Bell Farms Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing classifications
for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements of property in
the Bell Farms PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll;
levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements to be provided in the
district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in the district and
against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0111. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 6. Public Hearing - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0112 approving the proposed 2021

Assessment Rate for the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District (PID), reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Upland Crossing PID; approving, adopting, and filing with the City Secretary
the assessment roll; levying 2021 assessments for the cost of certain services and improvements
to be provided in the district during FY 2021-22; fixing charges and liens against the property in
the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the collection of the assessment.

Cheryl Brock, director of financial planning & analysis, gave a presentation and answered
questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0112. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0113, for Zone Case 2538-U, a request of   

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 14 of 23



8. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0113, for Zone Case 2538-U, a request of
AMD Engineering, LLC for Yates II BY, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District
(R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2), at 6902 19th Street, located east of Rochester Avenue and
north of 19th Street, on 4.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10, and consider an
ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0113. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 8. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0114, for Zone Case 2538-V, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, 806 Land Development Group, LLC, A&J
Flatland Properties, Lubbock Lifetime Homes, LLC, Westex J-Mar, LLC, Noe Torres, Inc., and
Parker Signature Homes,LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Reduced
Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), generally located south of 4th Street and east of Upland
Avenue, on 145.14 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 10, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0114. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 9. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0115, for Zone Case 2904-G, a request of

Broadus Services, LLC (T-Mobile Agent) for Bethel Property Management, LLC, for a Specific
Use for a temporary telecommunications tower on property zoned Interstate Highway
Commercial District (IHC), at 212 University Avenue, located west of University Avenue and
southeast of Santa Fe Drive, on 0.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 20, and
consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 15 of 23



Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0115. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 10. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0116, for Zone Case 2926-E, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for Salyer Homes, LS Kingdom Homes, LLC, Lakeridge  Estates of
Lubbock LTD, Frankie and Vicki Tipton, Aaron Texas Ventures, LLC, Philip and Dana Reeger,
Hartline Companies, LLC, Wooded Forest, LLC, and Platinum Homes of Lubbock, LLC, for a
zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Reduced Setback Single-Family
District (R-1A) with Specific Use for Garden Homes, at: 10501, 10502, 10503, 10504, 10506,
and 10508 Troy Avenue and 10501 – 10508 Toledo Avenue located south of 105th Street and
east of Vicksburg Avenue, Lakeridge Estates of Lubbock Addition, Lots 315 – 324 and Lots 327
– 330, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0116. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 11. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0117, for Zone Case 2951-A, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Carl Mortensen, for a zone change from High-Density
Apartment District (A-2) to Single-Family District (R-1), at 10508 Frankford Avenue, located
west of Frankford Avenue and north of 110th Street, on 10.0 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 21, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 16 of 23



No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0117. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 12. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0118, for Zone Case 3023-A, a request of

SGA Design Group for Wal-mart Real Estate Business Trust, to amend the site plan and
conditions of Ordinance No. 2004-O0120, at 1911 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located north of 7th
Street and west of Avenue R, Overton Park Addition, Tract 14-A-1, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0118. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 13. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0119, for Zone Case 3175-F, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, for a zone change from High-Density
Apartment District (A-2) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) and Restricted
Local Retail District (C-2A), at 5914 Erskine Street, located north of Erskine Street and west of
North Frankford Avenue, on 7.23 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 7,
and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0119. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 17 of 23



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 14. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0120, for Zone Case 3257-L, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Garden Office (GO), at 14201 Indiana Avenue,
located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 140th Street, on 6.1 acres of unplatted land out of
Block AK, Section 1, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0120. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 15. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0121, for Zone Case 3308-C, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Bushland Springs, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1), Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use, General Retail District
(C-3), and Industrial Park District (IDP) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 7201 19th
Street, located east of Upland Avenue and south of 19th Street, on 14.5 acres of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 43, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0121. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 16. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3353-A, a request of Bhavesh

Patel, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to General Retail District (C-3), at 10320
Milwaukee Avenue, located north of 104th Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue, on 1.55 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22, and consider an ordinance.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 18 of 23



This item failed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Chad Weaver, city attorney; and Rahil Patel, representing the proponent, gave
comments and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:34 p.m.

Rahil Patel, representing the proponent, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:35 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve this item. 
  Vote: 0 - 7 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope 
  Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale 
  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
  Council Member Randy Christian 
  Council Member Jeff Griffith 
  Council Member Latrelle Joy 
  Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris 

 
8. 17. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0122, for Zone Case 3439, a request of

Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Cynthia E. Jones, for a zone change from Transition District
(T) to Family Apartment District (A-1) and Local Retail District (C-2), generally located south
of 104th Street and west of Milwaukee Avenue, on 20.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 22, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0122. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 19 of 23



8. 18. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0123, for Zone Case 3440, a request of
Western Bank for TCS Parents Group, LTD, for a zone change from Garden Office District
(GO) to Local Retail District (C-2), at 14005 Quaker Avenue, located south of 140th Street and
east of Quaker Avenue, on 1.829 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4, and
consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0123.  
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 19. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0124, for Zone Case 3441, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for DSE Development, Ltd., for a zone change from Transition District
(T) and Industrial Park District (IDP) to Two-Family District (R-2), Restricted Local Retail
District (C-2A), and General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a self-storage facility,
at 4402 Upland Avenue, located east of Upland Avenue and north of 50th Street, on 33.38 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:31 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:32 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Randy Christian, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0124. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 20. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0125, for Zone Case 3442, a request of

Hodges Architecture for Covenant Health System, for a zone change from Transition District (T)
and Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway Commercial District
(IHC) with a Planned Development District (PD), generally located north of 82nd Street and east
of Marsha Sharp Freeway, on 47.6 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 31, and
consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 20 of 23



Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale opened the public hearing at 6:47 p.m.

Charles Hodges, with Hodges Architecture, appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition. 

Mayor Pro Tem Massengale closed the public hearing at 6:54 p.m.
 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A. Chadis to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0125. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope (RECUSE) 

 
8. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0099, for a request for annexation,

from Starlight Development, LLC, to annex an area of approximately 553 acres adjacent to the
southern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 146th Street and west of Frankford Avenue.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0099. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 22. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0100, for a request for annexation

from Loop 88, LLC, The Sherman Nelson Family, LP, Ilene Hobgood, Kim Nelson, and the
Edward and Carol Daniel Family Trust, to annex an area of approximately 717.76 acres adjacent
to the western city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 34th Street and west of Inler Avenue.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0100. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 23. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0101, for a request for annexation

from Violet McInnes, Sandra Carlton, Wyatt Crawford, Melissa Crawford, Landshark
Commercial Properties, LLC, Lubbock Cooper Independent School District, Red Canyon, LLC,
and Grow Lubbock, LLC, to annex an area of approximately 431.13 acres, adjacent to the
southern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 146th Street and west of Avenue P.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 21 of 23



Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0101. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 24. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0102, amending Chapter 40

"Zoning" of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock, Texas, by amending Section
40.01.003 Definitions, to add definitions for "Event Center", "Hardware Store", and "Home
Improvement Center"; amending Section 40.03.1873 Permitted Uses, to remove "Game Room"
and "Lumber Yard" in District "CB-2"; and amending Section 40.03.3103 Permitted Uses, to add
"Event Center" as a Specific Use in Districts "C-2", "C-3", and "C-4".

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0102. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 25. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2021-R0325 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Dedicatory Certificate, associated Easements, and all related documents, in connection with
property described as Lots 305-A and 305-B, Midway Park Addition, Lubbock County, Texas,
located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and east of 29th Drive.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0325. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
8. 26. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0326 making findings that the

Northwest Passage Public Improvement District Petition meets the requirements of Chapter 372
of the Texas Local Government Code; accepting the Northwest Passage Public Improvement
District Petition, which covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County,
Texas, generally bounded by Frankford Avenue on the west, Quaker Avenue on the east, Kent
Avenue and Highway 84 on the north, and Marshall Avenue on the south; and calling for a
public hearing to receive public comment on the formation of a public improvement district in
the area depicted and described. 

This item was amended.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 22 of 23



Brianna Gerardi, director of business development, gave a presentation and answered questions
from City Council. Mont McClendon, City of Lubbock's downtown master developer/McDougal
Properties, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Jeff Griffith to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0326 with the following amendment:
  

replacement of the reference to "Upland Crossing" with "Northwest Passage" in
paragraph four, page two, of Exhibit 1.

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

7:31 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The August 24, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the
28th day of September, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
August 24, 2021 Page 23 of 23



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 26, 2021
5:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 26th of August, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 5:30 p.m.

  
5:40 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas and via video
conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad
Weaver 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis 
 

Note: This was a joint meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission. Members of the Commission, in
attendance, were: Chair Zach Sawyer, James Bell, Renee Cage, Aviraj Patel, and Susan Tomlinson (via video
conference).
  
Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 

Citizen Comments 1; 2.

1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear in
person before the meeting of the City Council, regarding Item 2. on the Work Session Agenda,
shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 5:30 p.m.  If a citizen is
attending the meeting by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 3:00 p.m. on August 26, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address. Each comment will be read aloud for a period of time
not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

There were no comments received via email.

Sign ups: 

Adam Hernandez, Joshua Shankles, Larry Moore, Dora Cortez, Carolyn Moegle, Mikel Ward,
Gretchen Scott, Brenda Hawkins, and Terry Holeman appeared before City Council to speak on
Item 2 (Module 4 of the Unified Development Code).



 
2. Hold a Joint City Council meeting with the Planning and Zoning Commission, to discuss and hear a

presentation from staff and Kendig Keast Collaborative on the following: Module 4 of the Unified
Development Code, which includes administrative and legislative bodies, development review
procedures, legislative review procedures, nonconformities, and enforcement procedures.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Bryan Isham, director of planning, introduced the item, gave
comments, and answered questions from City Council.

Brian Mabry, with Kendig Keast Collaborative, gave a presentation on Module 4 of the Unified
Development Code and answered questions from City Council and the Planning and Zoning
Commission.

Council Member Latrelle Joy, chair of the UDC sub-committee; Council Members Jeff Griffith and
Randy Christian, members of the UDC sub-committee; and Jesica McEachern, assistant city manager,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council and the Planning and Zoning Commission
on Module 4 of the Unified Development Code.

 

6:58 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The August 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 28th
day of September, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
August 26, 2021 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 7, 2021
3:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 7th of September, 2021, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 3:30 p.m.

  
3:33 P.M. 
            

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas 

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session; 2.1-2.4; Citizen Comments 2.5; 2.6-2.10.

               
1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 3:34 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 5:24 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074,

to discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following:

 
1. 1. 1. City Attorney
 
1. 1. 2. City Manager
 
1. 1. 3. City Secretary
 
 
 
5:00 p.m. - City Council reconvened in Regular Session

City Council reconvened at 5:24 p.m.
 
2. Regular Agenda



 
2. 1. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on the Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating

Budget and Capital Program.

Public Hearing Only.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:41 p.m.

Adam Hernandez, Joshua Shankles, and Mikel Ward appeared to speak on this item. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:58 p.m.

  

 
2. 2. Public Hearing - Finance: Hold a public hearing on a proposal to increase total tax revenues

from properties on the tax roll in the preceding tax year by 5.13% (percentage by which the
proposed tax rate exceeds the No-New-Revenue tax rate calculated under Chapter 26, Tax
Code).

Public Hearing Only.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement:

"City Council will now hold a public hearing on a proposal to increase the total tax revenues
from properties on the tax roll in the preceding year by 5.13 percent."

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:59 p.m.

Mikel Ward appeared to speak on this item. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:03 p.m.

  

 
2. 3. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0126, approving and adopting a

budget for Fiscal Year 2021-22; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary
transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of
spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized
obligations or encumbered; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service
classifications and positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2021-22 Operating
Budget and Capital Program of the City of Lubbock; approving all permit, license, fees, and
charges for service recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and positions;
approving personnel; amending Section 22.03.084 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock by revising the water base rate fees as contained therein; amending Section
22.03.085 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by establishing an industrial
volume rate class as contained therein; amending Section 22.03.090(a) of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the water service (water tap) connection fees
as contained therein; amending Section 22.04.041(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of

  

Special City Council Meeting 
September 7, 2021 Page 2 of 6



as contained therein; amending Section 22.04.041(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock by revising the wastewater base rate fees as contained therein; amending Section
22.04.045(a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the sewer service
connection fees as contained therein; amending Section 22.04.174 of the Code of Ordinances
of the City of Lubbock by revising language on septic tank emptying as contained therein;
amending Section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising
the solid waste landfill service fees as contained therein; amending Section 22.06.185(a) of the
Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by revising the solid waste collections service fees
as contained therein; accepting the budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance,
Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock, Inc., and Vintage Township Public Facilities
Corporation;  finding that proper notice of meeting provided by law and ratifying such;
providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.
Mayor Pope gave direction for staff to research and determine if the City of Lubbock qualifies
for participation in the Tree City USA Program. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Randy

Christian to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0126. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0127, setting the tax rate and

levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation with the City of Lubbock for 2021;
apportioning said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised;
fixing the times in which said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for
nonpayment of such taxes within the time provided.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope, read into the record, the following statement:

"The City Council will vote on the tax rate, on the second and final reading, at the September
14, 2021, City Council Meeting, in City Council Chambers, 1314 Avenue K, beginning at
5:00 p.m."

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0127, increasing the property tax rate by the adoption of
the tax rate of 0.523230, which is effectively a 5.13 percent increase in the tax rate. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 5. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on
the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting,
no later than 5:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021.  Citizen Comments is an opportunity for
citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any comment
received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an appropriate
member of the City staff for a response.

Special City Council Meeting 
September 7, 2021 Page 3 of 6



No one appeared to speak in person. 

Citizen comment submitted in writing: 

Mary Harrington addressed City Council, in writing, to express opposition of items
2.1-2.4 (public hearings and adoption of Proposed FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and
Capital Program and tax rate). Ms. Harrington's comment was read aloud by Courtney
Paz, deputy city secretary. 

 
2. 6. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0114, for Zone Case 2538-V, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for 806 Land Group, LLC, 806 Land Development
Group, LLC, A&J Flatland Properties, Lubbock Lifetime Homes, LLC, Westex J-Mar, LLC,
Noe Torres, Inc., and Parker Signature Homes, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family
District (R-1) to Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A), generally located south of
4th Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 145.14 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS,
Section 10, Lubbock, Texas.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0114. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 7. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0116, for Zone Case 2926-E, a

request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Salyer Homes, LS Kingdom Homes, LLC,
Lakeridge Estates of Lubbock, LTD, Frankie and Vicki Tipton, Aaron Texas Ventures, LLC,
Philip and Dana Reeger, Hartline Companies, LLC, Wooded Forest, LLC, and Platinum
Homes of Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to
Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) with Specific Use for Garden Homes, at
10501, 10502, 10503, 10504, 10506, and 10508 Troy Avenue, and 10501 – 10508 Toledo
Avenue located south of 105th Street and east of Vicksburg Avenue, Lakeridge Estates of
Lubbock Addition, Lots 315 – 324 and Lots 327 – 330.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0116. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0128, abandoning and   

Special City Council Meeting 
September 7, 2021 Page 4 of 6



2. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0128, abandoning and
closing portions of 7th, 8th, 9th, and 10th Streets, and portions of Avenue B, and portions of
the alleys located in Blocks 63, 79, and 95, Original Town of Lubbock to the City of Lubbock,
Lubbock County, Texas.

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Josh Kristinek, assistant city engineer; and John Zwiacher,
member of the Panhandle South Plains Fair Board of Directors, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Latrelle Joy to

approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0128. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 9. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0327 ratifying the actions of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 1 to Department of State Health Services (DSHS)
Contract No. HHS000812700012 and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock
and the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS, under the COVID-19 Grant Program, to
provide funding for COVID-19 activities.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Juan

A. Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0327. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
2. 10. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0328 ratifying the actions of the

Mayor in executing Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract
HHS001057600030 and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
Department of State Health Services, to provide funding under the COVID-19 Health
Disparities Grant.

Katherine Wells, director of public health, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Juan

A. Chadis to approve Resolution No. 2021-R0328. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

6:47 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.



 
The September 7, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 28th
day of September, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0129, Amendment 43, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lake Alan Henry Fund, Health Benefits Fund, the Storm Water Operating and Capital Funds to establish
Capital Improvement Project 8667 Flood Protection Study, and the Grant Fund; to accept and
appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation Administration for the
Airport Rescue Grant; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend the Lake Alan Henry Fund FY 2020-21 Operating Budget by appropriating an additional
$83,000, due to increased police presence need at the Lake and increase in other operating expenses
associated with increased activity at the Lake.

1.

Amend the Health Benefits Fund FY 2020-21 Operating Budget by appropriating an additional
$15,000 for Health Benefits Administration and $4,200,000 for Medical Benefits, due to increase in
health claim costs.  Funding will come from Health Benefits fund balance.

2.

Amend the Storm Water Fund FY 2020-21 Operating Budget by increasing appropriation in
Transfer to Capital Projects by $200,000.  Funding will be from Storm Water fund balance.

3.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 8667, Flood Protection Study, and appropriate funding in
the amount of $762,500.  Funding is $200,000 from the Storm Water Operating Fund and $562,500
from the Texas Water Development Board.

4.

Accept and appropriate $6,512,424 from the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration for the Airport Rescue Grant.

5.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Budget Amendment 43 
Budget Amendment 43 Original 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0130,  Amendment 44, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Accept and appropriate $498,888 from Texas Department of State Health Services for the
COVID-19 CARES Act Round 4.

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Budget Amendment 44 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Amendment Ordinance 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 1,
amending the Adopted FY 2021-22 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Pay Plans; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
Amend Exhibit E - Civil Service and Non-Civil Service Pay Plans of the FY 2021-22 Adopted Budget,
as passed by City Council on September 14, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Budget Amendment 1 
Updated Exhibit E 







Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

101 16,486.08$                         21,330.40                          26,176.80                           

102 17,309.76                           22,397.44                          27,485.12                           

103 18,170.88                           23,516.48                          28,862.08                           

104 19,081.92                           24,693.76                          30,305.60                           

105 20,036.64                           25,929.28                          31,819.84                           

106 21,039.20                           27,225.12                          33,408.96                           

107 22,087.52                           28,583.36                          35,079.20                           

108 23,192.00                           30,014.40                          36,834.72                           

109 24,352.64                           31,516.16                          38,677.60                           

110 25,569.44                           33,090.72                          40,612.00                           

111 26,850.72                           34,746.40                          42,640.00                           

112 28,192.32                           36,483.20                          44,774.08                           

113 29,598.40                           38,305.28                          47,012.16                           

114 31,081.44                           40,306.24                          49,362.56                           

115 32,637.28                           42,234.40                          51,829.44                           

116 34,270.08                           44,345.60                          54,421.12                           

117 35,642.88                           46,126.08                          56,607.20                           

118 37,427.52                           48,434.88                          59,440.16                           

119 39,299.52                           50,856.00                          62,410.40                           

120 41,265.12                           53,399.84                          65,532.48                           

121 43,324.32                           56,066.40                          68,806.40                           

122 45,063.20                           58,316.96                          71,568.64                           

123 47,313.76                           61,228.96                          75,144.16                           

124 49,682.88                           64,292.80                          78,902.72                           

125 52,168.48                           67,508.48                          82,846.40                           

126 54,772.64                           70,882.24                          86,991.84                           

Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Exhibit E ‐ Non‐Civil Service Pay Plan

127 56,964.96                           73,717.28                          90,467.52                           

128 59,810.40                           77,403.04                          94,993.60                           

129 62,801.44                           81,271.84                          99,742.24                           

130 65,944.32                           85,338.24                          104,730.08                         

131 69,241.12                           89,604.32                          109,965.44                         

132 72,704.32                           94,084.64                          115,462.88                         

133 76,338.08                           98,787.52                          121,236.96                         

134 80,154.88                           103,725.44                        127,296.00                         

135 84,163.04                           108,915.04                        133,664.96                         

136 88,366.72                           114,354.24                        140,341.76                         

137 92,788.80                           120,076.32                        147,363.84                         

138 97,429.28                           126,081.28                        154,733.28                         

139 101,558.08                           131,426.88                        161,295.68                         

140 106,639.52                           137,999.68                        169,359.84                         

141 111,970.56                           144,899.04                        177,829.60                         

142 117,567.84                           152,145.76                        186,721.60                         

143 123,448.00                           159,754.40                        196,058.72                         

144 129,621.44                           167,741.60                        205,859.68                         

145 136,102.72                           176,128.16                        216,151.52                         

146 142,908.48                           184,936.96                        226,963.36                         

147 150,053.28                           194,180.48                        238,307.68                         

148 157,551.68                           203,887.84                        250,224.00                         

149 165,432.80                           214,398.08                        262,735.20                         

150 173,702.88                           224,787.68                        275,870.40                         

Pay Plan reflects annual salary amount



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

201 7.704$                          9.968                           12.232                         
 

202 8.088                            10.466                         12.843                         
 

203 8.491                            10.989                         13.487                         
 

204 8.916                            11.539                         14.161                         

205 9.363                            12.116                         14.869                         
 

206 9.832                            12.722                         15.612                         
 

207 10.321                          13.357                         16.392                         
 

208 10.837                          14.025                         17.212                         
 

209 11.380                          14.727                         18.074                         
 

210 11.948                          15.463                         18.977                         
 

211 12.547                          16.236                         19.925                         
 

212 13.174                          17.048                         20.922                         
 

213 13.831                          17.900                         21.968                         
 

214 14.524                          18.796                         23.067                         
 

215 15.251                          19.735                         24.219                         
 

216 16.014                          20.723                         25.431                         
 

217 16.813                          21.757                         26.701                         
 

218 17.654                          22.846                         28.038                         
 

219 18.537                          23.988                         29.439                         
 

220 19.465                          25.188                         30.911                         
 

221 20.436                          26.446                         32.456                         
 

222 21.459                          27.770                         34.080                         
 

223 22.530                          29.157                         35.783                         
 

224 23.658                          30.616                         37.573                         
 

225 24.842                          32.147                         39.451                         
 

226 26.083                          33.753                         41.423                         
 

227 27.387                          35.441                         43.494                         
 

Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan



Pay Grade Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Exhibit E ‐ Part‐Time Pay Plan

228 28.755                          37.213                         45.670                         
 

229 30.193                          39.073                         47.953                         
 

230 31.704                          41.028                         50.351                         
 

231 33.289                          43.079                         52.868                         
 

232 34.954                          45.232                         55.512                         
 

233 36.701                          47.494                         58.287                         
 

234 38.537                          49.869                         61.200                         
 

235 40.463                          52.363                         64.262                         
 

236 42.484                          54.978                         67.473                         
 

237 44.610                          57.729                         70.848                         
 

238 46.841                          60.616                         74.392                         
 

239 49.181                          63.646                         78.110                         
 

240 51.642                          66.829                         82.015                         
 

241 54.223                          70.170                         86.117                         
 

242 56.934                          73.678                         90.422                         
 

243 59.782                          77.363                         94.944                         
 

244 62.771                          81.231                         99.691                         
 

245 65.909                          85.292                         104.674                       
 

246 69.205                          89.558                         109.910                       
 

247 72.665                          94.035                         115.404                       
 

248 76.297                          98.736                         121.174                       
 

249 80.113                          103.673                       127.233                       
 

250 84.118                          108.856                       133.594                       

Pay Plan reflects hourly rate



St
e
p
s

A
n
n
u
al
 

C
ad

e
t

 P
N
C
SP

A
n
n
u
al
 

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
 

P
N
C
E1

 (
A
 &
 B
)

A
n
n
u
al

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
I 

P
N
C
E2

A
n
n
u
al

P
at
ro
l O

ff
ic
e
r 

P
C
S1

A
n
n
u
al
 

D
e
te
ct
iv
e
 /
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
l 

P
C
S2

A
n
n
u
al

Se
rg
e
an

t 

P
C
S3

A
n
n
u
al

Li
e
u
te
n
an

t 

P
C
S4

A
n
n
u
al
   
   
   

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f/

C
ap

ta
in

P
C
S5

A
n
n
u
al

A
ss
t.
 C
h
ie
f 

P
C
S6

A
5
2
,1
2
6
.8
8

$
   
   

6
0
,0
0
1
.7
6

   
   
  

6
2
,9
7
2
.0
0

   
   
  

6
2
,9
7
2
.0
0

   
   
  

8
2
,3
4
5
.1
2

   
   
  

9
0
,2
6
7
.8
4

   
   
  

1
0
0
,0
6
4
.6
4

   
   

1
1
2
,0
0
5
.9
2

   
   
 

1
2
5
,9
9
1
.8
4

   
   
 

B
6
6
,1
2
1
.1
2

   
   
  

8
3
,5
8
0
.6
4

   
   
  

9
2
,7
4
9
.2
8

   
   
  

1
0
2
,8
1
6
.4
8

   
   

1
1
6
,4
8
6
.2
4

   
   
 

1
3
2
,4
8
1
.4
4

   
   
 

C
6
9
,4
2
6
.2
4

   
   
  

9
5
,2
9
9
.3
6

   
   
  

1
0
6
,6
7
2
.8
0

   
   

1
2
1
,1
4
5
.4
4

   
   
 

1
4
3
,9
9
4
.2
4

   
   
 

D
7
3
,5
9
2
.4
8

   
   
  

E 
7
6
,5
3
5
.6
8

   
   
  

F
8
1
,1
2
8
.3
2

   
   
  

St
e
p
s

H
o
u
rl
y 

C
ad

e
t

 P
N
C
SP

H
o
u
rl
y

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
 

P
N
C
E1

H
o
u
rl
y

En
tr
y 
Le
ve

l I
I 

P
N
C
E2

H
o
u
rl
y

P
at
ro
l O

ff
ic
e
r 

P
C
S1

H
o
u
rl
y

D
e
te
ct
iv
e
 /
 

C
o
rp
o
ra
l 

P
C
S2

H
o
u
rl
y

Se
rg
e
an

t 

P
C
S3

H
o
u
rl
y

Li
e
u
te
n
an

t 

P
C
S4

H
o
u
rl
y 
   
   
  

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f/

C
ap

ta
in

P
C
S5

H
o
u
rl
y

A
ss
t.
 C
h
ie
f 

P
C
S6

A
2
5
.0
6
1

   
   
   
   
  

2
8
.8
4
7

   
   
   
   
  

3
0
.2
7
5

   
   
   
   
  

3
0
.2
7
5

   
   
   
   
  

3
9
.5
8
9

   
   
   
   
  

4
3
.3
9
8

   
   
   
   
  

4
8
.1
0
8

   
   
   
   
  

5
3
.8
4
9

   
   
   
   
   

6
0
.5
7
3

   
   
   
   
   

B
3
1
.7
8
9

   
   
   
   
  

4
0
.1
8
3

   
   
   
   
  

4
4
.5
9
1

   
   
   
   
  

4
9
.4
3
1

   
   
   
   
  

5
6
.0
0
3

   
   
   
   
   

6
3
.6
9
3

   
   
   
   
   

C
3
3
.3
7
8

   
   
   
   
  

4
5
.8
1
7

   
   
   
   
  

5
1
.2
8
5

   
   
   
   
  

5
8
.2
4
3

   
   
   
   
   

6
9
.2
2
8

   
   
   
   
   

D
3
5
.3
8
1

   
   
   
   
  

E 
3
6
.7
9
6

   
   
   
   
  

F
3
9
.0
0
4

   
   
   
   
  

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 P
o
lic
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n

P
N
C
SP
 is
 a
 n
o
n
‐c
la
ss
if
ie
d
, 
n
o
n
‐c
iv
il 
se
rv
ic
e
, c
iv
ili
an

 g
ra
d
e
 f
o
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 s
ee

ki
n
g 
to
 e
n
te
r 
a 
fu
tu
re
 a
ca
d
e
m
y 
cl
as
s 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
ec
o
m
e 
cl
as
si
fi
ed

 p
o
lic
e 

o
ff
ic
er
s.
  P

N
C
E1

‐A
 is
 a
 n
o
n
‐c
la
ss
if
ie
d
, n

o
n
‐c
iv
il 
se
rv
ic
e,
 c
iv
ili
an

 g
ra
d
e 
fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
an

 a
ca
d
e
m
y 
cl
as
s 
in
 o
rd
e
r 
to
 b
e
co
m
e
 c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
lic
e
 

o
ff
ic
er
s.

A
ll 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 o
f 
th
e 
p
o
lic
e 
d
ep

ar
tm

en
t 
w
h
o
 s
ee

k 
to
 b
ec
o
m
e 
cl
as
si
fi
ed

 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
s 
st
ar
t 
at
 e
it
h
er
 P
N
C
SP
 o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
, u

n
le
ss
 t
h
e
y 
st
ar
t 

em
p
lo
ym

en
t 
al
re
ad

y 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 a
s 
p
e
ac
e
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 b
y 
TC

O
LE
, i
n
 w
h
ic
h
 c
as
e
 t
h
e
y 
m
ay
 s
ta
rt
 a
t 
e
it
h
e
r 
P
N
C
SP
 o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
.  
Em

p
lo
ye
e
s 
st
ar
ti
n
g 
at
 e
it
h
e
r 
P
N
C
SP
 

o
r 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
N
C
E1

‐B
 w
h
en

 t
h
ey
 b
ec
o
m
e 
ce
rt
if
ie
d
 a
s 
p
ea
ce
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 b
y 
TC

O
LE
. 

C
la
ss
if
ie
d
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
n
d
 a
cc
ru
al
 o
f 
se
n
io
ri
ty
 p
o
in
ts
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
eg
in
 u
n
ti
l a
n
 e
m
p
lo
ye
e
 r
e
ac
h
e
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
.
Fu

ll 
ci
vi
l s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
 a
n
d
 a
cc
ru
al
 o
f 
lo
n
ge
vi
ty
 

p
ay
 b
eg
in
s 
w
h
en

 a
n
 e
m
p
lo
ye
e 
re
ac
h
es
 P
C
S1
.
N
o
t 
e
ve
ry
 c
h
an

ge
 in
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
 r
e
p
re
se
n
ts
 a
 c
h
an

ge
 in
 s
al
ar
y.

Fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y 
w
it
h
o
u
t
TC

O
LE
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
, 
a 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
1
8
 m

o
n
th
s,
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
fu
ll 
ci
vi
l s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
, 

b
e
gi
n
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
st
 d
ay
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
w
it
h
 d
e
p
ar
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 b
e
gi
n
n
in
g 
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐A
.  
Th

es
e
 e
m
p
lo
ye
es
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
N
C
E2

 a
ft
er
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 

co
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
N
C
E1

‐A
 a
n
d
 B
; p

ro
gr
es
s 
to
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 a
ft
er
 6
 m

o
n
th
s 
ad

d
it
io
n
al
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
t 
P
N
C
E2

; r
e
m
ai
n
 

in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 f
o
r 
6
 m

o
n
th
s;
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 t
o
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 B
 a
ft
e
r 
6
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
; a
n
d
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 P
C
S1

st
ep

s 
C
‐F
 a
ft
er
 2
 y
ea
rs
 o
f 

se
rv
ic
e
 in
 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
, a
tt
ai
n
in
g 
P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 F
 1
0
 y
e
ar
s 
af
te
r 
e
n
te
ri
n
g 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y.
  

Fo
r 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 e
n
te
r 
th
e 
ac
ad

em
y 
w
it
h
TC

O
LE
 c
er
ti
fi
ca
ti
o
n
, 
a 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s,
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 e
n
te
ri
n
g 
fu
ll 
ci
vi
l s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
te
ct
io
n
, 

b
e
gi
n
s 
o
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
st
 d
ay
 o
f 
e
m
p
lo
ym

e
n
t 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 d
e
p
ar
tm

e
n
t 
in
 a
 b
eg
in
n
in
g 
p
o
si
ti
o
n
 a
s 
P
N
C
E1

‐B
. T

h
es
e 
em

p
lo
ye
es
 b
yp
as
s 
P
N
C
E2

 a
n
d
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 d
ir
e
ct
ly
 t
o
 

P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 a
ft
e
r 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 
co
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
se
rv
ic
e;
 r
e
m
ai
n
 in

 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
 f
o
r 
1
2
 m

o
n
th
s;
 p
ro
gr
e
ss
 t
o
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 B
 a
ft
er
 1
2
 m

o
n
th
s 
o
f 

se
rv
ic
e 
in
 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 A
; a
n
d
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 P
C
S1
 s
te
p
s 
C
‐F
 a
ft
e
r 
2
 y
e
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 in
 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
, a
tt
ai
n
in
g 
P
C
S1
 s
te
p
 F
 1
0
ye
ar
s 
af
te
r 
e
n
te
ri
n
g 
th
e
 

ac
ad

e
m
y.
  

If
 t
h
e 
an

n
iv
e
rs
ar
y 
d
at
e
 in

 a
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
 o
cc
u
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g 
th
e 
la
st
 h
al
f 
o
f 
th
e 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
, t
h
e 
in
cr
ea
se
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
ec
o
m
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
u
n
ti
l t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 

n
ex
t 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
. P

ro
gr
es
si
o
n
 in
 e
ac
h
 c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
si
ti
o
n
 (
P
N
C
E1

‐B
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
ve
) 
is
 b
as
ed

 o
n
 t
im

e 
in
 t
h
at
 c
la
ss
if
ic
at
io
n
. 
Ti
m
e 
sp
e
n
t
in
 "
m
o
ve
‐u
p
" 
d
o
es
 n
o
t 

co
u
n
t 
to
w
ar
d
 t
im

e 
in
 t
h
e 
“m

o
ve
 u
p
” 
cl
as
si
fi
ca
ti
o
n
. 
Se
n
io
ri
ty
 is
 b
as
e
d
 o
n
 a
ll 
ye
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
 a
s 
a 
sw

o
rn
/c
la
ss
if
ie
d
 p
o
lic
e
 o
ff
ic
e
r 
(P
N
C
E1

‐B
 a
n
d
 a
b
o
ve
) 
o
r 

fi
re
fi
gh

te
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
ck
, n

o
t 
m
er
e
ly
 t
h
e 
la
st
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e
. D

is
ci
p
lin
ar
y 
su
sp
en

si
o
n
s 
d
o
 n
o
t 
co
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 b
re
ak
 in

 s
er
vi
ce
. 

Se
n
io
ri
ty
 c
re
d
it
 s
h
al
l b

e
 f
ig
u
re
d
 t
o
 f
iv
e
 d
e
ci
m
al
 p
la
ce
s.
 In

 t
h
e 
ev
en

t 
o
f 
a 
co
n
fl
ic
t 
b
et
w
ee

n
 t
h
is
 o
rd
in
an

ce
 a
n
d
 s
ta
te
 la
w
, s
ta
te

la
w
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
o
l.

B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
=H

o
u
rl
y 
* 
8
0
.  
A
n
n
u
al
 r
at
e
=B

iw
ee

kl
y 
* 
2
6
.  
M
o
n
th
ly
 r
at
e=

A
n
n
u
al
 /
 1
2
.



G
ra
de

T
itl
e

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

FC
S7

Fi
re

 D
ep

ut
y 

C
hi

ef
H

 
62

.6
06

63
.4

27
64

.2
48

65
.0

69
65

.8
90

66
.7

10
67

.5
32

B
5,

00
8.

48
   

   
5,

07
4.

16
   

   
5,

13
9.

84
   

   
5,

20
5.

52
   

   
5,

27
1.

20
   

   
5,

33
6.

80
   

   
5,

40
2.

56
   

   
A

13
0,

22
0.

48
  

13
1,

92
8.

16
  

13
3,

63
5.

84
  

13
5,

34
3.

52
  

13
7,

05
1.

20
  

13
8,

75
6.

80
  

14
0,

46
6.

56
  

FC
S6

Fi
re

 D
iv

isi
on

 C
hi

ef
H

 
58

.7
62

   
   

   
58

.9
99

   
   

   
59

.2
34

   
   

   
59

.4
71

   
   

   
59

.7
06

   
   

   
59

.9
43

   
   

   
60

.1
80

   
   

   
60

.4
18

   
   

   
60

.6
52

   
   

   
B

4,
70

0.
96

   
   

4,
71

9.
92

   
   

4,
73

8.
72

   
   

4,
75

7.
68

   
   

4,
77

6.
48

   
   

4,
79

5.
44

   
   

4,
81

4.
40

   
   

4,
83

3.
44

   
   

4,
85

2.
16

   
   

A
12

2,
22

4.
96

  
12

2,
71

7.
92

  
12

3,
20

6.
72

  
12

3,
69

9.
68

  
12

4,
18

8.
48

  
12

4,
68

1.
44

  
12

5,
17

4.
40

  
12

5,
66

9.
44

  
12

6,
15

6.
16

  
FC

S5
Fi

re
 B

at
ta

lio
n 

C
hi

ef
H

 
52

.7
91

53
.2

06
53

.6
19

54
.0

33
54

.4
46

54
.8

60
55

.2
72

55
.6

88
56

.1
01

56
.5

14
56

.9
28

B
4,

22
3.

28
   

   
4,

25
6.

48
   

   
4,

28
9.

52
   

   
4,

32
2.

64
   

   
4,

35
5.

68
   

   
4,

38
8.

80
   

   
4,

42
1.

76
   

   
4,

45
5.

04
   

   
4,

48
8.

08
   

   
4,

52
1.

12
   

   
4,

55
4.

24
   

   
A

10
9,

80
5.

28
  

11
0,

66
8.

48
  

11
1,

52
7.

52
  

11
2,

38
8.

64
  

11
3,

24
7.

68
  

11
4,

10
8.

80
  

11
4,

96
5.

76
  

11
5,

83
1.

04
  

11
6,

69
0.

08
  

11
7,

54
9.

12
  

11
8,

41
0.

24
  

FC
S4

Fi
re

 C
ap

ta
in

H
 

45
.9

13
46

.2
56

46
.5

99
46

.9
42

47
.2

84
47

.6
27

47
.9

70
48

.3
15

48
.6

57
49

.0
00

49
.3

42
49

.6
86

50
.0

29
B

3,
67

3.
04

3,
70

0.
48

3,
72

7.
92

3,
75

5.
36

3,
78

2.
72

3,
81

0.
16

3,
83

7.
60

3,
86

5.
20

3,
89

2.
56

3,
92

0.
00

3,
94

7.
36

3,
97

4.
88

4,
00

2.
32

A
95

,4
99

.0
4

96
,2

12
.4

8
96

,9
25

.9
2

97
,6

39
.3

6
98

,3
50

.7
2

99
,0

64
.1

6
99

,7
77

.6
0

10
0,

49
5.

20
10

1,
20

6.
56

10
1,

92
0.

00
10

2,
63

1.
36

10
3,

34
6.

88
10

4,
06

0.
32

FC
S3

Fi
re

 L
ie

ut
en

an
t H

 
41

.0
58

41
.2

81
41

.5
03

41
.7

28
41

.9
50

42
.1

72
42

.3
95

42
.6

20
42

.8
44

43
.0

67
43

.2
90

43
.5

13
43

.7
37

43
.9

59
44

.1
84

B
3,

28
4.

64
3,

30
2.

48
3,

32
0.

24
3,

33
8.

24
3,

35
6.

00
3,

37
3.

76
3,

39
1.

60
3,

40
9.

60
3,

42
7.

52
3,

44
5.

36
3,

46
3.

20
3,

48
1.

04
3,

49
8.

96
3,

51
6.

72
3,

53
4.

72
A

85
,4

00
.6

4
85

,8
64

.4
8

86
,3

26
.2

4
86

,7
94

.2
4

87
,2

56
.0

0
87

,7
17

.7
6

88
,1

81
.6

0
88

,6
49

.6
0

89
,1

15
.5

2
89

,5
79

.3
6

90
,0

43
.2

0
90

,5
07

.0
4

90
,9

72
.9

6
91

,4
34

.7
2

91
,9

02
.7

2
FC

S2
Fi

re
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t O
pe

r.
H

 
37

.9
01

38
.0

76
38

.2
50

38
.4

25
38

.6
00

38
.7

74
38

.9
51

39
.1

25
39

.3
00

39
.4

74
39

.6
48

39
.8

23
39

.9
98

40
.1

73
40

.3
48

40
.5

22
40

.6
99

B
3,

03
2.

08
3,

04
6.

08
3,

06
0.

00
3,

07
4.

00
3,

08
8.

00
3,

10
1.

92
3,

11
6.

08
3,

13
0.

00
3,

14
4.

00
3,

15
7.

92
3,

17
1.

84
3,

18
5.

84
3,

19
9.

84
3,

21
3.

84
3,

22
7.

84
3,

24
1.

76
3,

25
5.

92
A

78
,8

34
.0

8
79

,1
98

.0
8

79
,5

60
.0

0
79

,9
24

.0
0

80
,2

88
.0

0
80

,6
49

.9
2

81
,0

18
.0

8
81

,3
80

.0
0

81
,7

44
.0

0
82

,1
05

.9
2

82
,4

67
.8

4
82

,8
31

.8
4

83
,1

95
.8

4
83

,5
59

.8
4

83
,9

23
.8

4
84

,2
85

.7
6

84
,6

53
.9

2
FC

S1
Fi

re
 F

ig
ht

er
H

 
28

.0
20

28
.4

89
28

.9
59

29
.4

30
29

.9
02

30
.3

72
30

.8
42

31
.3

13
31

.7
83

32
.2

53
32

.7
23

33
.1

96
33

.6
65

34
.1

37
34

.6
09

35
.0

77
35

.5
48

36
.0

19
36

.4
90

36
.9

60
B

2,
24

1.
60

2,
27

9.
12

2,
31

6.
72

2,
35

4.
40

2,
39

2.
16

2,
42

9.
76

2,
46

7.
36

2,
50

5.
04

2,
54

2.
64

2,
58

0.
24

2,
61

7.
84

2,
65

5.
68

2,
69

3.
20

2,
73

0.
96

2,
76

8.
72

2,
80

6.
16

2,
84

3.
84

2,
88

1.
52

2,
91

9.
20

2,
95

6.
80

A
58

,2
81

.6
0

59
,2

57
.1

2
60

,2
34

.7
2

61
,2

14
.4

0
62

,1
96

.1
6

63
,1

73
.7

6
64

,1
51

.3
6

65
,1

31
.0

4
66

,1
08

.6
4

67
,0

86
.2

4
68

,0
63

.8
4

69
,0

47
.6

8
70

,0
23

.2
0

71
,0

04
.9

6
71

,9
86

.7
2

72
,9

60
.1

6
73

,9
39

.8
4

74
,9

19
.5

2
75

,8
99

.2
0

76
,8

76
.8

0
FN

C
S1

Pr
ob

. F
ire

 F
ig

ht
er

H
 

26
.4

18
B

2,
11

3.
44

A
54

,9
49

.4
4

Pr
og

re
ss

io
n 

in
 e

ac
h 

pa
y 

gr
ad

e 
is 

ba
se

d 
on

 se
ni

or
ity

 in
 th

at
 p

ay
 g

ra
de

.  
Se

ni
or

ity
 is

 d
ef

in
ed

 a
s t

he
 to

ta
l t

im
e 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

s a
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

 o
r

fir
e 

fig
ht

er
 fo

r t
he

 C
ity

 o
f L

ub
bo

ck
.  

Ti
m

e-
of

f f
or

 d
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

su
sp

en
sio

n 
do

es
 n

ot
 c

on
st

itu
te

 a
 lo

ss
 o

f s
en

io
rit

y 
tim

e,
 n

or
 d

oe
s i

t c
on

st
itu

te
 a

 b
re

ak
 in

se
rv

ic
e.

  T
he

 ti
m

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 "m
ov

e-
up

" i
s a

lso
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

ed
.  

It 
do

es
 m

ea
n 

al
l y

ea
rs

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 a

s a
 p

ol
ic

e 
of

fic
er

 o
r f

ire
 fi

gh
te

r w
ith

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f L

ub
bo

ck
w

he
th

er
 in

te
rr

up
te

d,
 o

r u
ni

nt
er

ru
pt

ed
 a

nd
 n

ot
 m

er
el

y 
th

e 
la

st
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 p
er

io
d 

of
 se

rv
ic

e.
  S

en
io

rit
y 

cr
ed

it 
sh

al
l b

e 
fig

ur
ed

 to
 fi

ve
 d

ec
im

al
 p

la
ce

s.

Em
pl

oy
ee

s w
ho

 su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 c
om

pl
et

e 
on

e 
(1

) y
ea

r a
s P

ro
ba

tio
na

ry
 F

ire
 F

ig
ht

er
 m

ov
e 

to
 g

ra
de

 F
C

S1
.  

Fi
re

 F
ig

ht
er

s t
he

n 
pr

og
re

ss
 th

ro
ug

h 
st

ep
s i

n
FC

S1
 a

nn
ua

lly
.  

Pr
og

re
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

st
ep

s i
n 

th
e 

ot
he

r g
ra

de
s a

lso
 re

qu
ire

s o
ne

 y
ea

r i
n 

ea
ch

 st
ep

.  
H

ow
ev

er
, i

f t
he

 a
nn

iv
er

sa
ry

 d
at

e 
oc

cu
rs

 d
ur

in
g

th
e 

la
st

 h
al

f o
f t

he
 p

ay
 p

er
io

d,
 th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 d

oe
s n

ot
 b

ec
om

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

un
til

 th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 th
e 

ne
xt

 p
ay

 p
er

io
d.

H
ou

rly
 ra

te
=a

nn
ua

l /
 2

,0
80

.  
B

iw
ee

kl
y 

ra
te

=H
ou

rly
 ra

te
 *

 8
0.

  A
ll 

co
nv

er
sio

ns
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
e.

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 F
ir
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n
 (
4
0
 H
o
u
r 
Sh

if
ts
)



G
ra
d
e

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
1
0

1
1

1
2

1
3

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
7

1
8

1
9

2
0

FC
S5

H
3
7
.7
0
8

3
8
.0
0
4

3
8
.3
0
0

3
8
.5
9
5

3
8
.8
9
0

3
9
.1
8
7

3
9
.4
8
0

3
9
.7
7
7

4
0
.0
7
3

4
0
.3
6
7

4
0
.6
6
3

B
3
,9
9
7
.0
5

4
,0
2
8
.4
2

4
,0
5
9
.8
0

4
,0
9
1
.0
7

4
,1
2
2
.3
4

4
,1
5
3
.8
2

4
,1
8
4
.8
8

4
,2
1
6
.3
6

4
,2
4
7
.7
4

4
,2
7
8
.9
0

4
,3
1
0
.2
8

A
1
0
3
,9
2
3
.2
5

1
0
4
,7
3
9
.0
2

1
0
5
,5
5
4
.8
0

1
0
6
,3
6
7
.8
2

1
0
7
,1
8
0
.8
4

1
0
7
,9
9
9
.3
7

1
0
8
,8
0
6
.8
8

1
0
9
,6
2
5
.4
1

1
1
0
,4
4
1
.1
9

1
1
1
,2
5
1
.4
5

1
1
2
,0
6
7
.2
3

FC
S4

H
3
2
.7
9
6

3
3
.0
4
0

3
3
.2
8
5

3
3
.5
3
0

3
3
.7
7
4

3
4
.0
2
0

3
4
.2
6
4

3
4
.5
1
1

3
4
.7
5
5

3
5
.0
0
1

3
5
.2
4
5

3
5
.4
9
0

3
5
.7
3
5

B
3
,4
7
6
.3
8

3
,5
0
2
.2
4

3
,5
2
8
.2
1

3
,5
5
4
.1
8

3
,5
8
0
.0
4

3
,6
0
6
.1
2

3
,6
3
1
.9
8

3
,6
5
8
.1
7

3
,6
8
4
.0
3

3
,7
1
0
.1
1

3
,7
3
5
.9
7

3
,7
6
1
.9
4

3
,7
8
7
.9
1

A
9
0
,3
8
5
.7
8

9
1
,0
5
8
.2
4

9
1
,7
3
3
.4
6

9
2
,4
0
8
.6
8

9
3
,0
8
1
.1
4

9
3
,7
5
9
.1
2

9
4
,4
3
1
.5
8

9
5
,1
1
2
.3
2

9
5
,7
8
4
.7
8

9
6
,4
6
2
.7
6

9
7
,1
3
5
.2
2

9
7
,8
1
0
.4
4

9
8
,4
8
5
.6
6

FC
S3

H
2
9
.3
2
7

2
9
.4
8
7

2
9
.6
4
5

2
9
.8
0
6

2
9
.9
6
4

3
0
.1
2
3

3
0
.2
8
2

3
0
.4
4
2

3
0
.6
0
4

3
0
.7
6
2

3
0
.9
2
2

3
1
.0
8
1

3
1
.2
4
1

3
1
.3
9
9

3
1
.5
6
0

B
3
,1
0
8
.6
6

3
,1
2
5
.6
2

3
,1
4
2
.3
7

3
,1
5
9
.4
4

3
,1
7
6
.1
8

3
,1
9
3
.0
4

3
,2
0
9
.8
9

3
,2
2
6
.8
5

3
,2
4
4
.0
2

3
,2
6
0
.7
7

3
,2
7
7
.7
3

3
,2
9
4
.5
9

3
,3
1
1
.5
5

3
,3
2
8
.2
9

3
,3
4
5
.3
6

A
8
0
,8
2
5
.2
1

8
1
,2
6
6
.1
7

8
1
,7
0
1
.6
2

8
2
,1
4
5
.3
4

8
2
,5
8
0
.7
8

8
3
,0
1
8
.9
9

8
3
,4
5
7
.1
9

8
3
,8
9
8
.1
5

8
4
,3
4
4
.6
2

8
4
,7
8
0
.0
7

8
5
,2
2
1
.0
3

8
5
,6
5
9
.2
4

8
6
,1
0
0
.2
0

8
6
,5
3
5
.6
4

8
6
,9
7
9
.3
6

FC
S2

H
2
7
.0
7
3

2
7
.1
9
7

2
7
.3
2
1

2
7
.4
4
7

2
7
.5
7
2

2
7
.6
9
6

2
7
.8
2
2

2
7
.9
4
6

2
8
.0
7
1

2
8
.1
9
6

2
8
.3
2
1

2
8
.4
4
6

2
8
.5
7
0

2
8
.6
9
5

2
8
.8
2
0

2
8
.9
4
5

2
9
.0
7
1

B
2
,8
6
9
.7
4

2
,8
8
2
.8
8

2
,8
9
6
.0
3

2
,9
0
9
.3
8

2
,9
2
2
.6
3

2
,9
3
5
.7
8

2
,9
4
9
.1
3

2
,9
6
2
.2
8

2
,9
7
5
.5
3

2
,9
8
8
.7
8

3
,0
0
2
.0
3

3
,0
1
5
.2
8

3
,0
2
8
.4
2

3
,0
4
1
.6
7

3
,0
5
4
.9
2

3
,0
6
8
.1
7

3
,0
8
1
.5
3

A
7
4
,6
1
3
.1
9

7
4
,9
5
4
.9
3

7
5
,2
9
6
.6
8

7
5
,6
4
3
.9
3

7
5
,9
8
8
.4
3

7
6
,3
3
0
.1
8

7
6
,6
7
7
.4
3

7
7
,0
1
9
.1
8

7
7
,3
6
3
.6
8

7
7
,7
0
8
.1
8

7
8
,0
5
2
.6
8

7
8
,3
9
7
.1
8

7
8
,7
3
8
.9
2

7
9
,0
8
3
.4
2

7
9
,4
2
7
.9
2

7
9
,7
7
2
.4
2

8
0
,1
1
9
.6
8

FC
S1

H
2
0
.0
1
4

2
0
.3
4
9

2
0
.6
8
5

2
1
.0
2
2

2
1
.3
5
8

2
1
.6
9
4

2
2
.0
3
0

2
2
.3
6
7

2
2
.7
0
2

2
3
.0
3
8

2
3
.3
7
4

2
3
.7
1
1

2
4
.0
4
6

2
4
.3
8
4

2
4
.7
2
0

2
5
.0
5
5

2
5
.3
9
1

2
5
.7
2
8

2
6
.0
6
4

2
6
.4
0
0

B
2
,1
2
1
.4
8

2
,1
5
6
.9
9

2
,1
9
2
.6
1

2
,2
2
8
.3
3

2
,2
6
3
.9
5

2
,2
9
9
.5
6

2
,3
3
5
.1
8

2
,3
7
0
.9
0

2
,4
0
6
.4
1

2
,4
4
2
.0
3

2
,4
7
7
.6
4

2
,5
1
3
.3
7

2
,5
4
8
.8
8

2
,5
8
4
.7
0

2
,6
2
0
.3
2

2
,6
5
5
.8
3

2
,6
9
1
.4
5

2
,7
2
7
.1
7

2
,7
6
2
.7
8

2
,7
9
8
.4
0

A
5
5
,1
5
8
.5
8

5
6
,0
8
1
.8
4

5
7
,0
0
7
.8
6

5
7
,9
3
6
.6
3

5
8
,8
6
2
.6
5

5
9
,7
8
8
.6
6

6
0
,7
1
4
.6
8

6
1
,6
4
3
.4
5

6
2
,5
6
6
.7
1

6
3
,4
9
2
.7
3

6
4
,4
1
8
.7
4

6
5
,3
4
7
.5
2

6
6
,2
7
0
.7
8

6
7
,2
0
2
.3
0

6
8
,1
2
8
.3
2

6
9
,0
5
1
.5
8

6
9
,9
7
7
.6
0

7
0
,9
0
6
.3
7

7
1
,8
3
2
.3
8

7
2
,7
5
8
.4
0

FN
C
S1

H
1
8
.8
7
0

B
2
,0
0
0
.2
2

A
5
2
,0
0
5
.7
2

P
ro
gr
es
si
o
n
 in

 e
ac
h
 p
ay
 g
ra
d
e 
is
 b
as
ed

 o
n
 s
en

io
ri
ty
 in

 t
h
at
 p
ay
 g
ra
d
e.
  S
en

io
ri
ty
 is
 d
ef
in
ed

 a
s 
th
e 
to
ta
l t
im

e 
o
f 
em

p
lo
ym

en
t 
as
 a
 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
 o

fi
re
 f
ig
h
te
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
ck
.  
Ti
m
e‐
o
ff
 f
o
r 
d
is
ci
p
lin

ar
y 
su
sp
en

si
o
n
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
co
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 lo

ss
 o
f 
se
n
io
ri
ty
 t
im

e,
 n
o
r 
d
o
es
 it
 c
o
n
st
it
u
te
 a
 b
re
ak
 i

se
rv
ic
e.
  T
h
e 
ti
m
e 
in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 "
m
o
ve
‐u
p
" 
is
 a
ls
o
 n
o
t 
in
cl
u
d
ed

.  
It
 d
o
es
 m

ea
n
 a
ll 
ye
ar
s 
o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 
as
 a
 p
o
lic
e 
o
ff
ic
er
 o
r 
fi
re
 f
ig
h
te
r 
w
it
h
 t
h
e 
C
it
y 
o
f 
Lu
b
b
o
c

w
h
et
h
er
 in

te
rr
u
p
te
d
, o

r 
u
n
in
te
rr
u
p
te
d
 a
n
d
 n
o
t 
m
er
el
y 
th
e 
la
st
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s 
p
er
io
d
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e.
  S
en

io
ri
ty
 c
re
d
it
 s
h
al
l b

e 
fi
gu

re
d
 t
o
 f
iv
e 
d
ec
im

al
 p
la
ce
s

Em
p
lo
ye
es
 w
h
o
 s
u
cc
es
sf
u
lly
 c
o
m
p
le
te
 o
n
e 
(1
) 
ye
ar
 a
s 
P
ro
b
at
io
n
ar
y 
Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
r 
m
o
ve
 t
o
 g
ra
d
e 
FC

S1
.  
Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
rs
 t
h
en

 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 s
te
p
s 
in

FC
S1
 a
n
n
u
al
ly
.  
P
ro
gr
es
s 
th
ro
u
gh

 t
h
e 
st
ep

s 
in
 t
h
e 
o
th
er
 g
ra
d
es
 a
ls
o
 r
eq

u
ir
es
 o
n
e 
ye
ar
 in

 e
ac
h
 s
te
p
.  
H
o
w
ev
er
, i
f 
th
e 
an

n
iv
er
sa
ry
 d
at
e 
o
cc
u
rs
 d
u
ri
n
g

th
e 
la
st
 h
al
f 
o
f 
th
e 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d
, t
h
e 
in
cr
ea

se
 d
o
es
 n
o
t 
b
ec
o
m
e 
e
ff
ec
ti
ve
 u
n
ti
l t
h
e 
b
eg
in
n
in
g 
o
f 
th
e 
n
ex
t 
p
ay
 p
er
io
d

K
el
ly
 s
h
if
t 
ra
te
 (
k)
=B

iw
ee

kl
y 
(4
0
 h
o
u
r)
/1
1
2
.  
B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
=H

o
u
rl
y*
1
0
6
.  
A
n
n
u
al
 r
at
e=

B
iw
ee

kl
y 
ra
te
*2

6
.  
A
ll 
co
n
ve
rs
io
n
s 
ar
e 
ap

p
ro
xi
m
at
e

Ti
tl
e

Ex
h
ib
it
 E
 ‐
 F
ir
e 
P
ay
 P
la
n
 (
K
el
ly
 S
h
if
ts
)

P
ro
b
. F
ir
e 
Fi
gh

te
r

Fi
re
 B
at
ta
lio

n
 C
h
ie
f

Fi
re
 C
ap

ta
in

Fi
re
 L
ie
u
te
n
an

t

Fi
re
 E
q
u
ip
m
en

t 
O
p
e
r

Fi
re
 F
ig
h
te
r



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an amendment to the
Grant Management Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Market Lubbock, Inc., dated January
25, 1996.

Item Summary
The City approved Resolution No. 5089, January 25, 1996, authorizing the City and Market Lubbock,
Inc. (MLI) to execute a grant agreement wherein the base grant amount was set at 3.000 cents of the ad
valorem tax rate rate. The City Council approved amendments previously as follows: 

FY 2012-13 reduced to 2.937 cents of the City’s ad valorem tax rate
FY 2013-14 reduced to 2.705 cents of the City’s ad valorem tax rate
FY 2014-15 reduced to 2.315 cents of the City’s ad valorem tax rate
FY 2020-21 reduced to 2.2468 cents of the City’s ad valorem tax rate  

The FY 2021-22 Operating Budget and Capital Program adjusted this amount for FY 2021-22.  This item
reconciles the grant agreement with the Approved FY 2021-22 Budget, and sets the grant amount to
MLI to an amount equal to 2.21707 cents of the City’s ad valorem tax rate, less the amount budgeted by
the City for Economic Development for FY 2021-22.

Fiscal Impact
The amendment conforms the MLI agreement so it will be consistent with the Economic Development
tax rate of  2.21707 cents, of the City’s ad valorem tax rate,  approved in the FY 2021-22 Operating
Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution 
MLI Grant Management Agreement 









   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to
purchase, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Network Security Privacy Insurance coverage from
a carrier as yet to be determined, for which the premium amount shall not exceed $114,393.

Item Summary
In addition to the City’s internal methods of data breach prevention, Network Security and Privacy
Insurance coverage would further protect the City from information privacy and network security
breaches by providing coverage for Privacy Liability, Network Security, Media Liability, and Regulatory
action.
 
The City’s current coverage is written by Certain Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London, with a policy
premium of $67,290 for a $5,000,000 limit with a self-insurance retention of $50,000. The City’s broker
is working to secure quotes for this coverage.
 
Carriers bind insurance coverage October 1, 2021, after notification of City Council approval. Insurance
policies are issued after premiums are received from the City. The policy for the insurance coverage is
approved by the Texas Department of Insurance as to content. Current insurance policies are available in
Risk Management.

Fiscal Impact
Funds are budgeted in the Adopted FY 2021-22 Risk Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Cyber Resolution 
Cyber Coverage 















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0131, abandoning and
closing an Underground Water Line Easement on Lot 45-C, Northridge Addition, located at 3106
Canyon Road, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a 10-foot Underground Water Line
Easement, located in Lot 45-C, Northridge, Lubbock County, Texas. The water line easement was
dedicated by plat Lot 45-49, Northridge Addition, and is no longer needed.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
ROW - Abandon and Close Underground Utility Easement, Lot 45-C Northridge 
Exhibit A - Closure of a Underground Utility Easement - Lot 45-C Northridge 









   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0132, abandoning and
closing a portion of a Drainage Easement, located in Section 1, Block AK, Viridian Addition, Lubbock
County, Texas.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a Drainage Easement,
described in County Clerk File Number 2017012762, located on Lots 337-344 and along Canton
Avenue, adjacent to Lots 306-307, Viridian Addition, Section 1, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
ROW - Portions of Drainage Easement, Section 1, Block AK , Viridian 
ROW Exhibit A- Drainage Easement, Sec 1, Blk AK - Viridian 
Map - Closure of a Portion of a Drainage Easement - Section 1 Block AK 













   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with Daniel B. Stephens and Associates, Inc., a
Geo-Logic Company, for installation of a groundwater monitoring well in the right-of-way of Vanda
Avenue and 44th Street, Lubbock, Texas.

Item Summary
This street use license will allow Daniel B. Stephens and Associates, Inc., an environmental consulting
firm, to install and maintain a groundwater monitor well on behalf of the Texas Environmental
Commission (TCEQ), for collecting water samples in the right-of-way of Vanda Avenue at 44th Street,
in connection with TCEQ Leaking Petroleum Storage Tank (LPST) #93997.

The term of this Street Use License/Groundwater Monitor Well Permit shall be for 5 years, and shall be
automatically extended for successive 5-year terms, not to exceed 20 years. Pursuant to the terms of the
License, upon completion of the testing, the permit holder agrees to restore, at its cost and expense, the
portion of the right-of-way utilized in this procedure, to a condition which is equal to its existing
condition. Staff recommends waiving the fees for the monitoring well.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates, Inc. 
Street Use License - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc. 
Exhibit A - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc. 
Letter - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc. 





















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License/City Public Grounds Monitor Well Permit, with the Air Force Civil Engineering Center, for
installation and maintenance of two groundwater monitoring wells, for collecting water samples near the
former Reese Air Force Base.

Item Summary
This monitoring well permit will allow the Air Force Civil Engineering Center (AFCEC), and their
contractor, Architecture, Engineering, Construction, Operations, and Management (AECOM), to install
and maintain 2 groundwater monitoring wells for collecting water samples in the right-of-way, near the
former Reese Air Force Base, west of the City of Lubbock.

The term of this Street Use License/Groundwater Monitor Well Permit shall be for 5 years, and shall be
automatically extended for successive 5-year terms, not to exceed 20 years. Upon completion of the
testing, AFCEC, or its appointed contractor, has agreed to restore, at its cost and expense, the portion of
the right-of-way utilized in this procedure, to a condition which is equal to its existing condition. Staff
recommends waiving the fees for the monitoring wells.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - 2 Monitor Well Permits, AFCEC 
Street Use License/Monitor Well Permits, AFCEC 
Exhibit A - 2 Monitor Well Permits, AFCEC 





















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, on behalf of the
City of Lubbock, three Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds out of Sections 30 and 34, Block AK,
Lubbock County, Texas, to be utilized for the Upland Avenue Roadway Expansion Project.

Item Summary
With the widening of Upland Avenue from 66th Street to 114th Street, the following street dedications
will allow for the construction of the proposed arterial. The parcels of land are located in Sections 30
and 31, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas. The total consideration of $20,712, as valued in Appraisal
Reports, is subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.
  

Parcel Owner Acres Cost
Parcel 76 Harvest Church Lubbock, Inc. 0.003 $1,697
Parcel 114 Harvest Church Lubbock, Inc. 0.052 $18,280
Parcel 120 Lubbock KKB Property Development, LLC 0.008 $735
TOTAL   0.063 $20,712

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of this acquisition is $20,712, and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92510
Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Section 30 and 34 Block AK - Upland Avenue 
10109_Parcel_76 (L)_-_Street_and_Public_Use_Dedication_-_Section_34_Block_AK_-Upland_Ave
(3) 
Parcel 114 - Dedication Deed - Section 30 Block AK - Upland Avenue 
10109_Parcel_120 (L)_-_Street_and_Public_Use_Dedication_-_Section_30_Block_AK_-_Upland_Ave
(1) 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,
this product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street and Public Use Dedication Deeds
Along Upland Ave for Parcel 76 on Unsubdivided Land in Section 34, Block AK

and Parcels 114 and 120 on Unsubdivided Land in Section 30, Block AK

15'

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

66TH ST

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

PARCEL 76

PARCEL 120

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

PARCEL 114

±

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

Parcel 76
0.003 ac

Parcel 114
0.052 ac

Parcel 120
0.008 ac US 62/82

15'

15'

AK-30

AK-35

AK-31

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y US 62/82

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y US 62/82

66TH ST

67TH
 ST

AK-34



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff Time 29,829$                      

Kimley Horn Contract No. 14034 1,180,000                   

Kimley Horn Amendment #1 1,373,400                   

TxDOT Construction Advandce Funding Agreement 948,931                      

TxDOT Design Advanced Funding Agreement 3,760                          

ROW Acqusition 7-13-2021 56,318                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 70 5,221                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 71 12,512                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 108 41,307                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 66 21,600                        

Agenda Item September 28, 2021

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 76 1,697                          

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 114 18,280                        

   ROW Acqusition Parcel 120 735                             

Encumbered/Expended to Date 3,693,590                   

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

ROW Acquisition 800,000                      

Construction 1,866,721                   

Remaining Appropriation 2,666,721                   

Total Appropriation 6,360,311$                 

Upland Avenue 66th Street to 82nd Street

September 28, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92510



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This roadway is designated in the 2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan to become a modified principal arterial. This roadway is currently 

two lane strip paved. Development and growth in this area has resulted in this roadway exceeding the current capacity of the two lane 

structure. The first year of this project will fund the Environmental Study and Engineering Schematics for the Upland Avenue Corridor 

between 66th Street and 114th Street. The proposed second year will fund the Right-of-Way acquisition ahead of the improvements 

between 66th Street and 82nd Street. The proposed third year will fund the Engineering Design and Construction of a 5-lane roadway 

section that will include pedestrian elements, drainage, street lighting, and ADA compliance between 66th Street and 82nd Street. 

Bid Date - Design:7/4/2018

Award Date for Bid - Design:8/23/2018

Project Start Date - Design: 8/23/2018

Project End Date - Design:4/24/2023

Bid Date - Construction:10/2022

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 1/2023

Project Start Date - Construction: 3/2023

Project End Date - Construction: 3/2024

Project Justification

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of the Citizens of Lubbock. The City must continue to 

anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing population in order to provide a safe and efficient transportation system. Due to 

continued development in the area of Upland Avenue, this roadway has become congested and the road structure is requiring constant 

maintenance in order to safely serve the traveling public. The current construction of the Marsha Sharp Freeway and Upland Avenue 

intersection by the Texas Department of Transportation will only increase the need for these proposed improvements.

This project has MPO participation.

Project History

$2,470,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$448,687 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$3.6 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$841,624 was appropriated in FY 2019-20 Budget Amendment No. 2, Ord. No. 2019-O0146, October 22,2019.

Reduced appropriation by $1,000,000 in FY 2019-20, Budget Amendment No. 22, Ord. No. 2020-O0059, May 12, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

 Land Acquisition  448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

Construction  3,441,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,441,624 

Design and Engineering  1,700,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,700,000 

Right of Way Acquisition  770,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  770,000 

Total Project Appropriation  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 



Project Name Upland Avenue - 66th Street to 82nd Street Project Number 92510

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2010 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 448,687  0  0  0  0  0  0  448,687 

FY 2018 Gateway Streets CO's  2,470,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,470,000 

FY 2020 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 2,600,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,600,000 

FY 2022 Gateway Streets Revenue 

CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

TxDOT Participation  841,624  0  0  0  0  0  0  841,624 

Total Funding Sources  6,360,311  0  0  0  0  0  0  6,360,311 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15838, with
Plummer Associates, Inc., for design services associated with the Reese Water Line Improvements
Capital Improvements Project.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock and the United States Air Force (USAF) are partnering in an effort to provide safe
drinking water to replace contaminated wells within the city limits near the former Reese Air Force Base
(RAFB) operations.  The USAF has done extensive testing of private wells around the former RAFB. 
With more than 500 wells tested, 231 groundwater wells have been found to have levels above the
allowable concentrations, according to Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  This
project will build water lines to service and potentially move citizens who agree to transfer onto City
potable water services.  The funding for this project is provided by the USAF pursuant to the terms of
the Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement approved by Resolution No. 2021-R0106 on March
23, 2021.

On April 12, 2021, the City released a Request for Qualifications seeking qualified consultants to
perform design phase services for the Reese Water Line Extension Capital Improvements Project. In
response to RFQ-21-15838-MA, two proposals were received on May 6, 2021.

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 30 points for Project Team Organization and
Qualifications, 30 points for Experience on Similar Projects, 30 points for Project Approach, and 10
points for Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ.  A 4-member committee evaluated the Statements of
Qualification and the following ranking was obtained:
  

Firms Points
Plummer Associates, Inc., Arlington, Texas 367
Freese and Nichols, Inc., Fort Worth, Texas 361

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to the highest ranked consultant,
Plummer Associates, Inc., of Arlington, Texas, in the amount of $821,108.  Time for final completion is
300 calendar days from Notice to Proceed, for the contractor to perform construction phase services.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $821,108 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92709, Reese Water Line
Extension, 2020.  The United States Air Force (USAF) is funding this project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Agreement 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet - Reese Water Line 
Resolution 2021-R0106 - USAF Funding Agreement 























































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff time 1,084$                      

Agenda Item September 28th,2021

Reese Water Line Extension - Design, Plummer Contract 15838 821,108                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 822,192                    

Estimated cost for Remainiaing Approcation

Reese Water Line Construction 594,739                    

Remainiaing Approcation 595,196                    

Total Appropriation 1,416,931$               

City of Lubbock

92709

Reese Water Line

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

September 28, 2021





 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 RFQ 21-15838-MA Reese Water Line Project  

 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities 
Notice was published on Bonfirehub.com from April 12, 2021 through May 6, 2021  
Notice was published on BidSync.com from April 12, 2021 through May 6, 2021  
36 viewed using Bonfirehub.com 
36 viewed using BidSync.com  
25  Firms downloaded the documents. 
  5  Firms were notified separately.  
  2  Firms submitted statements of qualifications.  

 



Resolution No. 2021- R0106

Item No. 6. 4. 1

March 23, 2021

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, an Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement
for Design, Bidding, Construction and Management Services, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the United States of America, by and through the United States Air Force, and
related documents. Said Agreement is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if

fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on
March 23, 2021

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST: 

A)- Jdo Jt-r' / - 

Rebe ca Garza, City Secre a

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

c--,-\  2 -) 
Jesica Mc chern, ssistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Amy im , eputy City Attorney

vw:ccdocs/ RES. Environmental Services USAF



Resolution No. 2021- R0106

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

for

DESIGN, BIDDING, CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES

between

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

and

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS

THIS ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT for

DESIGN, BIDDING, CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES ( this "ESCA") 

is made as of the 23rd day of March , 2021 ( the " Effective Date") by and

between the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the SECRETARY

OF THE AIR FORCE (" Air Force"), and the CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS (" City"). The

Air Force and City sometimes are referred to in this ESCA individually as a " Party" and

collectively as the "Parties." 

RECITALS

A. In November 2017 the Air Force began private and public well sampling to

evaluate whether perfluorooctane sulfonate acid (" PFOS"), perfluorooctanoic

acid (" PFOA"), and other synthetic fluorinated organic compounds ( PFOS, 

PFOA and the other synthetic fluorinated organic compounds are collectively

referred herein as " PFAS") were present at levels exceeding ( i) the Lifetime

Health Advisory (" HA") levels of 70 parts per trillion for PFOS and PFOA in

drinking water established by the United States Environmental Protection

Agency (" EPA") and/ or ( ii) the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Reese AFB / Environmental Services cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 1



TCEW) published Protective Concentration Levels for (" PCLs") 

requirements for 16 PFAS, including PFOS and PFOA, under the Texas Risk

Reduction Program rule (" TRRP PCLs"). 

B. Of the more than 500 drinking water wells that were sampled, 231 private

wells and three public wells exceeded the HAs and/ or TRRP PCLs. 

C. The Air Force immediately provided affected residents with bottled water and

thereafter installed a whole -home drinking water treatment system at each of

the homes. 

D. The Air Force identified and evaluated potential long-term drinking water

alternatives for the affected homes, including access -to public drinking water

sources. 

E. While approximately 80 of the homes are within the service area of the City

Water Utilities Department, its water mains currently do not extend to the

areas where the affected homes are located (" Affected Areas"). 

F. The Air Force cannot offer to connect the affected homes to City water until

the water mains are extended into the Affected Areas. 

G. The Defense- Environmental Restoration Act, 10 U. S. C. § 2701( d)', authorizes

the Air Force to enter into agreements with a local governmental agency, 

such as the City, to obtain services to carry out the responsibilities of the Air

Force for certain environmental response activities. 

H. The Air Force has requested that the City extend its water mains to the

Affected Areas (" Project"), at Air Force expense, which will enable the Air

Force to offer to connect homes in Affected Areas to City water. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 2



I. The Air Force has allocated $ 8, 097, 750. 35 (" Air Force Funding Obligation") 

to pay the City for completion of the Project. 

J. The Parties are entering into this ESCA to memorialize their respective

obligations and other terms and conditions relating to the Project. 

ARTICLE I

ESCA PURPOSE, SCOPE AND TERM

SECTION 1. 01. Purpose. 

The purpose of this ESCA is to obtain services from the City related to the

extension of City water mains to the Affected Areas in furtherance of certain

environmental responsibilities of the Air Force. 

SECTION 1. 02. Scope. 

The scope of this ESCA consists of the Project Work. As used herein, " Project

Work" means: 

a) the scope of services performed by the Consulting Engineer ( as

defined in Section 2. 01. A below) pursuant to the Consulting Engineer

Contract ( as defined in Section 2. 01. D below); 

b) the scope of services performed by the Construction Contractor ( as

defined in Section 2. 02. 13 below) pursuant to the Construction Contract

as defined in Section 2. 02. 13 below); 

c) the scope of services performed pursuant to a contract executed by

the City in furtherance of completion of the Project other than the

Consulting Engineer Contract and the Construction Contract; and

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 3



d) work performed by a City employee in furtherance of completion of the

Project ( i) for which the City receives compensation from third parties

when performed by a City employee in connection with infrastructure

extension projects similar to the Project; or ( ii) that typically is

performed by or for third parties at their expense in connection with

infrastructure extension projects similar to the Project. 

SECTION 1. 03. ESCA Term. 

The term of this ESCA (" ESCA Term") shall ( a) commence on the Effective

Date, and ( b) terminate on the first to occur of (i) the date on which the City delivers any

residual balance in the ESCA Account ( as defined in Section 3. 01 below) to the Air

Force, as provided in Section 3.04 below; ( ii) the date thirty ( 30) days after the City

gives the Air Force notice that it is terminating this ESCA pursuant to Section 1. 04; or

iii) the effective date of a mutual agreement by the Parties to terminate this ESCA ( the

Termination Date"). 

SECTION 1. 04. City Termination Rights. 

This ESCA may be terminated by the City without cost or liability to the City: 

a) at any time prior to the execution of the Construction Contract, for any reason

or no reason after giving the Air Force at least thirty ( 30) days prior notice; 

and

b) if subsequent to the execution of the Construction Contract, the Air Force

fails to deposit funds into the ESCA Account in accordance with Section 3. 02

below. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 4



ARTICLE II

DESIGN, BIDDING, CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES

SECTION 2. 01. Design Services. 

While the City and Air Force had preliminary discussions about the projected

scope of work for the Project prior to the Effective Date, further due diligence, 

evaluation and analysis are required to design the Project. 

A. Request for Qualifications

The City will generate a Request for Qualifications (" RFQ") to select a consulting

engineer ( the " Consulting Engineer") ( i) for the Project design phase and ( ii) to provide

engineer of record services during the Project construction phase. The qualification

criteria will consist of survey and land services, as needed, full design services in

accordance with City of Lubbock Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, and

engineer of record services. 

B. Survey and Land Services

Survey and land services will consist of ( i) preparation of a general survey that

satisfies the needs of the design phase of the Project, and ( ii) obtaining land owner

information needed for the Project layout and any required easement, platting and/ or

dedication. The Consulting Engineer will provide the land owner information required for

easements, platting, and/or dedication to the Air Force. The Consulting Engineer will

use its best efforts to acquire all easements and/ or dedications needed by the City for

the Project ( each a " Project Easement"). The City will not seek condemnation of any

property for the Project. The Consulting Engineer will provide appraisal information for

any needed easement or dedication to the City and Air Force. No easement or

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 5



dedication appraisals will move forward without written consent from the Air Force. The

Air Force will be solely responsible for satisfying any platting requirements prerequisite

to completion of the Project. The City will provide information to the Air Force about

processes it follows to obtain easements for pipeline projects. 

C. Design Drawings and Specifications

The Consulting Engineer will prepare 30%, 60%, 90% and final design drawings

Final Plan Drawings") for the Project. The City will review the design drawings at

each stage to ensure compliance with all applicable laws and City standards and

provide comments to the Consulting Engineer. The City will provide a copy of the

drawings to the Air Force at each stage. If the Air Force has questions about any of the

design drawings, it will provide them to the City within fourteen ( 14) days of receipt of

such deliverables. The Final Design Drawings provided to the Air Force will be in PDF

and CADD formats. 

D. City Approvals

The City Council must approve the Consulting Engineer to authorize the City to

execute a contract with the Consulting Engineer for the Project (" Consulting Engineer

Contract"). If the City Council does not approve the Consulting Engineer, then the City

may terminate this ESCA pursuant to Section 1. 04(a) above. 

The City will provide a copy of the final draft of the Consulting Engineer Contract

to the Air Force before it is submitted to the City Council. If the Air Force has questions

about any of the contract provisions, it will provide them promptly to the City. The

Consulting Engineer Contract shall include a detail statement of the scope of work to be

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) 

PageV



performed by the Consulting Engineer. A copy of the fully executed Consulting

Engineer Contract will be attached to this ESCA as Exhibit C. 

SECTION 2. 02. Bidding Services. 

A. Request for Proposals

The City will prepare a Request for Proposals (" RFP") for the construction of the

Project that will use a unit price contract and require a set completion time frame. 

Before the RFP is released, the City will provide a copy of the final draft of the RFP to

the Air Force for its review. If the Air Force has questions about any of the RFP

provisions, it will provide them promptly to the City. 

B. Construction Contract

The City will provide a copy of the final draft of the construction contract

Construction Contract') to the Air Force before it seeks approval of the contractor

Construction Contractor") and authorization to execute the Construction Contract

from the City Council. The Construction Contract shall include a detailed statement of

the scope of work to be performed by the Construction Contractor and require the

Construction Contractor to provide to the City a construction schedule at least thirty (30) 

days prior to issuance by the City of its notice to proceed. If the Air Force has questions

about any of the contract provisions, it will provide them promptly to the City. All

amounts payable by the City pursuant to the Construction Contract may not exceed an

amount equal to the difference between ( a) the Air Force Funding Obligation and ( b) 

the sum of ( i) the aggregate payments to date from the ESCA Account for Project

Work; and ( ii) any other known costs the City will incur relating to the Project for which it

has not yet sought payment pursuant to Section 3. 01. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 7



C. City Approvals

The City Council must approve the Construction Contractor and authorize the

City to execute the Construction Contract. If the City Council does not approve the

Construction Contractor, then the City may terminate this ESCA pursuant to Section

1. 04( a) above. The Construction Contract will not be executed before the Project

Easements, if any, required for the Project have been obtained. A copy of the fully

executed Construction Contract will be attached to this ESCA as Exhibit D. 

SECTION 2. 03. Project Management. 

A. Progress Meetings

After the Construction Contract is executed, the City will host monthly progress

meetings among the Construction Contractor, Consulting Engineer, Air Force and the

City. 

B. Engineer of Record Services

The Consulting Engineer will provide the engineer of record services stated in

the Consulting Engineer Agreement attached to this ESCA as Exhibit C. Upon

completion of the Project, the Consulting Engineer will provide a set of as -built drawings

for the Project to the Air Force in PDF and CADD formats. 

C. Inspection Services

Either a City employee or a private contractor retained by the City will provide

part-time field representation for quality assurance of the construction of the Project. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 8



D. Change Orders

Changes to the Construction Contract that affect the Construction Schedule, 

Scheduled Date of Completion, the Project Work or the Contract Price will be

documented in a Change Order and the City shall delivery copies of such Change

Orders promptly to the Air Force. If the Air Force has questions or comments about a

Change Order, it promptly will notify the City. The Air Force will use its best efforts to

provide its questions or comments about Change Orders to the City within 20 days of

receipt of the Change Order. As used in this ESCA, the. terms " Construction Schedule," 

Scheduled Date of Completion," " Contract Price," and " Change Order, shall have the

meanings ascribed to them in the Construction Contract. Any Change Order exceeding

50, 000.00 will require the approval of the City Council, as provided in Texas law. 

E. Unforeseen Circumstances

The City shall notify the Air Force promptly of any unanticipated, unforeseen, 

special or force majeure condition that may affect the total cost of the Project Work

adversely and thereafter, the Parties shall meet, by phone or in person, to address the

impact of the condition on the Project. 

SECTION 2. 04. Budget. 

The budget for the Project may not exceed the Air Force Funding Obligation

without amendment of this ESCA to increase the obligation. The budget for the Project

submitted by the City and accepted by the Air Force is attached to this ESCA as

Exhibit A (" Budget"). Line item amounts may be reallocated within the Budget by the

City to allow for flexibility in completing the Project Work; provided, however, that the

City shall notify with the Air Force before reallocating $ 25, 000. 00 or more from one line

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 9



item to another line item, or making any reallocation that will increase the aggregate

total of all reallocations to an amount above $ 100, 000. 00. 

ARTICLE III

FUNDING AND PAYMENTS

SECTION 3. 01. ESCA Account. 

The City will open an account (" ESCA Account') with Texas Cooperative Liquid

Assets Trust, a local government investment pool pursuant to Section 2256.016 of the

Public Funds Investment Act, Texas Government Code, and known as " Texas CLASS." 

All disbursements to the City of the Air Force Funding Obligation shall be deposited into

the ESCA Account. Proceeds from the ESCA Account shall be used only to pay for

Project Work and make remittances to the Air Force, as required by Section 3.04

below. Income earned on funds held in the ESCA Account shall be retained in the

ESCA Account and delivered to the Air Force as provided in Section 3. 04 below. 

SECTION 3. 02. Air Force Funding. 

Within fifteen ( 15) days of the Effective Date, the Air Force shall provide

1, 416,931. 00 of the Air Force Funding Obligation to the City to pay for Project Work

performed prior to execution of the Construction Contract. The remaining balance or the

Air Force Funding Obligation shall be disbursed to the City in accordance with a funding

schedule linked to key milestones mutually agreed to by the Parties and which aligns

with the payment dates provided in the Construction Contract (" Funding Schedule"). 

The Funding Schedule will be attached to this ESCA as Exhibit E. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 10 w



SECTION 3. 03. Withdrawals from the ESCA Account. 

Simultaneously with each withdrawal from the ESCA Account, the City shall

deliver to the Air Force a Payment Certification in the form attached to this ESCA as

Exhibit B. 

SECTION 3. 04. Statements and Remittances to Air Force

A. ESCA Account Statements

The City shall deliver to the Air Force ( i) a copy of the monthly statement for the

ESCA Account received from Texas CLASS promptly after its receipt; and ( ii) within

ninety ( 90) days after the end of the City' s fiscal year, an accounting of income earned

on the ESCA Account during the preceding fiscal year. 

B. Termination Date

On the Termination Date, the City shall deliver to the Air Force ( i) an accounting

of income earned on the ESCA Account during the current fiscal year; ( ii) the balance of
y

the ESCA Account; and ( iii) the income earned on monies in the ESCA Account from

the date it was established. 

SECTION 3. 05. Anti -Deficiency Act. 

The Air Force Funding Obligation is subject to the availability of appropriated

funds. Nothing in this ESCA shall be interpreted to require payments by the Air Force

in violation of the Anti -Deficiency Act ( 31 U. S. C. § 1341). 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 11* 



SECTION 3. 06. Relation to Prompt Payment Act. 

This ESCA is not a contract as defined in Office of Management and Budget

Circular A- 125 which implements the Prompt Payment Act of 1982 ( 31 U. S. C. § 1421- 

3906) ( the "Act"). Therefore, the Act does not apply to this ESCA. . 

ARTICLE IV

APPLICABLE LAWS

SECTION 4. 01. Compliance with Applicable Laws. 

The City shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules, regulations and

ordinances relating to the Project and which are applicable to the City. The Air Force

shall comply with all federal laws and other laws for which the United States has

expressly waived its sovereign immunity which are applicable to matters for which the

Air Force is obligated. 

ARTICLE V

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

SECTION 5. 01. Dispute Resolution. 

In the event of any dispute arising out of or relating to this ESCA, the Parties

shall attempt, in good faith, to promptly resolve the dispute by mutual agreement using

unassisted negotiation techniques ( i. e., without the assistance of a neutral third party). 

As part of the unassisted negotiation, the Parties shall consider employing joint fact- 

finding, if material factual disputes are involved, and shall use other early resolution

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 12` 



techniques appropriate to the circumstances. If the dispute cannot be resolved by

mutual agreement, before or in conjunction with pursuing any remedy available to them

under law or equity, the Parties, again by mutual agreement, may submit the dispute to

an alternative dispute resolution procedure authorized by the Administrative Dispute

Resolution Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104- 320 ( codified at 5 U. S. C. §§ 571, et seq.). 

Notwithstanding the above, each Party shall have the right to take whatever action at

law or in equity deemed necessary or desirable to enforce any obligation of the other

Party set forth in this ESCA. 

ARTICLE VI

GENERAL PROVISIONS

SECTION 6. 01. Amendment. 

This ESCA may be amended only by an instrument in writing, signed by the

Parties. 

SECTION 6. 02. Successors and Assigns. 

This ESCA may not be assigned by a Party. All obligations and covenants made

under this ESCA shall bind and inure to the benefit of any successor to a Party, 

whether or not expressly assumed by such successor. 

SECTION 6. 03. Entire Agreement. 

This ESCA constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties as to the

Project Work. Any\ all prior discussions and understandings, written or oral, relating to

the Project are superseded by this ESCA. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 13

Oil



SECTION 6. 04. Severability. 

If any provision of this ESCA is held invalid by a court, the remainder of this

ESCA shall continue in full force and effect to the extent not inconsistent with such

holding. 

SECTION 6. 05. Execution. 

This ESCA may be executed in two counterparts, each of which shall be deemed

an original. 

SECTION 6. 06. Conflict of Interest. 

The Parties shall ensure that their employees are prohibited from using their

positions for a purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire

for private gain for themselves or others. 

SECTION 6. 07. Officials Not to Benefit. 

The City acknowledges that no member or delegate to the United States

Congress, or resident Commissioner, shall be permitted to share in any part of this

ESCA or receive any benefit that may arise therefrom. 

SECTION 6. 08. Nondiscrimination. 

The City covenants and agrees that no person, on the grounds of race, religion, 

color, national origin, sex, age or handicap, shall be denied benefits of, or otherwise be

subjected to discrimination in connection with the City' s performance under this ESCA. 

Accordingly, the City covenants and agrees to comply with the following to the extent

applicable: 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 14 



A. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 ( 42 U. S. C. §§ 2000d- 2000d- 7), and

Department of Defense (" DoD") regulations ( 32 C. F. R. Part 300) issued

thereunder; 

B. Executive Order 11246 and Department of Labor regulations issued

thereunder ( 41 C. F. R. Part 60); 

C. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U. S. C. § 794); and

D. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 ( 42 U. S. C. §§ 6101- 6107) and

implementing regulations issued thereunder as incorporated in 45 C. F. R. Part

SECTION 6. 09. Lobbying. 

The City covenants and agrees that it will not expend any funds appropriated by

Congress to pay any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

employee of any agency or a Member of Congress in connection with any of the

following covered federal actions: the awarding of any federal contract; the making of

any federal grant; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; the making of any

federal loan; and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of

any federal contract, grant, cooperative agreement or loan. 

The City also agrees to comply with restrictions on lobbying, issued by the Office

of Management and Budget ( OMB) and DoD ( 32 C. F.R. Part 28) that implement the

provisions of 31 U. S. C. § 1352. 

SECTION 6. 10: Drug -Free Work Place. 

The City covenants and agrees that it will comply with the provisions of the Drug - 

Free Work Place Act of 1988, ( 41 U. S. C. §§ 701- 707) and maintain a drug -free

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 15



workplace. The City shall comply with the Final Rule, Government -Wide Requirements

for Drug -Free Workplace ( Grants), issued by OMB, and DoD ( 32 C. F. R. Part 25, 

Subpart F) to implement the Drug -Free Work Place Act of 1988. 

SECTION 6. 11. Records and Audits. 

During the ESCA Term and for three years following its expiration, the City shall

maintain a complete and accurate set of files, books and records of all activities related

to the Consulting Engineer Contract, the Construction Contract and the Project Work. 

Upon request, the Air Force may inspect and request copies ( at its expense) at

reasonable times of any of such files, books and records. Notwithstanding the

preceding sentence, copies of Change Orders and all supporting documentation

relating to them requested by the Air Force shall be provided at no expense to the Air

Force. 

Upon reasonable notice to the City, the Comptroller General, the Inspector

General of the Department of Defense, the Defense Contract Audit Agency and/ or the

Air Force Audit Agency shall have direct access to sufficient records and information of

the City, as they determine, to ensure accountability for federal funds. Any copies of

such records requested by these federal entities shall be provided to the federal

agencies at their expense. Any audit shall be conducted in accordance with OMB

Circular A- 133 and 32 C. F. R. § 33. 26. 

SECTION 6. 12. Notices. 

Any notice, transmittal, approval, or other official communication made under this

ESCA shall be in writing and shall be delivered by hand, facsimile transmission, email

or mail to the other Party at the addresses or facsimile transmission telephone number

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 16



set forth below, or at any such other address as may be later designated from time to

time by written notice using certified mail: 

Air Force: 

City: 

Stephen TerMaath, Chief, BRAC Program Management Division

Air Force Civil Engineer Center ( AFCEC)/ Installations Directorate ( Cl) 

AFCEC/ CIB

210- 395- 9428

stephen. termaathO- us. af.mil

Address for mail: 

2261 Hughes Ave., Suite 155

JBSA Lackland AFB, TX 78236- 9853

Address for hand delivery: 
3515 S General McMullen, Suite 155

San Antonio, TX 78226- 2018

with a copy to: 

Paul Carroll

Program Manager, AFCEC/ CIBE

9801 Reese Blvd. N., Ste 210

Lubbock, TX 79416

806- 885- 5010

paul. carroll. 1 (&- us.af.mil

Josh Kristinek

City of Lubbock
806- 775- 3397

jkristinek@mylubbock.us

Address for mail and hand delivery: 
PO Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, TX 79457

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 11* 



with a copy to: 

John Turpin

City of Lubbock
806- 775- 2342

jturpin@mylubbock.us

Address for mail and hand delivery: 
PO Box 2000

1314 Avenue K

Lubbock, TX 79457

SECTION 6. 13. No Joint Venture. 

Nothing contained in this ESCA shall make, nor shall be construed to make, the

Parties partners or joint venturers with each other. Neither will anything in this ESCA

render, nor be construed to render, either of the Parties liable to any third party for the

debts or obligations of the other Party. 

SECTION 6. 14. Exhibits. 

Exhibit A — Budget, is attached to and made a part of this ESCA by this

reference for all purposes, Any subsequent amendments to Exhibit A also will be

attached to and made a part of this ESCA by this reference for all purposes. 

Upon execution the following exhibits and any subsequent amendments to them

will be attached to and made a part of this ESCA by this reference for all purposes: 

Exhibit B — Payment Certification

Exhibit C — Consulting Engineer Contract

Exhibit D — Construction Contract

Exhibit E — Funding Schedule

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 18 _ wa



Exhibit F — Change Orders ( Each Change Order will be attached to this ESCA

as Exhibits F- 1, F - 2, F-3 et. seq.) 

SECTION 6. 15. Change of Circumstances. 

Each Party will promptly notify the other Party of any legal impediment, change

of circumstances, pending litigation, or any other event or condition that may adversely

affect such Party' s ability to carry out any of its obligations under this ESCA. 

SECTION 6. 16. Force Majeure. 

The Parties shall perform the requirements of this ESCA except to the extent

performance is prevented or delayed by events that constitute force majeure. " Force

majeure" is defined as any event arising from causes which are beyond the control of a

Party and which cannot be overcome with due diligence, and include but are not limited

to war, terrorism, riots, strikes and other labor issues, severe weather, legal action by

private citizens or organizations that result in injunction, and acts of God, to the extent

such events result in delays or cessation of the Project Work. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties, by their authorized representatives, hereby

cause this ESCA to be executed as of the Effective Date. 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Page 19



Air Force Signature Page to

Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

For

Design, Bidding, Construction and Management Services

UNITED STATES AIR FORCE, acting by and
through the SECRETARY OF THE AIR FORCE

By: 
MARK A. CORRELL, P. E. 

Deputy Assistant Secretary of the Air Force
Environment, Safety and Infrastructure) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Government Signature Page



City Signature Page to

Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

For

Design, Bidding, Construction and Management Services

ATTEST: 

L3",  M_ 

CITY OF

LUBBOCK

By: 
DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

Rebecca Garza, Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

John Turpin, 4., Assistant Division Director of Public Works

APPROVED AS TO FORM; 

rLsims, Deputy City Attorney

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) City Signature Page



Exhibit A

Budget

See Attached) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit A



Project: Reese Water Improvements

Project Summary
Preliminary Cost Estimate

Date of Estimate December 2020

Department: Engineering Services - CIP QTY Unit Unit Price I Extended Amount
TOTAL PER SECTION

SECTION A S 817 304. 67

SECTION B 1, 875, 705 11

SECTION C 1, 465,397.79

SECTION D 878 675.00

SECTION E 1, 309, 116. 78

SUBTOTAL S 6,346,199.33

CITY OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME 1 2% 1 $ 126 923. 99

CONTINGENCY 1 8% 1 Is 507, 695.95

SUBTOTAL $ 6,980,8t9:27

ENGINEERING FEES FOR DESIGN 1 10% 698 081. 93

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION FEESJEOR 1 6% 418 849. 16

ESTIMATED PROJECVTOTAL $ 8,097,780.35

PHASE 1- IMMEDIATE FUNDING NEEDS
ENGINEERING FEES FOR DESIGN 698081. 93

AND FOR 418, 849.16INSPECTION

EASMENTIROW ACQUISITION( LINE ITEM 4 ON ALL SECTION COST ESTIMATES 300,000.00

CITY OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME 126,923. 99

TOTAL PHASE 1 1, 416,931. 08



Project: Reese Water Improvements - Section A PreWninary Cost Estimate

Date of Estimate: December 2020

Department: Engineering Services - CIP QTY Unit Unit Price Extended Amount

General

1 MOBILIZATION I LS 40,000.00 S 40,000. 00

2 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM 3, 969 LF 2.00 7,938.00

3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT, AND

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND

CONTROL - SWPPP

1 LS 3, 000. 00 3,000.00

4 EASMENT/ROW ACQUISITION 1 LS 50,000.00 50,000.00

5 TRAFFIC CONTROL 2 1 MO 1 $ 5, 000. 001 10,000.00

Street Re atr

6 JASPHALT REMOVAL 0 Sy Is 10. 00 S - 

7 2" HMAC TYPE C 0 SY I $ 105. 00 S - 

8 IFLOWABLEFILL 978 1 CY IS 150. 00 S 146,666. 67

Water hn rovements

9 6" C- 900 PVC PIPE [ OPEN CUT 480 LF I 65. 00 31. 260. 00

10 8" C- 900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT) 3, 300 LF 80.00 264,000.00

11 12" C-900 PVC PIPE (OPEN CUT) 0 LF 100.00

12 8" SLICK BORE 500 LF 200. 00 100,000 00

13

12" C-900 PVC PIPE IN 18" STEEL CASING - 
BORED UNDER LUBBOCK AND WESTERN

RAILWAY, INCLUDING LUBBOCK WESTERN

RAILWAY COORDINATION AND INSURANCE

0 LF 500. 00

14 12" X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE 1 EA 4,000.00 4,000. 00

15 6" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 12 EA 1, 500.00 18, 000. 00

16 S" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 4 EA 2, 500. 00 S 10,000. 00

17 12" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 1 EA S 3, 500.00 S 3, 500. 00

18 FIRE HYDRANT 12 EA 4, 000. 00 48, 000. 00

19 SERVIC CONNECTIONS 36 EA 2.250.00 81, 000 00

20 IPERMITS 1 0 1 LS 35, 000. 00

SUBT;OTAL 817, 304. 67

CITY OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME 2% 16,346. 09

CONTINGENCY 8° a 65,384.37

SUBTOTAL $ S", 035. 13

ENGINEERING FEES FOR DESIGN 10% 89.903 51

CONSTRUCTION INSPECPION. FEESIEOR Is 53,942 11

ESTIMATED PROJECT TOTAL $ 1, 042, aso. 7S



Project: Reese Water Improvements - Section B Preliminary Cost Estimate

Date of Estimate: December 2020

Ilepartment: Engineering Services - CHI' QTY Unit Unit Price Extended Amount

General

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS S 90,000.00 90,000. 00

2 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM 7, 497 LF 2. 00 14, 994. 00

3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT, AND

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND

CONTROL- SWPPP

1 LS 3,000. 00 3,000.00

4 EASMENT/ ROW AC UISITION 1 LS 100,000.00 100,000. 00

5 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1 2 1 MO. 5,000. 00 10, 000. 00

SOW( Repair

6 JASPHALT REMOVAL 1 2,889 SY is 10. 00 28,888. 89

7 2" HMAC TYPE C 1 2, 889 1 SY 105. 001 S 303, 333. 33

8 IFLOWABLEFILL 1, 926 1 CY 150. 00 288, 888. 89

Water Improvements

9 6" C-900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT 640 LF 65. 00 S 41, 600. D0

10 8" C-900 PVC PIPE ( OPEN CUT) 6, 500 LF 80.00 S 520,000.60

11 12" C- 900 PVC PIPE ( OPEN CUT) 0 LF 100. 00 S - 

12 8" SLICK BORE 500 LF 200. 00 100,000. 00

13

12" C- 900 PVC PIPE IN 18" STEEL CASING - 

BORED UNDER LUBBOCK AND WESTERN

RAILWAY, INCLUDING LUBBOCK WESTERN

RAILWAY COORDINATION AND INSURANCE

0 LF 500. 00 S - 

14 12" X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE 4 EA 4,000. 00 16,000.00

15 6" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 16 EA 1, 500.00 24,000.00

16 8" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 7 EA S 2,500.00 S 17, 500.00

17 12" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 3 EA 3, 500. 00 10, 500. 00

18 FIRE HYDRANT 16 EA 4,000.00 64,000.00

19 SERVIC CONNECTIONS 108 EA 2,250.00 243,000 00

20 IPERlvffTS 0 LS 35, 000. 00

SUBTOTAL 1, 875, 705. 11

CITY OF LUBBOCK STAFF TI 2% s 37, 514. 10

CONTINGENCY 80% 1 IS 15005641

SUBTOTAL S 2,963; 215, 62

ENGINEERING FEES FOR DESIGN 10% 206 327.56

CONSTRUQTION INSPECTION FEES/ EOR 1 60% 1 1$ 123, 796. 54

EST1MATED PROJECT TOTAL, $ 2,393 99.72



Project: Reese Water Improvements - Section C Preliminary Cost Estimate

Date of Estimate: December 2020

Department: Engineering Services - CIP QTY Unit Unit Price Extended Amount

General

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 70, 000. 00 S 70,000. 00

2 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM 7, 560 LF 2. 00 S 15, 120.00

3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT, AND

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND

CONTROL - SWPPP

1 LS 3.000. 00 3, 000.00

4 EASMENT/ROW AC UISITION 1 LS 50,000.00 50, 000. 00

5 ITRAFFIC CONTROL 3 MO. 5, 000. 001 15, 000 00

StfiefRepair

6 JASPHALT REMOVAL 1, 822 1 SY 1 $ 10.001 S 18,222.22
7 2" HMAC TYPE C 1, 822 1 SY 1 $ 105. 001 S 191, 333. 33

8 IFLOWABLEFILL 1 1, 215 1 CY 150.00 182,222.22

Water Itn rovements

9 6" C- 900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT) 600 LF 65. 00 39, 000. 00

10 8" C-900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT) 4, 100 LF 80.00 S 329, 000. 00

11 12" C- 900 PVC PIPE ( OPEN CUi,) 2, 500 LF 100.00 S 250,000.00

12 8" SLICK BORE 500 LF 200. 00 100,000. 00

13

12" C- 900 PVC PIPE IN 18" STEEL CASING - 

BORED UNDER LUBBOCK AND WESTERN

RAILWAY, INCLUDING LUBBOCK WESTERN

RAILWAY COORDINATION AND INSURANCE

0 LF 500.00

14 12" X 8' TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE 3 EA 4,000. 00 12,000.00

15 6" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 15 EA 1. 500.00 22, 500. 00

16 8" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 7 EA 2,500.00 S 17.500.00

17 12" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 3 EA 3,500.00 10, 300. 00

18 FIRE HYDRANT 15 EA 4,00000 60,000. 00

19 SERVIC CONNECTIONS 36 EA 2, 250 00 81, 000 00

20 PERMITS 0 LS 35,000.00 S

SUBT6TAL 1, 465, 397.7$ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME 2% 29,307. 96

CONTINGENCY 80/. Is 117, 23182

SUBTOTAL 1, 611, 937.56
ENGINEERING FEES FOR DESIGN 109'. 161 193. 76

CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION FEESMOR 6% 96,716. 25

ESTIMATED PROJECT TOTAL s 1, 869, 847. 56



Project: Reese Water Improvements - Section D Preliminary Cost Esthnate

Date of Estimate: December 2020

Department, Engineering Services - CIP QTY Unit Unit Price Extended Amount

General

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 45, 000. 00 45,000 00

2 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM 7, 088 LF 2. 00 14, 175. 00

3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT, AND

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND

CONTROL- SWPPP

1 LS 3,000.00 3,000.00

4 EASMENT/ROW ACQUISITION i LS 50, 000. 00 50, 000. 00

5 ITRAFFIC CONTROL 3 1 MO. 5, 000. 001 S 13, 000. 00

Si Repair6
ASPHALT REMOVAL1 0 Sy is 10. 00 7

2" HMAC TYPE C 1 0 1 SY is 105. 00 S 8

PLOWABLE FILL1 0 1 CY is 150. 00 Water

Improvements9

6" C- 900 PVC PIPE (OPEN CUT) 600 LF 65, 00 S 39, 000.00 10
8" C- 900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT 0 LF 80. 00 11

12' C- M PVC PIPE (OPEN CUT) 6, 150 LF 100. 00 615, 000.00 12

8" SLICK BORE 0 LF 200. 00 13

12" 

C- 900 PVC PIPE IN 18" STEEL CASING - BORED

UNDER LUBBOCK AND WESTERN RAILWAY, 
INCLUDING LUBBOCK WESTERN RAILWAY

COORDINATION AND INSURANCE0

LF 500. 00 14

12" X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE0 EA 4, 000. 00 15

6" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX IS EA 1, 500. 00 22, 500. 00 16

8' GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 0 EA 2, 500. 00 17

12" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 3 EA 3, 500. 00 S 10, 500 00 18

FIRE HYDRANT 15 EA 4, 000. 00 S 60, 000. 00 19

SERVIC CONNECTIONS2 EA 2, 250. 00 4, 50000 20

PERMITS 0 LS 35, 000. 00 S - SUBTOTAL

878, 675.00 CITY

OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME 2% S 17, 573. 50 CONTINGENCY

8% 7029400 SUBTOTAL., 

966, S42. so ENGINEERING

FEES FOR DESIGN 10'/ e 96, 654.25 CONSTRUCTION

INSPECTION FEESfEOR6/. 57 992. 55 ESTIMATED

PROJECT TOTALt $ 1, t21., 139. 30



Project: Reese Water Improvements - Section E Preliminary Cost Estimate

to of Estimate: December 2020

Department, Engineering Services - CIP QTY Unit Unit Price Extended Amount

General

1 MOBILIZATION 1 LS 65,000. 00 65, 000. 00

2 TRENCH SAFETY SYSTEM 6,395 LF 2.00 12,789.00

3

TEMPORARY EROSION, SEDIMENT, AND

WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION AND

CONTROL - SWPPP

1 LS 3, 000. 00 S 3,000.00

4 EASMENTIROW ACQUISITION 1 LS S 50,000.00 S 50,000. 00

5 ITRAFFIC CONTROL 1 3 MO. 5, 000. 001 S 15, 000. 00

SRepair 6

JASPHALT REMOVAL 622 SY Is 10. 00 6, 222. 22 7

2" HMAC TYPE C 622 SY I $ 105. 00 S 65, 333. 33 8

IFLOWABLEFILL 415 CY I S 150, 001 S 62, 222.22 Water

Improvements9

6" C- 900 PVC PIPE (OPEN CUT) 400 LF 65. 00 26, 000.00 10

8" C- 900 PVC PIPE OPEN CUT4, 760 LF 80. 00 S 380, 800.00 11

12" C- 900 PVC PIPE (OPEN CUT) 930 LF 100. 00 S 93. 000.00 12

8" SLICK BORE 500 LF 200. 00 S 100, 000.00 13

12" 

C- 900 PVC PIPE IN 18" STEEL CASING - BORED

UNDER LUBBOCK AND WESTERN RAILWAY, 

INCLUDING LUBBOCK WESTERN RAILWAY

COORDINATION AND INSURANCE 150

LF 500. 00 S 75, 000.00 14

12" X 8" TAPPING SLEEVE AND VALVE1 EA 4, 000. 00 4, 00000 15

6' GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 10 EA 1. 500. 00 15. 000. 00 16

8" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 7 EA 2, 500. 00 17, 500.00 17

12" GATE VALVES AND VALVE BOX 2 EA S 3, 500. 00 S 7, 000. 00 18

FIRE HYDRANT 10 EA 4, 00000 40, 000.00 19

SERVIC CONNECTIONS 105 EA 2, 250. 00 236, 250.00 20

1PERMITS 1 I LS 35, 000- 001 35, 000.00 SUBTOTAL

1, 3",116, 78 CITY
OF LUBBOCK STAFF TIME2" 0 1 Is 26, 182. 34 CONTINGENCY

840I I $ 104, 72934 SUBTOTAL, 

S 1, 440, 028. 46 ENGINEERING

FEES FOR DESIGN 10% 1 1$ 144, 002.85 CONSTRUCTION

INSPECTION FEESMOR 6° io 6, 401. 71 ESTIMATED

PROJECT TOTAL, $ i, 67o s, o1



Exhibit B

Payment Certification

See Attached) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit B



PAYMENT CERTIFICATION

The undersigned certifies on behalf of the City of Lubbock (" City") to the Air

Force Civil Engineer Center (" Air Force") that the information set forth herein is

accurate and complete and that the withdrawal of $ from the ESCA

Account will be paid to for the Project Work more particularly

described in the attached invoice of , dated 1202. _ 

As used herein, " Project Work" has the meaning ascribed to that term in the

Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement for Design, Bidding, Construction and

Management Services dated , 2021, between the City and the Air Force. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

By: 

Name][ Title] - 

Date: 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit B



EXHIBIT C

Consulting Engineer Contract
See Attached) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit C



Exhibit D

Construction Contract

See Attached) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit D



Exhibit E

Funding Schedule
See attached) 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit E



Exhibit F

Change Orders

See Attached)] 

Reese AFB / Environmental Services Cooperative Agreement

01- 20- 21 Final) Exhibit F



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 2
to Contract 15325 with Red River Construction, Co., for the construction of the Southeast Water
Reclamation Plant, Plant 3 Improvements Project.

Item Summary
On August 11, 2020, the City Council awarded Contract 15325 to Red River Construction Company, in
the amount of $7,257,052, for the construction of the Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP)
Plant 3 Improvements Project. The work of the project included replacement of rotating mechanisms in
two secondary clarifiers, replacement of underground and overhead air piping, construction of a return
activated sludge pumping station, and associated electrical improvements.
 
On January 26, 2021, City Council authorized Change Order No. 1 for emergency repairs on a 36-inch
influent pipe, in the amount of $391,736.14, with a 91-day contract extension.
 
Change Order No. 2 will incorporate 11 proposed contract modifications, including additions of air
valves for sludge pumps, modifications of the non-potable water piping network, de-watering of the
aeration basins, and modifications to the aeration diffuser grid.
 
Staff and the consulting engineer negotiated Change Order No. 2 with Red River Construction
Company, in the amount of $308,243.89, with 119 days of additional time for construction.

Fiscal Impact
Change Order No. 2 for $308,243.89, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92444, SEWRP
Improvements Plant 3.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
10112_Resolution (L)) 
10112_Change_Order_2 (L)_Combined (1) 
Change Order No. 1 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 







 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx 8911 Capital of Texas Highway North, Suite 2200, Austin, Texas 78759 

P. 512.453.5383  F. 512.453.0101 

 carollo.com 

August 31, 2021 
 
Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, TX  79401 
 
Subject: SEWRP Plant 3 Improvements Project 

Change Order #2 
 
Dear Mr. Fekete: 

Attached with this letter is documentation for Change Order #2. 
 

Item Description Cost Impact 

Time 

Impact Status 

1 
Four additional combination air valves, one per RAS 

pump 
+$15,556.21 No Time 

Recommended as 

modified by Carollo 

2 Relocation of existing and proposed WAS pumps +$76,918.62 7 days 
Recommended as 

modified by Carollo 

3 New Plant 3 NPW loop +$99,581.72 45 days 
Recommended by 

Carollo 

4 
Additional dewatering pumps for aeration basin 

exploratory work 
+$12,476.19 No Time 

Recommended by 

Carollo 

5 
Additional dewatering pumps for aeration basin 

exploratory work beyond Item 4 
+$19,857.33 7 days 

Recommended by 

Carollo 

6 
Credit for not coating interior concrete surfaces of 

the existing secondary clarifiers 
-$300,000.00 No Time 

Recommended by 

Carollo 

7 Additional electrical junction boxes +$3,721.26 No Time 
Recommended by 

Carollo 

8 
Piping and installation to reconnect existing aeration 

grid to new aeration lateral piping and drops  
+$308,015.43 45 days 

Recommended by 

Carollo 

9 Additional work associated with the NPW line +$46,559.87 10 days 
Recommended as 

modified by Carollo 

10 NPW piping modification at EPS1 +$10,596.44 2 days 
Recommended as 

modified by Carollo 

11 
Substitution of potable water for NPW for RAS pump 

seal water 
+$14,960.82 3 days 

Recommended as 

modified by Carollo 

Total Contract Impacts from CO #2 PCOs: +$308,243.89 +119 days  

 

Items recommended for inclusion with Change Order #2 are described in more detail as follows: 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 2 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

Item 1 

During the submittal process the Engineer identified four combination air valves that were not 
shown on the Drawings. These valves were to be located upstream of each check valve on the 
four RAS pumps to ensure opening of the check valve would not be hindered by air binding 
upon pump startup. 

RRC is requesting $15,556.21 and an additional 7 days of contract time for additional work 
required to purchase and install the four valves. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the 
request, and have found the cost and effort to be in line with what would be expected, but do not 
find a basis for requesting a contract time extension associated with these additional valves. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 1: 

1. Potential Change Order (PCO) #005 dated February 23, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of 

RRC with the proposal and cost backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #005 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 2 

During construction a suggestion was made by SEWRP Staff that WAS pumps that have always 
been at the east end of the aeration basin gallery could be moved to the location previously 
occupied by the RAS pumps near the access stairway at the west end of the aeration basin 
gallery. This relocation is much better for operation and maintenance access, particularly given 
that replacement of the aeration basin influent line under Change Order No. 1 resulted in a 36-
inch pipe crossing the gallery, thereby requiring the addition of a stairway to allow the pipe to be 
crossed to access the east end of the aeration basin gallery. The relocation of the WAS pumps 
also shortens the WAS discharge line, allows the pumps to be oriented in a way providing much 
better access for maintenance, and places the WAS flow meter in a better location for use and 
maintenance. 

The Engineer provided sketches to RRC to help develop an approach and a cost for relocation 
of the WAS pumps. Based upon this information, RRC proposed a cost of $76,918.62 and an 
additional 21 days of contract time for the additional work. The Engineer and RPR have 
reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost and effort to be in line with what would be 
expected, but do not find a basis for requesting a 21-day contract time extension associated 
with this additional work. After further consideration, 7 days contract time extension was 
deemed appropriate. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 2: 

1. PCO #006 dated April 21, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 3 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

2. PCO #006 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 3 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project did not intend any change to the non-potable water (NPW) 
service lines serving Plant 3. NPW service is required for hose valve stations near the new RAS 
pump station, and secondary clarifiers, and for the spray bars in the new scum pump stations. It 
was understood that NPW water had not been available to the final clarifiers in Plant 3 for some 
time, but the project assumed the service could be re-established from the Plant 3 Effluent 
Pump Station. RRC performed exploratory digging to locate the NPW piping. No live pipe could 
be located. Eventually, a large plug made up of IFAS media was removed in the main NPW line 
connecting from the Plant 4 Effluent Pump Station. Ultimately it was determined that the only 
practical way to re-establish NPW service in Plant 3 was to install a new NPW loop. RRC was 
requested to submit a proposal for constructing a new NWP loop in Plant 3. 

RRC proposed a cost of $99,581.72 and an additional 45 days of contract time for the additional 
work. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost and effort to 
be in line with what would be expected, and also agree with the request for a 45-day contract 
time extension associated with this additional work. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 3: 

1. PCO #007 dated April 27, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #007 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 4 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project requires each of the three existing aeration basins be 
dewatered to allow installation of new aeration piping to the existing aeration grids. RRC began 
dewatering Basin 1 first. There were instances of the basin being dewatered to a certain point 
on a Friday, only to return on Monday morning to find the basin filled with water again. This 
discovery led to the need to employ additional pumps to allow pumping that would overcome 
whatever inflow was happening. 

RRC proposed a cost of $12,476.19 for the additional work associated with procurement and 
installation of additional pumps. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have 
found the cost and effort to be in line with what would be expected. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 4: 

1. PCO #008 dated May 5, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 4 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

2. PCO #008 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 5 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project requires each of the three existing aeration basins be 
dewatered to allow installation of new aeration piping to the existing aeration grids. After 
additional pumping efforts associated with PCO #008 RRC continued to find the aeration basin 
re-filling with water, and no apparent point of leakage could be found. This continued issue led 
to the need to employ additional 6-inch, 4-inch, and 3-inch pumps to allow pumping that would 
overcome the inflow that was being experienced. 

RRC proposed a cost of $19,857.33 for the additional work associated with procurement and 
installation of additional pumps. If pumping would need to be continued after the first week, the 
cost was proposed at $12,821.40 per week. The proposal also requested a 7-day extension to 
the contract time. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost 
and effort to be in line with what would be expected, and also agree with the request for a 7-day 
contract time extension associated with this additional work. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 5: 

1. PCO #009 dated May 5, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #009 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 6 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project specified the interior concrete surfaces of the existing 
secondary clarifiers be coated with an elastomeric polyurethane coating. After dewatering 
Secondary Clarifier No. 2, the concrete was found to be in excellent condition. Because of the 
condition of the concrete, the coating of the concrete was reconsidered, and a credit to not coat 
the concrete was requested. 

RRC proposed a credit of $300,000.00 for not coating the interior concrete surfaces of the 
existing secondary clarifiers. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have 
found the credit to be in line with what would be expected. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 6: 

1. PCO #010 dated May 5, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #010 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 5 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

Item 7 

Relocation of the WAS pumps as recommended in Item 2 of this Change Order No. 2 resulted 
in two existing electrical junction boxes being in conflict with relocated WAS pump suction 
piping. To address this issue, a pair of new junction boxes were proposed by RRC. The wiring 
from the existing boxes will be extended to the new boxes that will be mounted below the WAS 
pipe. 

RRC proposed a cost of $3,721.26 for the additional work associated with procurement and 
installation of the new junction boxes. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and 
have found the cost and effort to be in line with what would be expected. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 7: 

1. PCO #011 dated July 19, 2021 from Heath Staffeld of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #011 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 8 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project did not intend any change to the existing aeration basin 
diffuser grids, other than reconnection of the grids to the new aeration lateral piping. The new 
piping reduces the number of drops to the aeration grids from 28 per basin to six per basin, 
thereby preparing for application of future dissolved oxygen control when Plant 3 is converted to 
biological nutrient removal (BNR). Details for how the connection from the new drops to the 
existing aeration grid were not provided, as it was expected that what the Contractor found upon 
dewatering the basin could impact the approach taken. Once the first of the three aeration 
basins was successfully dewatered RRC was able to work with the Engineer and the diffuser 
manufacturer Sanitaire to develop the approach for reconnecting the aeration grid. 

RRC proposed a cost of $308,015.43 and an additional 90 days of contract time for the 
additional work. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost 
and effort to be in line with what would be expected, but do not find a basis for requesting a 90-
day contract time extension associated with this additional work, as the work was a part of the 
original scope of work. After further consideration, 45 days contract time extension was deemed 
appropriate, or 15 days per basin as the Contractor could not have fully understood the effort 
required until the conditions were known upon basin dewatering. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 8: 

1. PCO #012.2 dated August 24, 2021 from Dean Porter of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #012.2 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 6 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

Item 9 

As noted for Item 3, the Plant 3 Improvements Project did not intend any change to the non-
potable water (NPW) service lines serving Plant 3. NPW service is required for hose valve 
stations near the new RAS pump station, and secondary clarifiers, and for the spray bars in the 
new scum pump stations. It was understood that NPW water had not been available to the final 
clarifiers in Plant 3 for some time, but the project assumed the service could be re-established 
from the Plant 3 Effluent Pump Station. RRC performed exploratory digging to locate the NPW 
piping. No live pipe could be located. Eventually, a large plug made up of IFAS media was 
removed in the main NPW line connecting from the Plant 4 Effluent Pump Station, requiring 
removal of an existing valve, and extensive flushing of the line. A new connection was made, 
and a blow-off connection and valve was installed to aid WWTP staff if future problems are 
encountered. The NWP line has also required hand excavation under existing duct banks, 
locating of additional duct banks, and installation of flowable fill. 

RRC proposed a cost of $46,559.87 and an additional 17 days of contract time for the additional 
work. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost and effort to 
be in line with what would be expected, but do not find a basis for requesting a 17-day contract 
time extension associated with this additional work. After further consideration, 10 days contract 
time extension was deemed appropriate. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 9: 

1. PCO #013 dated July 29, 2021 from Dean Porter of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #013 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 10 

As noted for Item 3, the Plant 3 Improvements Project did not intend any change to the non-
potable water (NPW) service lines serving Plant 3, but a new NPW loop is needed to allow the 
new systems to function properly. As part of the new NPW loop a new pipe has been installed 
from the discharge of the existing NPW pump at the Plant 3 Effluent Pump Station. This pipe 
was run straight from the pump discharge at an elevation approximately 5 feet above the slab. 
The City staff has requested this pipe be lowered so that it may be stepped over, rather than 
ducked under, for improved safety when performing maintenance activities in the pump station 
area. 

RRC proposed a cost of $10,596.44 and an additional 4 days of contract time for the additional 
work. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost and effort to 
be in line with what would be expected, but do not find a basis for requesting a 4-day contract 
time extension associated with this additional work. After further consideration, 2 days contract 
time extension was deemed appropriate. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 10: 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 7 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

1. PCO #014 dated July 30, 2021 from Dean Porter of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #014 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 

Item 11 

The Plant 3 Improvements Project includes new return activated sludge (RAS) pumps, with two 
pumps dedicated to each secondary clarifier. The new pumps are vertical turbine solids 
handling pumps (VTSH) that have allowed complete replacement of the existing RAS pumps, 
and offer improved maintenance access and improved process control. The RAS pumps are 
critical to the treatment process. As with other types of pumps, VTSH pumps have shaft seals 
that require seal water to keep them clean and lubricated. It is common to provide non-potable 
seal water to pumps in a wastewater application, and the design intent was to provide NPW to 
the pump seals. Given the experience on the project with the NPW piping, and the plugging that 
was cleared in the existing NPW line as described in Item 9, the pump manufacturer, Flowserve, 
has recommended that the VTSH pump seal water to be provided be potable water rather than 
NPW. After further consideration, the Engineer agrees that given the critical nature of the RAS 
pumps to the treatment process, and the investment associated with this type of pump it would 
be best to avoid potential issues that might be associated with the use of NPW as seal water, 
and instead provide a backflow preventer and new 1-inch potable water service line from an 
available potable water line near the Plant 3 blower building. 

RRC proposed a cost of $14,960.82 and an additional 7 days of contract time for the additional 
work. The Engineer and RPR have reviewed the proposal, and have found the cost and effort to 
be in line with what would be expected, but do not find a basis for requesting a 7-day contract 
time extension associated with this additional work. After further consideration, 3 days contract 
time extension was deemed appropriate. 

The following documents are attached to support Item 11: 

1. PCO #015 dated August 4, 2021 from Dean Porter of RRC with the proposal and cost 

backup for the additional work. 

2. PCO #015 Response from Jason Anderson of Carollo Engineers with the Engineer’s 

response to the proposal. 



Mr. Zoltan Fekete, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
City of Lubbock, Texas 
August 31, 2021 
Page 8 
 

8900B.30 | 21-08-31_Fekete.docx  

carollo.com 

The change in contract price associated with items 1 through 11 is summarized below: 

� Original contract price : $7,257,052 

� Net increase in price of this change order: +$308,243.89 

� Contract price with all approved change orders: $7,957,032.03 

� Original contract time: 600 Days to Final Completion 

� Net increase of time with this change order: +119 days 

� Contract time with all approved change orders: 810 days to Final Completion 

After you have had a chance to review this information, we are available to discuss any 
questions or comments, at your convenience. Please contact, Jason Anderson, or myself with 
any questions. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide construction phase services for the City of Lubbock. 
We look forward to continuing to work with you and City staff on this project through its 
successful completion. 

Sincerely, 
 
CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. 
 
 
 
Hani E. Michel, P.E. 
Project Manager 
 
JEA:jea 
 
cc: Josh Kristinek, P.E. 
 Mary Gonzales 
 Mark Aaron Carpenter 
 Jason Anderson, P.E. 





As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data 
Products of the Government Code,  this product 
is for informational purposes and may not have been 
prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or 
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
 survey and represents only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries.

Southeast Water Reclamation Plant 
Plant 3 Improvements

¯

0 250 500 750 1,000125 Feet

E 37TH ST
GU

AV
A A

VE



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Staff Time 10,293$                    

Advertising for RFQ, RFP 2,201                        

Professional Services Contract 13422 with Carollo Engineers 643,431                    

Professional Services Contract with PSC for Clarifier Design 49,900                      

Payment to UCA for emergency repairs at Headworks 888,859                    

Contract with Dowtech Contractors for Clarifier Repair 324,000                    

Contract 15325 with Red River Construction, Co., 7,257,052                 

Contract with Carollo Engineers for EOR/RPR Services 646,120                    

Contract with Wunderlich Malic for SCADA Integration 88,850                      

Change Order 1 to Contract 15325 with Red River 391,736                    

Agenda Item  September 28, 2021

Change Order 2 to Contract 15325 with Red River 308,244                    

Encumbered/Expended To Date 10,610,686               

Estimated Cost for Remainaing Appropriation

SEWRP Improvements 520,581                    

Remaining Appropriation 520,581                    

Total Appropriation 11,131,267$             

City of Lubbock

92444

SEWRP Improvements Plant 3

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

September 28, 2021



Project Name SEWRP Improvements  Plant 3 Project Number 92444

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project includes the design and construction of Southeast Water Reclamation Plant (SEWRP) Plant 3 improvements to the 

secondary clarifier system, sludge pumping system, and air handling system.

This project will upgrade the plant to stop short circuiting of the clarifier mechanisms which have caused a Notice of Violation with 

the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). This project will also repair and replace the air header and associated 

piping and pumps to prepare for the future SEWRP Phase IV project that includes Biological Nutrient Removal.

Project Start Date - Design:2/14/2018

Project End Date - Design: 2/18/2020

Bid Date - Construction: 5/8/2020

Award Date for Bid - Construction:8/6/2020

Project Start Date - Construction:9/28/2020

Project End Date - Construction:11/14/2022

Project Justification

Replacing and updating aging infrastructure on Plant 3 improves the wastewater treatment plant performance and will reduce 

emergency maintenance expenditures and system failures.

Project History

$1.0 million was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

$1.5 million was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

$4.8 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$956,267 was appropriated in FY 2019-20, BCR# 1920-5, March 10, 2020.

$1,200,000 was appropriated in FY 2019-20, BCR# 1920-9, July 8, 2020.

$800,000 was appropriated in the FY 2020-21 Budget, Ord. No. 2020-O0123, October 1, 2020.

$875,000 was appropriated in FY 2020-21, Budget Amendment No. 7, Ord. No. 2021-O0001, January 26, 2021.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  10,131,267  0  0  0  0  0  0  10,131,267 

Design and Engineering  1,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,000,000 

Total Project Appropriation  11,131,267  0  0  0  0  0  0  11,131,267 



Project Name SEWRP Improvements  Plant 3 Project Number 92444

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2011 Tax and Waterworks 

CO's

 307,251  0  0  0  0  0  0  307,251 

FY 2014 Wastewater Revenue 

CO's

 1,520,456  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,520,456 

FY 2015 Wastewater Revenue 

CO's

 402,599  0  0  0  0  0  0  402,599 

FY 2016 Wastewater Revenue 

CO's

 988,043  0  0  0  0  0  0  988,043 

FY 2017 Wastewater Revenue 

CO's

 692,749  0  0  0  0  0  0  692,749 

FY 2018 Water/Wastewater Cash  1,500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,500,000 

FY 2019 Water/Wastewater Cash  900,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  900,000 

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater Cash  3,145,169  0  0  0  0  0  0  3,145,169 

FY 2021 Water/Wastewater Cash  1,675,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,675,000 

Total Funding Sources  11,131,267  0  0  0  0  0  0  11,131,267 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Streets: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 16027, with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., for rebuilding sections of Frankford
Avenue and Alcove Avenue.

Item Summary
This project will rebuild sections of Frankford Avenue and Alcove Avenue.  The construction limits on
Frankford Avenue are 114th Street to 130th Street, and the construction limits on Alcove Avenue are
82nd Street to 98th Street.  A total of 8 inches of road surface and base will be removed.  Soft places in
subgrade will be repaired, and 6 inches of new asphalt stabilized base with 2 inches of asphalt driving
surface will be placed along with new pavement striping.

In response to ITB 21-16027-TF, bids were received and opened on August 11, 2021, from the following
vendors:
  

Vendor Amount
Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd., Lubbock, Texas $1,224,680.00
West Texas Paving, Inc., Wolfforth, Texas $1,327,480.00
Allen Butler Construction, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $1,947,827.99

The contract is awarded by the unit price. The total amount of the award is estimated based on proposed
quantities, and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities.  The price per
unit will not change.  The contract has a term of 90 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed and
contains appropriate liquidated damages.

Staff recommends award of this contract to the lowest bidder, Lone Star Dirt and Paving of Lubbock,
Texas, for the estimated cost of $1,224,680.00.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $1,224,680.00 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92697 FY 2020-21 Street
Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Lone Star Dirt and Paving 



Contract 16027 - Lone Star Dirt and Paving 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary - Contract 16027 











Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Contract 15647 2021 Asphalt Repair 1,543,596$                    

Contract 15648 2021 Concrete Repair 1,445,700                      

Contract 14517, Amendment Rejuvinator 2021 994,800                         

Contract 15772, 2021 MicroSurfacing 3,538,696                      

Contract  15778, Wausau Avenue (S. of 82nd St) Rebuild 337,471                         

Contract 15796, Nuisance Branches and Trees Service 

Contract- Asplundh Tree Expert LLC 29,962                            

Contract 15875, Brick Paving Project 13th and Texas-MH 

Civil Constructors Inc. 722,000                         

Contract 15964, MLK Ave. Rebuild 709,950                         

In-house Mill and Re-lay 500,000                         

Plotter 5,843                              

Bid Cost 933                                 

City of Lubbock Staff Time 472                                 

Agenda Items, September 28, 2021

Contract 16027 Rebuild Frankford & Alcove Avenues 1,224,680                      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 11,054,103                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Street Maintenance * (199,088)                        

Remaining Appropriation (199,088)                        

Total Appropriation 10,855,015$                  

*  The remaining portion of this item will be paid from funding in FY 2021-22 budget.

Street Maintenance 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

September 28, 2021

92697







 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 21-16027-TF 

Frankford and Alcove Rebuild 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on July 25 & August 1, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from July 23 to August 11, 2021. 

7 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

51 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

26 vendors downloaded the documents. 

6 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 14.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Mayor in executing
Amendment No. 1 to the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) Contract
HHS000780500002 and related documents, under the Substance Use Disorder Community Health
Worker program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and through
HHSC.

Item Summary
This contract provides funding from the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) to
continue the Community Health Worker program within the Health Department. The role of the
Community Health Worker is to increase opportunities for those who use substances, including opioids,
to reduce harm related to substance use, increase retention in substance use and mental health services,
help individuals address medical needs, and help individuals who desire change, to build a foundation
for their recovery.

This grant currently funds the salary and benefits of 5.5 staff members to include 1 lead case manager, 2
case managers, 2 health promotion workers, and part of the assistant director and management assistant
salaries.

Fiscal Impact
This is an existing grant that will add funds for three additional years from September 1, 2021, through
August 31, 2024. The total grant is $1,392,000.
FY 2022, September 1, 2021, through August 31, 2022: $464,000
FY 2023, September 1, 2022, through August 31, 2023: $464,000
FY 2024, September 1, 2023, through August 31, 2024: $464,000

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 

















































































































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 15.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution ratifying the acts of the Mayor in executing
Contract HHS001081400001 and all related documents, under the Substance Use Disorder Prevention
Grant Program, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and through the
Texas Health and Human Services Commission.

Item Summary
The contract provides funding from the Texas Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC) to
continue the Prevention Resource Center (PRC) and support substance use disorder prevention in the
community. This contract combines the PRC and Community Coalition Partnership grants into one
grant. The required match of $15,000 for this grant will be funded from the Health Services General
Fund Account.

Fiscal Impact
The new contract term will be September 1, 2021, through August 31, 2024. The total grant award is
$708,791.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
10004_Prevention_Grant_Contract_(L)1.1 (8) 



































































































































































































































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 16.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15629 and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, with Methodist Children's
Hospital d/b/a Covenant Children's Hospital of Lubbock, to provide Network of Substance Use Disorder
Treatment Services.

Item Summary
In response to RFP 21-15629-MA, one proposal was submitted to provide substance use disorder
treatment services. Staff recommends award of the contract to Covenant Children's Hospital of Lubbock.

Covenant Children's Hospital of Lubbock will serve individuals with qualifying substance use disorders,
who have been screened and approved by Health Department staff. The goal is to establish a diverse
group of substance use disorder treatment options to meet the individual needs of those entering
treatment. 

The contract is for a term of 1 year with the option of three 1-year extensions.

Fiscal Impact
The contract is funded through the Substance Use Prevention Service Grants from the Texas Department
of Health and Human Services.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
10082_Contract (L)_15629 (1) 
Project Summary Sheet 





























































 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

 
RFP 21-15629-MA Substance Use Disorder Outpatient Treatment Services 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal November 15 and November 22, 2020 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on BidSync.com from November 15, through December 10, 2020. 
28 vendors viewed using BidSync.com.  
3 vendor downloaded the documents. 
9 vendors were notified separately.  
1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 17.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 364432, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance with Purchasing Association of
Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract 00154, for the purchase of cubicles for the Health Department.

Item Summary
This purchase of cubicles will allow the City of Lubbock Heath Department to expand the number of
staff work areas in the department.  The purchase will accommodate work areas for 20 employees, as
well as expanded storage for COVID-19 response supplies.    

Fiscal Impact
For this $76,052.19 Purchase Order, $49,000.00 is funded through public health grants, and the
remaining $27,052.19 will be charged to the General Fund.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution - OfficeWise Commercial Interiors 
PO 364432 - OfficeWise Commercial Interiors 





 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Base PWE Entry DIR Con 5.000 71.0200 EA 355.10 10/13/2021

4 -Cir 6 FTL

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Concave 1.000 109.2100 EA 109.21 10/13/2021

 LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 24W

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Rect 10.000 115.9100 EA 1,159.10 10/13/2021

LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 30W

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Rect 7.000 122.9500 EA 860.65 10/13/2021

LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 36W

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Rect 8.000 137.0200 EA 1,096.16 10/13/2021

LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 48W

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Rect 14.000 174.5400 EA 2,443.56 10/13/2021

LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 60W

Work Surf, SQ-Edge Concave 20.000 192.6300 EA 3,852.60 10/13/2021

LAM Top/TP Edge 24D 36W

Panel, TAC AC-Barr Thin Base 3.000 333.6600 EA 1,000.98 10/13/2021

PWR 4-CIRC W/COM Lc 67H 24W



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Panel, TAC AC-Barr Thin Base 25.000 264.3200 EA 6,608.00 10/13/2021

Barrier NPWR 67 H 24 W

Panel, TAC AC-Barr Thin Base 12.000 354.7700 EA 4,257.24 10/13/2021

PWR 4-CIRC W/COM Lc 67H 30W

Panel, TAC AC-Barr Thin Base 44.000 388.9400 EA 17,113.36 10/13/2021

PWR 4-CIRC W/COM Lc 67H 36W

Panel, TAC Acout, Thin Base 2.000 319.5900 EA 639.18 10/13/2021

Barrier NPWR 67H 36W

Panel, TAC Acout, Thin Base 8.000 423.1100 EA 3,384.88 10/13/2021

Barrier NPWR 67H 48W

Panel, TAC Acout, Thin Base 2.000 353.0900 EA 706.18 10/13/2021

Barrier NPWR 67H 48W

Panel, TAC AC-Barr Thin Base 9.000 494.4600 EA 4,450.14 10/13/2021

PWR 4-CIRC W.COM Lc 67H 60W

Conn, 2-Way 90 Deg 30.000 64.3200 EA 1,929.60 10/13/2021

Thin Base Hard 67H



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

3Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Conn, 3-Way 90 Deg 9.000 104.8600 EA 943.74 10/13/2021

Thin Base Hard 67H

Conn, 4-Way 90 Deg 4.000 134.6700 EA 538.68 10/13/2021

Thin Base Hard 67H

Fin End Thin BAse 67H 25.000 23.4500 EA 586.25 10/13/2021
Draw Rod 62H 41.000 10.7200 EA 439.52 10/13/2021
Carpet Grippers 25/PKG 5.000 19.7700 EA 98.85 10/13/2021
15 AMP Receptacle 4 Circuit 2.000 84.0900 EA 168.18 10/13/2021

Duplex Circuit A 6/PKG

15 AMP Receptacle 4 Circuit 2.000 84.0900 EA 168.18 10/13/2021

Duplex Circuit A 6/PKG

15 AMP Receptacle 4 Circuit 2.000 84.0900 EA 168.18 10/13/2021

Duplex Circuit A 6/PKG

15 AMP Receptacle 4 Circuit 4.000 84.0900 EA 336.36 10/13/2021

Circuit D 6/PKG

Verus WK Chair Assembled 20.000 555.0000 EA 11,100.00 10/13/2021

Interweave 2 Suspension Back



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

4Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Ped W-Pull 20.000 236.9900 EA 4,739.80 10/13/2021

FEESTD 24D B/B/F

Ped W-Pull 20.000 218.9600 EA 4,379.20 10/13/2021

FEESTD 24D B/B/F

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

5Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series



 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

6Page    -
Date    - 9/13/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 364432 OP000
Branch/Plant        81148

OFFICEWISE COMMERCIAL INTERIORS CITY OF LUBBOCK
1200 S TAYLOR HEALTH DEPARTMENT

806 18TH STREETLUBBOCK TX 79101
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/13/2021
Taken ByRequested 10/13/2021 K MORGAN

PACE #00154/PUR 16127Delivery T NORRIS REQ 57729

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Lock Plug and Key 3.000 3.9000 EA 11.70 10/13/2021

Chrome UM Series

Shelving Wire 36X24X72 4.000 208.0000 EA 832.00 10/13/2021
Rack Wire 4 Tier 48X18X BK 7.000 193.3300 EA 1,353.31 10/13/2021

Total Order

NET DUE ON RECEIPTTerms 76,052.19





  REV. 1 2020     

    Rev. 1/2020 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained 

herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions 

provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the 

City’s terms and conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 

provided herein shall prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the 

parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, 

(b) Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number 

if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number 

of the container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods 

shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common 

carriers and any applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments 

not accompanied by packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer 

actually receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply 

with all provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does 

not fully conform, this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming 

tender, provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer 

of his intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase 

order or purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release 

number and the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, 

if any, shall be listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should 

be attached to the invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 

79457.  Payment shall not be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to 

Seller if it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered 

or given by the Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of 

Lubbock with a view to securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or 

amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event 

this contract is canceled by Buyer pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other 

rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any 

special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, 

such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer 

and to the extent feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid 

which Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind 

and specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods 

of purchase.  In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  

Seller’s  current  prices  on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without 

liability to Seller for breach or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency 

has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 

commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established 

commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for the purpose of securing business.  For breach of 

viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to any other right of rights to cancel this 

contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover without liability and to 

deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage 

or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do 

so shall render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will 

conform to the specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished 

by the Seller, if any. In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the 

specifications shall govern. Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller 

represents and warrants fault-free performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data 

(including, but not limited to calculating, comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware 

products delivered and services provided under this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may 

be from the effective date of this Contract. The obligations contained herein apply to products and services 

provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party involved in the creation or development of the products 

and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the 

obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock availing itself of any of its rights under the 

law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining to termination or default. The 

warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties specified in this Contract, 

and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the Seller’s liability 

which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document incorporated 

in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the 

event the product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or 

replacement at the Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a 

reasonable time, correction made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller 

agrees to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement 

will give rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no 

warranty that the production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no 

event shall Buyer be liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of 

infringement of the like.  If Seller is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the 

Buyer to this effect in writing within two weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  

notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If 

Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the goods in accordance with the specifications will result in 

infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds 

by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will 

terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal 

year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract 

is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 

contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give 

such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of 

termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting 

them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered 

portion of this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller 

becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in 

lieu of any other remedies which Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the 

Buyer in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery 

of the Seller of a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the 

order is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is 

in addition to and not in lieu of the rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment 

of any terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the 

party whose performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is 

unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of 

any obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or 

delegation by Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with 

this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part 

by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by 

consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and 

performance  provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by 

Seller as part of his bid, is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also 

as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the 

Uniform Commercial Code is used in this agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever 

the term “Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial 

Code as adopted in the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question 

the other party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to 

perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding 

party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs 

and expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract 

or which may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was 

caused through negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its 

employees, if any, and the Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys 

and all costs and other expenses arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment 

shall be rendered against the Buyer in any such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and 

discharge the same Seller expressly understands and agrees that any bond required by this contract, or 

otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless 

and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of 

this contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to 

be in default of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into 

pursuant to this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to 

submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, 

sex or natural origin in consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 

equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision 

in, or related to, this document, this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 

authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 

reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under 

this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, 

Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such 

audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any 

payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent 

from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization 

Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into 

a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or 

provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested 

parties at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  

Instructions for completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies 

that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will 

not boycott Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any 

facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

31.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization 

Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering 

into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with 

or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

32. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

33. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the 

following email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: 

orr@mylubbock.us. Please send this request to this email address for it to be processed.

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


Leeanne Bergen

Marta Alvarez
City of Lubbock
1625 13th Street

Lubbock TX 79401
806.775.2572
MAlvarez@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us

Lacy Johnson

806.763.2500

ljohnson@officewiseco.com

LMB1199-2

COL - Health Department
PACE #00154 - Lorell

9/13/2021

Quotation______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Prepared For:

Account Manager:

Designer:

Date:
Expires:
Quote #:

Purchase Order Made Out To:
Officewise Commercial Interiors

1200 S. Taylor
Amarillo, TX  79101

*Installation charges must be shown as a separate line item
PO must contain OMNIA #BNR482

9/27/2021

Qty Mfg Description List Sell Ext Sell
HMI

A1322.06E

*Base Pwr Entry,Dir Con 4-Circ,6Ft L5 $212.00 $71.02 $355.10

HMI

A2310.2424L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Rect, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 24W1 $326.00 $109.21 $109.21

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A2310.2430L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Rect, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 30W10 $346.00 $115.91 $1,159.10

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A2310.2436L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Rect, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 36W7 $367.00 $122.95 $860.65

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A2310.2448L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Rect, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 48W8 $409.00 $137.02 $1,096.16

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A2310.2460L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Rect, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 60W14 $521.00 $174.54 $2,443.56

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A2333.2436L

*Work Surf,Sq-Edge Concave Corner, Lam Top/TP Edge 24D 36W20 $575.00 $192.63 $3,852.60

LBF *neutral twill
LBF *neutral twill
WL *sandstone

HMI

A8125.6724G

*Panel,Tac Ac-Barr,Thin Base Pwr 4-Circ W/Com Lc 67H 24W3 $996.00 $333.66 $1,000.98

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6724N

*Panel,Tack Acoust,Thin Base-Barrier Npwr 67H 24W25 $789.00 $264.32 $6,608.00

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral

City of Lubbock - Health Department - HMI AO 1.sp4 Page 1 of 5



2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6730G

*Panel,Tac Ac-Barr,Thin Base Pwr 4-Circ W/Com Lc 67H 30W12 $1,059.00 $354.77 $4,257.24

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6736G

*Panel,Tac Ac-Barr,Thin Base Pwr 4-Circ W/Com Lc 67H 36W44 $1,161.00 $388.94 $17,113.36

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6736N

*Panel,Tack Acoust,Thin Base-Barrier Npwr 67H 36W2 $954.00 $319.59 $639.18

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6748G

*Panel,Tac Ac-Barr,Thin Base Pwr 4-Circ W/Com Lc 67H 48W8 $1,263.00 $423.11 $3,384.88

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6748N

*Panel,Tack Acoust,Thin Base-Barrier Npwr 67H 48W2 $1,054.00 $353.09 $706.18

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8125.6760G

*Panel,Tac Ac-Barr,Thin Base Pwr 4-Circ W/Com Lc 67H 60W9 $1,476.00 $494.46 $4,450.14

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea
2I *grasscloth-Pr Cat 1
07 *grasscloth lea

HMI

A8220.67H

*Conn,2-Way 90 Deg,Thin Base Hard 67H30 $192.00 $64.32 $1,929.60

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral

HMI

A8230.67H

*Conn,3-Way 90 Deg,Thin Base Hard 67H9 $313.00 $104.86 $943.74

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral

HMI

A8240.67H

*Conn,4-Way 90 Deg,Thin Base 67H4 $402.00 $134.67 $538.68

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral

City of Lubbock - Health Department - HMI AO 1.sp4 Page 2 of 5



HMI

A8271.67H

*Fin End,Thin Base 67H25 $70.00 $23.45 $586.25

WL *sandstone
WN *warm grey neutral

HMI

AO215.62

*Draw Rod 62H41 $32.00 $10.72 $439.52

HMI

G1190.01

@Carpet Grippers 25/Pkg5 $59.00 $19.77 $98.85

HMI

K1311.A

*15 Amp Receptacle 4 Circuit, Duplex, Circuit A 6/Pkg2 $251.00 $84.09 $168.18

WN *warm grey neutral
HMI

K1311.B

*15 Amp Receptacle 4 Circuit, Duplex, Circuit B 6/Pkg2 $251.00 $84.09 $168.18

WN *warm grey neutral
HMI

K1311.C

*15 Amp Receptacle 4 Circuit, Duplex, Circuit C 6/Pkg2 $251.00 $84.09 $168.18

WN *warm grey neutral
HMI

K1311.DN

*15 Amp Receptacle 4 Circuit, Duplex, Circuit D 6/Pkg4 $251.00 $84.09 $336.36

WN *warm grey neutral
HMI

PIA1B327AA

*Verus Wk Chair, Assembled,Interweave 2 suspension back,standard-height 
range,synchronous w/ tilt limiter & seat angle,fully adj arms,adj seat depth,not fire 

20 $1,110.00 $555.00 $11,100.00

AJ *adjustable lumbar with sacral support
BK *black base/black frame
36505 *slate
C7 *2 1/2" caster, black yoke, hard floors or carpet
30 *rhythm-Pr Cat 2
15 *rhythm charcoal

HMI

LW100.24BBF

*Ped W-Pull,Freestd 24D B/B/F20 $644.00 $236.99 $4,739.80

SR *3/4-extension roller slides on box drawer, full-extension ball bearing on file drawer
SS *smooth paint on smooth steel
WL *sandstone
KA *keyed alike
1F *standard height
3M *drawer divider in one box drawer, pencil tray in one box drawer, 2 file converters in file drawer

HMI

LW100.24FF

*Ped W-Pull,Freestd 24D F/F20 $595.00 $218.96 $4,379.20

SB *full-extension ball-bearing
SS *smooth paint on smooth steel
WL *sandstone
KA *keyed alike
1F *standard height
1M *2 file converters in each file drawer

HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

226 *key number 226
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

230 *key number 230
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

234 *key number 234
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

238 *key number 238

City of Lubbock - Health Department - HMI AO 1.sp4 Page 3 of 5



HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

242 *key number 242
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

246 *key number 246
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

250 *key number 250
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

254 *key number 254
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

258 *key number 258
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

262 *key number 262
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

266 *key number 266
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

270 *key number 270
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

274 *key number 274
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

278 *key number 278
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

282 *key number 282
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

286 *key number 286
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

290 *key number 290
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

294 *key number 294
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

298 *key number 298
HMI

1B2JK7-

*Lock Plug and Key,Chrome UM Series3 $10.00 $3.90 $11.70

302 *key number 302
LLR

LLR 69145

SHELVING,WIRE,36X24X724 $312.00 $208.00 $832.00

LLR

LLR 70061

RACK,WIRE,4-TIER,48X18,BK7 $290.00 $193.33 $1,353.31

City of Lubbock - Health Department - HMI AO 1.sp4 Page 4 of 5



$210,300.00
$76,052.19

Ext. List:
Subtotal:

Total List:
Total Sell:

Furniture Project Payment Terms:

Special Order Furniture is non-returnable

Design and Project Management Services: Hourly accrual of work performed, to be billed monthly - Rate: $75.00
Monthly Payment - billable hours based on work completed.
Payment due upon receipt of invoice - standard 15 day period
Furniture/Parts Order - 50% deposit due at time of order
Second Deposit due if product is stored beyond 30 days from time of receiving to our warehouse - 40% due.
Final balance due upon completion of delivery

Review all furniture finishes prior to placing order
Please review fabrics and finishes for accuracy before placing order.  If fabric or finish samples are needed, please 
contact your sales representative at 806.763.2500. Once fabrics and finishes are approved, please sign below and 
include with Purchase Order.

X___________________________________________________
Customer Signature - Date
I agree fabrics and finishes on this quote are accurate.  
I understand special order furniture cannot be returned.

$210,300.00

$76,052.19

City of Lubbock - Health Department - HMI AO 1.sp4 Page 5 of 5



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 18.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31061849, in accordance with BuyBoard Contract 617-20, with Farber Specialty Vehicles, for the
purchase of a 2021 Mobile Medical Health Vehicle, for the Health Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31061849 for $284,785, is for the purchase of a 2021 Mobile Vaccination Bus. The
vehicle will be purchased from Faber Specialty Vehicles. The department will use this vehicle to deliver
vaccination services/initiatives to neighborhoods in locations that are most convenient to those
populations.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31061849 for $284,785 is funded from the American Rescue Plan Grant Account.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Interim Director of Fleet Services

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Quote 
Mobile_Vac. (L) Sample_Floor_Plan (1) 





 

 

 

 
 

 
TO: SHIP TO: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK        
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY:   

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 9/21/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31061849 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

FARBER SPECIALTY VEHICLES CITY OF LUBBOCK
5858 SCARBOROUGH BLVD FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVECOLUMBUS OH 43232
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered                              .Freight9/21/2021
Taken ByRequested 2/21/2022 K MORGAN

BUYBOARD 617-20/PUR 16154Delivery N DODSON REQ 57840

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Side sliding windows w/ alumin 3.000 554.0000 EA 1,662.00 2/21/2022

INV

Carefree Mirage Lateral Arm Bo 1.000 5,512.0000 EA 5,512.00 2/21/2022

INV

Hydraulic Leveling and Stabili 1.000 5,832.0000 EA 5,832.00 2/21/2022

INV

Back-up Camera System, 7" LCD 1.000 1,460.0000 EA 1,460.00 2/21/2022

INV

CAT 6 Network 1.000 7,590.0000 EA 7,590.00 2/21/2022

INV

20KW Water Cooled Diesel Gener 1.000 14,572.0000 EA 14,572.00 2/21/2022

INV

Exterior Graphics Package (1-4 2.000 5,839.0000 EA 11,678.00 2/21/2022

INV

Midmark 272 Airlift Stool 3.000 EA 2/21/2022

INV



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 9/21/2021P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 31061849 OP000
Branch/Plant         3526

FARBER SPECIALTY VEHICLES CITY OF LUBBOCK
5858 SCARBOROUGH BLVD FLEET SERVICES

206 MUNICIPAL DRIVECOLUMBUS OH 43232
LUBBOCK TX 79404

Ordered .Freight9/21/2021
Taken ByRequested 2/21/2022 K MORGAN

BUYBOARD 617-20/PUR 16154Delivery N DODSON REQ 57840

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Medical Grade Refrigerator Wit 1.000 2,350.0000 EA 2,350.00 2/21/2022

INV

Mobile Medical Health Vehicle 1.000 231,779.0000 EA 231,779.00 2/21/2022

INV

Medical Grade Freezer With Tem 1.000 2,350.0000 EA 2,350.00 2/21/2022

INV
Total Order

NET 30Terms 284,785.00

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $284,785.00 awarded to Farber Specialty Vehicles of Columbus, OH, on 
_________________, 2021. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by reference: Quote dated 
August 17, 2021, from Farber Specialty Vehicles of Columbus, OH, and BuyBoard Contract 617-20. 
Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK ATTEST: 

___________________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Daniel M. Pope, Mayor Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 



    REV. 9/2021     

    Rev. 9/2021 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

IMPORTANT: READ CAREFULLY  
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TX 
1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   
Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, 
(b) Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number 
if applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number 
of the container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods 
shall be suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common 
carriers and any applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments 
not accompanied by packing lists. 
2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 
reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 
3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer 
actually receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 
4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply 
with all provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does 
not fully conform, this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming 
tender, provided, where the time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer 
of his intention to cure and may then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase 
order or purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release 
number and the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, 
if any, shall be listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should 
be attached to the invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 
79457.  Payment shall not be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to 
Seller if it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered 
or given by the Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of 
Lubbock with a view to securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or 
amending, or the making of any determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event 
this contract is canceled by Buyer pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other 
rights and remedies, to recover or withhold the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any 
special tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, 
such special tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer 
and to the extent feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid 
which Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind 
and specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods 
of purchase.  In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  
Seller’s  current  prices  on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without 
liability to Seller for breach or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency 
has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for 
commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established 
commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for the purpose of securing business.  For breach of 
viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to any other right of rights to cancel this 
contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover without liability and to 
deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage 
or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do 
so shall render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will 
conform to the specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished 
by the Seller, if any. In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the 
specifications shall govern. Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller 
represents and warrants fault-free performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data 
(including, but not limited to calculating, comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware 
products delivered and services provided under this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may 
be from the effective date of this Contract. The obligations contained herein apply to products and services 
provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party involved in the creation or development of the products 
and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the 
obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock availing itself of any of its rights under the 
law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining to termination or default. The 
warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties specified in this Contract, 
and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the Seller’s liability 
which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document incorporated 
in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 
promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the 
event the product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or 
replacement at the Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a 
reasonable time, correction made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller 
agrees to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement 
will give rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no 
warranty that the production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no 
event shall Buyer be liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of 
infringement of the like.  If Seller is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the 
Buyer to this effect in writing within two weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  
notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If 
Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the goods in accordance with the specifications will result in 
infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 
12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the 
availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds 
by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will 
terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal 
year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract 
is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 
contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give 
such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of 
termination. 
13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting 
them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered 
portion of this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller 
becomes insolvent or commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in 
lieu of any other remedies which Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the 
Buyer in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery 
of the Seller of a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the 
order is terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is 
in addition to and not in lieu of the rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment 
of any terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the 
party whose performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is 
unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of 
any obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or 
delegation by Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with 
this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part 
by a waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by 
consideration and is in writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and 
performance  provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by 
Seller as part of his bid, is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also 
as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the 
Uniform Commercial Code is used in this agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Whereever 
the term “Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial 
Code as adopted in the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question 
the other party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to 
perform.  In the event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding 
party may treat this failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 
employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs 
and expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract 
or which may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was 
caused through negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its 
employees, if any, and the Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys 
and all costs and other expenses arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment 
shall be rendered against the Buyer in any such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and 
discharge the same Seller expressly understands and agrees that any bond required by this contract, or 
otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless 
and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of 
this contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to 
be in default of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into 
pursuant to this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to 
submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, 
sex or natural origin in consideration for an award. 
25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, 
equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 
its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 
and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision 
in, or related to, this document, this provision shall control. 
26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly 
authorized audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 
reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under 
this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, 
Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such 
audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any 
payments due Contractor. 
27.  ASSIGNING OR SUBLETTING THE CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, 
or any portion of the contract, without written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract 
Management.  Should consent be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on 
insurance from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
29. HOUSE BILL 1295 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTED PARTIES.  House Bill 1295, adopted by the 84th 
Legislature, created §2252.908, Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering 
into certain contracts with a governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state 
agency a disclosure of interested parties at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the 
governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for completing Form 1295 are available at: 
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 
30. CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material 
contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and 
conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict 
between these terms and conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and 
conditions provided herein shall prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed 
upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
31. TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2252. The undersigned representative of the undersigned 
company or business, being an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government 
Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify that the company named above is not listed on the website of 
the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the listing of companies that are identified under Section 
806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further certify that should the above-named company enter 
into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which 
do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist Organization, I will immediately notify the City of 
Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department.  
32.  TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, CHAPTER 2270 This section applies only to a contract that: (1) is 
between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of 
$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A 
governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott 
Israel during the term of the contract. 
33.  TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 
contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. To the 
extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) 
of the Texas Government Code; the City of Lubbock has designated the following email address for which 
public information requests may be made by an emailed request. Please send this request to this email address 
for it to be processed: orr@mylubbock.us.



7052 Americana Parkway
Columbus, OH 43068
Toll Free: (800) 331-3188
Fax: (614) 759-2098

Name: City of Lubbock

Contact: Dom Esperat

Address: 206 Municipal Drive, P.O. Box 2000

City, ST, Zip: Lubbock, Texas 79457
Telephone: (806) 775-2370
Email: desperat@mylubbock.us TOTAL PRICE $284,785.00

CONTACT DELIVERY TERMS TX BB #

Donavin Farber 3-5 Months Net 30 #617-20

VENDOR PART # QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE
055CH290020 1 MOBILE MEDICAL HEALTH VEHICLE 29' 231,779.00$                  231,779.00$              

OPTIONS 

INTERIOR OPTIONS
102AA000001 3 Side sliding windows w/ aluminum mini blind 554.00$                          1,662.00$                  

EXTERIOR OPTIONS
105AA000003 1 Carefree Mirage lateral arm box awning, 18' 5,512.00$                       5,512.00$                  
105AA000030 1 Hydraulic leveling and stabilizing jacks 5,832.00$                       5,832.00$                  

AUDIO/VIDEO OPTIONS
110AA000060 1 Back-up camera system, 7" LCD color monitor 1,460.00$                       1,460.00$                  

COMPUTER AND SATELLITE
125AA000030 1 CAT 6 network 7,590.00$                       7,590.00$                  

GENERATOR AND POWER SUPPLIES 120-240 VOLT OPTIONS
140DA000010 1 20KW water cooled diesel generator, compartment installed, remote start.stop (1 standard) 14,572.00$                     14,572.00$                

MISCELLANEOUS
103AA000004 2 Exterior graphics package (1-4 units required) 5,839.00$                       11,678.00$                

NON CONTRACT ITEMS

MEDICAL EQUIPMENT
3 Midmark 272 Airlift Stool INCLUDED INCLUDED 
1 Medical Grade Refrigerator with temperature readout 2,350.00$                       2,350.00$                  
1 Medical Grade Freezer with temperature readout 2,350.00$                       2,350.00$                  

TOTAL UNIT PRICE 284,785.00$         

DATE

August 17, 2021

QUOTATION

SHIPPED VIA

Farber

Page 1 of 1

mailto:desperat@mylubbock.us#




7052 Americana Parkway

Columbus, OH 43068

Toll Free: (800) 331-3188

Fax: (614) 759-2098

Name: City of Lubbock

Contact: Dom Esperat

Address: 206 Municipal Drive, P.O. Box 2000

City, ST, Zip: Lubbock, Texas 79457
Telephone: (806) 775-2370

Email: desperat@mylubbock.us TOTAL PRICE $284,785.00

CONTACT DELIVERY TERMS TX BB #

Donavin Farber 3-5 Months Net 30 #538-17

VENDOR PART # QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

055CH290020 1 MOBILE MEDICAL HEALTH VEHICLE 29' 231,779.00$                  231,779.00$              

OPTIONS 

INTERIOR OPTIONS
102AA000001 3 Side sliding windows w/ aluminum mini blind 554.00$                          1,662.00$                  

EXTERIOR OPTIONS
105AA000003 1 Carefree Mirage lateral arm box awning, 18' 5,512.00$                       5,512.00$                  
105AA000030 1 Hydraulic leveling and stabilizing jacks 5,832.00$                       5,832.00$                  

AUDIO/VIDEO OPTIONS
110AA000060 1 Back-up camera system, 7" LCD color monitor 1,460.00$                       1,460.00$                  

COMPUTER AND SATELLITE
125AA000030 1 CAT 6 network 7,590.00$                       7,590.00$                  

GENERATOR AND POWER SUPPLIES 120-240 VOLT OPTIONS

140DA000010 1 20KW water cooled diesel generator, compartment installed, remote start.stop (1 standard) 14,572.00$                     14,572.00$                

MISCELLANEOUS

103AA000004 2 Exterior graphics package (1-4 units required) 5,839.00$                       11,678.00$                

NON CONTRACT ITEMS

MEDICAL EQUIPMENT

3 Midmark 272 Airlift Stool INCLUDED INCLUDED 

1 Medical Grade Refrigerator with temperature readout 2,350.00$                       2,350.00$                  

1 Medical Grade Freezer with temperature readout 2,350.00$                       2,350.00$                  

TOTAL UNIT PRICE 284,785.00$         

DATE

August 17, 2021

QUOTATION

SHIPPED VIA

Farber

Page 1 of 1

mailto:desperat@mylubbock.us#




   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 19.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 16023, with Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC, for the renovations of the
Abernathy Landfill Gate House, located at 17304 North FM 2528, Abernathy, Texas.

Item Summary
It is the intent of the specification that the new work will provide a watertight facility.

Scope of work includes:
• Removal of existing sealant at all masonry control joints, around doors, site joints, vertical skylight
panel joints and penetrations on exterior wall elevations as described in the project specifications;
• Remove the existing widow units in their entirety;
• Remove existing seal, apron and install new window seal, apron (paint to match existing finish);
• Provide new perimeter 40 mil flexible flashing around new aluminum window units;
• Install new aluminum window units as specified, style, profile and color to match the existing windows;
• Cut glass and install a half round ticket window detail in glazing panels as indicated on the drawings;
• Remove interior drywall as shown the drawings and replace with new drywall materials with finish to
match existing wall system as specified;
• Remove existing VCT tile from the concrete floor as specified and provide a (salt and pepper) grind
and polish and seal with low sheen finish;
• Include an application of two coats of elastomeric coating to plaster elevations of the building as
described in project specifications; and
• Install a new mini-split outdoor unit and mini-split indoor unit as per the schedule on the drawing.

 Contractor will provide a 5-year warranty on labor and materials

In response to RFP 21-16023-KM, a sole proposal was received and opened on August 12, 2021, from
Johnson General Contractors, in the amount of $112,600.

The Staff and Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to Johnson General Contractors
of Lubbock, Texas, for $112,600. Time for completion is 90 Calendar Days with liquidated damages of
$250 for each consecutive calendar day.

Fiscal Impact
The contract price of $112,600 is funded in Capital Improvements Project 8637, Abernathy Landfill -
Gate House Renovations.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager



Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary 













Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Armko Industries, Inc. - Contract 15978 3,700$                         

Agenda Item September 28, 2021

112,600                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 116,300                       

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Construction Contingencies 53,700                         

Remaining Appropriation 53,700                         

Total Appropriation 170,000$                     

 Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC - Contract 16023

Abernathy Landfill - Gate House Renovations

September 28, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

8637



Project Name Abernathy Landfill - Gate House Renovations Project Number 8637

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Facilities Management

Wesley Everett

Upgrade/Major Maintenance

Approved

Reseal all masonry joints around doors, windows, skylights, site joints and penetrations.  Replace 15 windows and frames.  Apply 

elastomeric coating to plaster walls.  Interior renovations as required.

FY2021 - 22

Bid out completed plans and start weatherproofing project on facility. 

Start Date:1/2019

Bid Date - Design: N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design:N/A

Project Start Date - Design: N/A

Project End Date - Design: 8/28/2020

Bid Date - Construction: 7/1/2021

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 08/31/2021

Project Start Date - Construction: 09/13/2021

Project End Date - Construction: 12/31/2021

Project Justification

Current Facility has many leaks that will damage the facility if not addressed.

Project History

The gate house is used to weigh the amount of waste entering into the landfill.  This facility was constructed several years ago and due 

to sub-quality installation, the facility has degraded especially during wet weather.

FY 2018-19: Finalize scope to develop plans and specifications for weatherproofing and interior renovations.

FY 2019-20: Plans and specifications complete to weatherproof facility. Ready to bid. No capital spent due to COVID-19 spending 

restrictions.

FY2020-21

Bid out project and began repairs.

FY2021-22

Completed Project

$120,000 was appropriated in the FY 2018-19 Budget, Ord. No. 2018-O0109, October 1, 2018.

$50,000 was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  160,000  6,400  0  0  0  0  0  166,400 

Design and Engineering  10,000  1,000  0  0  0  0  0  11,000 

Total Project Appropriation  170,000  7,400  0  0  0  0  0  177,400 



Project Name Abernathy Landfill - Gate House Renovations Project Number 8637

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2019 General Fund Cash  55,748  0  0  0  0  0  0  55,748 

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  50,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  50,000 

FY 2022 General Fund Cash  0  7,400  0  0  0  0  0  7,400 

Public Works Capital Project Fund  64,252  0  0  0  0  0  0  64,252 

Total Funding Sources  170,000  7,400  0  0  0  0  0  177,400 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 750 Maintenance Savings Estimated  750  750  750  750  0  3,750 

Total Operating Budget Impact  750  750  750  750  750  0  3,750 



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

Project Summary 

RFP 21-16023-KM Abernathy Gatehouse Renovations  
 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on July 21 and July 28, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com from July 20, 2021 to August 17, 2021. 

Notice was published on Bonfire-hub.com from July 20, 2021 to August 17, 2021. 

34 vendors viewed using BidSync.com.  

4 vendors downloaded the documents from Bidsync.com 

32 vendors took documents from Bonfire-hub.com 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 20.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement 16135, with Parkhill, for remaining construction administration
professional services, for the Municipal Parking Garage project.

Item Summary
This contract is for remaining construction administration professional services, and any reimbursable
expenses, related to the Municipal Parking Garage located at 1401 Avenue L.

The term is for 90 consecutive days or the completion of the construction, whichever occurs last.

Fiscal Impact
This contract for $33,170.69 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92672, Municipal Parking Garage.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Parkhill Contract 16135 
Parkhill Professional Services Agreement 16135 - Municipal Parking Garage 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





Page 1 of 10 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No.16135 is entered into this  

  day of September, 2021, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the "City"), a Texas home rule 

municipal corporation, and Parkhill, Smith & Cooper, Inc. (the “Architect”), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Architect to provide remaining construction 

administration professional services for a Municipal Parking Garage (the “Activities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Architect has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for the price 

provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Architect to be a fair and reasonable price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Architect to provide professional services 

related to the Activities, and Architect desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City and the Architect hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption 

for a term of ninety (90) consecutive days or the completion of the Activities, whichever shall occur last. 

ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION 

A. The Architect shall conduct all activities and within such timeframes as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”). 

B. The Architect shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in 

an amount not to exceed Thirty Three Thousand One Hundred Seventy-and 69/100 Dollars ($33,170.69), 

as set forth in Exhibit “A”. 



Page 2 of 10 

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION 

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Architect. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only 

pay the Architect for services actually performed by the Architect up to the date the Architect is deemed to 

have received notice of termination, as provided herein. 

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Architect breaches any term and/or provision of this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at 

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an 

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the 

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative. 

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION 

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another 

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control. 

ARTICLE V. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

A. Existence. The Architect is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing 

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas. 

B. Corporate Power. The Architect has the corporate power to enter into and perform this 

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part 

of the Architect. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Architect and is 

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 



Page 3 of 10 

D. Architect. The Architect maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified 

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all applicable laws, rules, and 

regulations, both state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities 

contemplated hereby. 

E. Performance. The Architect will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement 

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in 

performance of similar professional  services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional  services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Architect warrants to the best of their information, knowledge 

and belief that any materials provided by the Architect for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not 

contain any proprietary material owned by any other party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any 

other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance or contractual obligation relating to the use or 

reproduction of materials. The Architect shall be solely responsible for ensuring that any materials provided 

by the Architect pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this requirement and the Architect agrees to indemnify 

and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused to City or to which City is exposed on account of 

the Architect’s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Architect shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Architect and the City agree that the Architect shall perform the duties under this Agreement 

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or 

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Architect has the sole discretion to determine the manner in 

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the 

Architect and the Architect’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or 

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment 

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 



Page 4 of 10 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 

The Architect shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this 

Agreement, except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and 

substance satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the 

state of Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, 

including without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Architect shall obtain and 

maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved 

subcontractor or sub-consultant of the Architect to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the 

term of this Agreement, commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability 

coverage for non-owned and hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of 

Texas. The insurance companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional 

Liability, the policies will be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of 

liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Per Claim and Annual Aggregate: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer’s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker’s Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Architect shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of the Architect herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the 

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a 

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Architect shall 

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage. 



Page 5 of 10 

The Certificate shall provide 30 day’s notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Architect shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 

Labor Code. Further, the Architect shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and 

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Architect maintains 

said coverage. The Architect may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of 

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in 

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Architect fails 

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Architect shall be in breach hereof and all 

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be 

maintained at the Architect’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Architect may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of the Architect, as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-

consultants. The Architect is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this 

Agreement and the Architect is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage 

of any approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the 

Architect shall be required by the Architect to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the 

Architect and naming said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be 

carried by the Architect in this Agreement. 

The Architect acknowledges that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Architect shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written 

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



Page 6 of 10 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE ARCHITECT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM SUITS, ACTIONS, 

LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, OR 

DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 

REASONABLE EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S 

FEES, FOR INJURY OR DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED 

OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING 

OUT OF, RELATED TO OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ARCHITECT, ITS 

AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, 

OPERATIONS OR OMISSIONS UNDER THIS CONTRACT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION 

OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL 

SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Architect shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto currently in effect at the time of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

A. General. Whenever notice from the Architect to the City or the City to the Architect is required 

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by 

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be 

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the 

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such 

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B.  Architect’s Address.  The Architect’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Parkhill, Smith & Cooper, Inc. 
Mike W. Moss – Principal-In-Charge 
4222 85th Street 
Lubbock, Texas  79423 
Telephone: 806.473.2200 
Facsimile: 806.473.3500 



Page 7 of 10 

C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

City of Lubbock 
Wes Everett – Director Facilities Management 
P.0. Box 2000 
1314 Avenue K 
Lubbock, Texas  79457 
Telephone: 806.775.2275 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day 

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

Provision of Data.  The City shall furnish the Architect non-confidential studies, reports and other 

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Architect’s Services, so long as the City is 

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Architect’s Services under 

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Architect shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such 

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Contract strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not 

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Architect shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The 

City may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Architect’s books and records with 

respect to this Agreement between the Architect and the City. 

C. Records. The Architect shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Architect. 

D. Assignability. The Architect may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval 

of the City. 



Page 8 of 10 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the 

Architect, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in 

the case of the Architect, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK 

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement 

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which 

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Architect and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” attached hereto, contains the entire 

agreement between the City and the Architect, and there are no other written or oral promises, conditions, 

warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein. 

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal – agent relationship between the Architect and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by the City. Any and all final documents, drawings and specifications 

prepared by the Architect as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the 

Architect has been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Architect shall make copies of any 

and all work products for its files. 

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Architect of a breach of this Agreement 

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver 



Page 9 of 10 

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent 

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or 

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Architect. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this 

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are 

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Architect on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall 

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

P. Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 

requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to 

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or 

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: 

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in 

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract 

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 

Q. Professional Responsibility.  All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be 

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing 

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license. 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY  





EXHIBIT “A” 



X:\2019\8717.19\00_ADMIN\00_CONTR\City of Lubbock-Citizen Tower Parking Garage_Construction_2021.9.15.docm

September 15, 2021

Wes Everett- Director Facilities Management
City of Lubbock
PO Box 2000
1625 13th St
Lubbock, TX 79457
(806) 775-2275

RE: Proposal/Scope for Professional Services - Municipal Parking Garage (Construction Balance)

Dear Mr. Everett:

Parkhill, Smith & Cooper, Inc. (A/E) is pleased to have the opportunity to provide Architectural, Interior 
Design & Engineering services to the City of Lubbock (Owner) for a new Municipal Parking Garage. 
(Project). 

The project is located directly south of Citizens Tower.  Scope will include a new 3-level parking garage 
containing approximately 400 parking spaces.  In addition to the parking structure, an access/queuing 
drive will be designed in the current 15th Street right-of-way.  

The City of Lubbock selected Option 1 as defined in the Parkhill, Smith & Cooper, Inc. Municipal Parking 
Study (dated 6/15/17).  The design services to be provided are as follows:  Basic Design Services shall 
include Architectural, Interior Design, Structural, Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Engineering 
Services.  Supplemental services are also shown in Exhibit A and include: Site Development (Civil 
Engineering and Landscape Architecture) and Security Camera and Equipment Specification (FFE).

The Owner and A/E may rely on the initial garage layout selection & scope as the basis of design.  Both 
parties, however, recognize that the initial Information may materially change, and in that event, the 
Owner and A/E shall appropriately adjust the schedule, A/E’s services, and A/E’s compensation, Owner’s 
budget for the cost of Work and Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as necessary to 
accommodate material changes in the Initial Information.

Typical project phases and associated services include: 

 Programming/Scope & Budget 
 Completed

 Schematic Design Phase
 Completed

 Design Development Phase
 Completed

 Construction Documents Phase
 Completed

 Bidding Phase
 Completed



Mr. Wes Everett Page 2 September 15, 2021

 Construction Phase 
 Ongoing Scope of Work

1) A/E, as a representative of Owner, shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
the Contractor’s operations, or as otherwise agreed upon by the Owner and A/E:,  (1) to 
become generally familiar with and to keep with Owner informed about the progress and the 
quality of the portion of the Work completed, (2) to endeavor to guard Owner against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work and (3) to determine in general if the Work is being performed in 
a manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the 
Contract Documents.  A/E shall not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site 
inspections to check the quality or quantity of the means, methods and techniques, 
sequences or procedures or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work 
since these are solely the Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract 
Documents.

2)A/E shall not supervise, direct or have control over the Contractor’s work nor have any 
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
selected by the Contractor nor for the Contractor’s safety precautions or programs in 
connection with the Work. These rights and responsibilities are solely those of the Contractor. 
The Owner agrees that the general contractor shall be solely responsible for jobsite and 
worker safety and warrants that this intent shall be carried out in the Owner’s contract with 
the Contractor.

3)A/E shall not be responsible for any acts or omissions of the Contractor, any subcontractor, any 
entity performing any portions of the Work or any agents or employees of any of them. A/E 
does not guarantee the performance of the Contractor and shall not be responsible for the 
Contractor’s failure to perform its Work in accordance with the Contract Documents or any 
applicable laws, codes, rules or regulations.

4)A/E shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates for 
payment in such amounts in accordance with the Contract Documents.  

5)A/E shall review and approve or take other appropriate action upon the Contractor’s submittals 
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples but only for the limited purpose of 
checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 

6)A/E shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, with supporting 
documentation and data if deemed necessary by the A/E as provided for the Owner’s 
approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents, and may authorize 
minor changes in the Work not involving and adjustment in the contract sum or an extension 
of the Contract Time which are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents.

7)If, due to an error or an omission by A/E, any required item or component of the project is 
omitted from the Construction Documents, A/E shall not be responsible for paying the cost to 
add such item or component to the extent that such item or component would have been 
otherwise necessary to the project or otherwise add value or betterment to the project.

8)A/E shall assist the Owner’s Commissioning Agent with their Agent’s commissioning activities.  

9)A/E shall provide a Warranty Punch List Walk-Thru at approximately eleven (11) months after 
the Date of Substantial Completion.

 Furniture Fixtures and Equipment (FF&E)
 Completed



Mr. Wes Everett Page 3 September 15, 2021

 Use of A/E’s Instruments of Service
 Drawings, Specifications and other Documents, including those in electronic form, prepared 

by A/E and A/E’s Consultants are Instruments of Service for use solely with respect to this 
project.  Any unauthorized use of the Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner’s sole risk 
and without liability to A/E and A/E’s Consultants.  

 Fee Summary 
 Construction Administration $33,170.69

The A/E anticipates that the scope detailed above would require approximately 90 working days for 
completion. Please note, due to extended construction delays and product availability it may extend beyond 
this timeframe.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide professional services to you and look forward to the successful 
completion of the Municipal Parking Garage. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us.

Sincerely,

PARKHILL, SMITH & COOPER, INC. (A/E)

By
Mike W. Moss
Firm Principal

By
Ryan A. Wilkens
Associate

 “The Texas Board of Architectural Examiners, P.O. Box 12337, Austin, Texas 78711-2337 or 333 
Guadalupe, Suite 2-350, Austin, Texas 78701-3942, (512) 305-9000, www.tbae.state.tx.us has jurisdiction 
over complaints regarding the professional practices of persons registered as architects, interior designers, 
landscape architects in Texas.”

http://www.tbae.state.tx.us/


Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Design 452,623$                     

Bidding/Miscellaneous 132                              

Construction 6,788,214                    

Acquisition 145                              

Agenda Item September 28, 2021

33,171                         

Encumbered/Expended To Date 7,274,285                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Construction Contingencies 687,009                       

Remaining Appropriation 687,009                       

Total Appropriation 7,961,294$                  

Parkhill Contract 16135

Municipal Parking Garage

September 28, 2021

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

92672



Project Name Parking Garage Project Number 92672

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Facilities Management

Wesley Everett

New Facility

Approved

Project consists of construction of a Municipal Parking Garage including site improvements and utilities.  The structure will consist of 

three parking levels, two elevators, four stairwells and will connect to an existing tunnel into Citizens Tower.  The project site is 

located in Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas at 14th Street and Avenue L.

Start Date:07/10/2019

Bid Date - Design:N/A

Award Date for Bid - Design:08/13/2019

Project Start Date - Design:08/14/2019

Project End Date - Design:03/11/2020

Bid Date - Construction:05/04/2020

Award Date for Bid - Construction:10/07/2020

Project Start Date - Construction:10/23/2020

Project End Date - Construction:08/19/2021

Project Justification

As per city ordinance, provide required parking spaces for staff, customers and visitors to Citizens Tower.

Project History

FY 19-20 Procured design firm, design completed. 

FY 20-21 Procured contractor and commenced construction.

FY 21-22 Complete construction, punch list items, and warranty items from 1 year of substantial completion.

$7,961,294 was appropriated in FY 2019-20, Budget Amendment No. 31, Ord. No. 2020-O0105, August 25, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

Construction  7,498,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,498,000 

Design and Engineering  462,794  0  0  0  0  0  0  462,794 

Other Activities  500  0  0  0  0  0  0  500 

Total Project Appropriation  7,961,294  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,961,294 



Project Name Parking Garage Project Number 92672

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27

FY 2016 Tax Supported Revenue 

CO's

 500,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  500,000 

FY 2019 Tax Supported Revenue 

CO's

 4,118,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  4,118,000 

FY 2020 General Fund Cash  1,343,294  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,343,294 

General Capital Project Fund  2,000,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  7,961,294  0  0  0  0  0  0  7,961,294 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27Operating Budget Impact

 12,000 Facilities Maintenance and Custodial  12,000  12,000  12,000  12,000  12,000  72,000 

Total Operating Budget Impact  12,000  12,000  12,000  12,000  12,000  12,000  72,000 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 21.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 10024401, with OfficeWise Commercial Interiors, in accordance with Purchasing Association of
Cooperative Entities (PACE) Contract P10045, Omnia Contract BNR105, and Sourcewell Contract
121919-HMN, for replacement furniture, fixtures, and equipment at Citizens Tower and the Utilities
Customer Services Center damaged by the flood event of March 12, 2021.

Item Summary
The scope of work consists of purchase, delivery and installation of replacement furniture, fixtures, and
equipment to match existing products installed in the basements of the UCSC and Citizens Tower. 
Products include desks, chairs, cubicle workstations, file cabinets, desk lamps, conference tables, lobby
furniture, trash cans and other items indicated in the purchase order.

Fiscal Impact
This Purchase Order for $587,612.23 is funded in the General Fund Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager

Attachments
Resolution Officewise Furniture Replacement 
PO for Officewise Furniture Replacement 





















































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 22.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase Order
31061756, with Deere & Company, in accordance with Sourcewell Contract 032119-JDC, for the
purchase of a 2018 John Deere 300G LC FT4 Excavator, for alley maintenance.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 31061756 for $172,000, is for a used 2018 John Deere 300G LC FT4 Excavator,
including a full machine warranty. This equipment is an addition to Fleet, and will be used for alley
maintenance.

The equipment will be purchased from Deere & Company and is made through Sourcewell 032119-JDC.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31061756 for $172,000 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92676, General Fund
Vehicle Replacement FY 2020-21.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 
Budget Detail 













Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

121,989$                     

161,790                       

3 1/2 Ton Pickup (4211) 80,844                         

1 1/2 Ton Pickup (4541) 26,948                         

4 1/2 Ton Pickup (4311) 88,328                         

1 1/2 Ton Pickup (5413) 23,427                         

2 Midsize Sedans (3511) 39,700                         

15 Midsize SUV (5735) 524,400                       

1 Ton Crew Cab (5814) 32,518                         

28,508                         

2 Midsize Sudans (5731) 39,700                         

Radar System (5735) 27,554                         

Police Lights & Equipment (5735) 174,800                       

3/4 Ton Pickup 4X4 (5311) 29,840                         

1/2 Ton Crew Cab 4X4 (5711) 28,640                         

1/2 Ton Crew Cab 4X4 (5719) 27,265                         

Emergency Lights and Equipment 122,510                       

Agenda Item September 28, 2021

Used 2018 John Deere 300G CC FT4 Excavator (5812) 172,000                       

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,750,761                    

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Vehicles and Equipment 174,239                       

Remaining Appropriation 174,239                       

Total Appropriation 1,925,000$                  

Aljon 500 Compactor (5815)

  1 Midsize SUV Parking Control (5735)

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

September 28, 2021

92676

General Fund Vehicle Replacement FY 20-21

165 HP 4X4 tractor (5815)



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 23.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33001539, with Dell Marketing LP, for the purchase of the Pluribus Unified Network
Management and Automation Software, for the City's voice and data networks.

Item Summary
The purchase of the Pluribus Unified Network Management and Automation Software, and support for
the data centers, will enhance the performance and simplify management of the City's voice and data
networks. The purchase includes two 48-port switches with maintenance and support.

The purchase is made available through the State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR)
Contract DIR-TSO-3763.

Fiscal Impact
The purchase cost of $97,015.43 is budgeted in Fiscal Year 2020-21 Equipment Capital Outlay -
Computer Equipment.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Dell Marketing Resolution 
Dell Marketing PO 33001539 





















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 24.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution approving the renewal of the Local Administrative
Agreement Between the Constituent Agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, an
interlocal agreement between the City of Lubbock, on behalf of the Lubbock Police Department, and
Lubbock County, on behalf of the Lubbock County Sheriff and the Lubbock County Criminal District
Attorney, in order to enhance the ability of local law enforcement agencies to identify, investigate, and
deter violent criminal activity throughout Lubbock County.

Item Summary
The Interlocal Agreement with Lubbock County and the participation with the Lubbock Metropolitan
Special Crimes Unit (LMSCU), was originally signed for FY 2018-19, and the agreement has been
renewed annually. Continuing participation by the Lubbock Police Department (LPD) in the LMSCU
will have a positive impact, as the LMSCU successfully performs its mission to further the ability of our
local law enforcement agencies to identify, investigate, and deter violent criminal activity throughout
Lubbock County.

The City of Lubbock and Lubbock County agree to continue to staff the LMSCU, to conduct
investigations of violent crime wherever it may occur or be discovered in Lubbock County.

This is a renewal agreement between Lubbock County and the City of Lubbock with no changes to the
agreement for FY 2021-22.

Fiscal Impact
The LPD will remain responsible for the salary, benefits, and overtime of the LPD officers assigned to
the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Original Agreement 
Metro-Comparitive_ (L)Compensation_Data (3) 
Memo 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 25.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement by and
between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022-High Intensity Drug Trafficking
Area (HIDTA) Task Force Agreement and any associated documents, including an Asset Sharing
Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area. 

Item Summary
Trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area has a substantial and detrimental effect
on the health and general welfare of Lubbock Citizens. Participation with the Lubbock High Intensity
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Task Force, under the purview of the United States Drug Enforcement
Administration (DEA), is effective in combating the problem. 
 
The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) participation in the Lubbock HIDTA will include the following
activities and duties:
  

a. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area by immobilizing targeted violators and
trafficking organizations;
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs; and
c. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional methods of
investigation in order that the Task Force’s activities will result in effective prosecution before the
courts of the United States and the State of Texas.

  
The LPD will detail three (3) experienced officers to the Task Force for not less than two (2) years.
These officers will be under direct supervision and control of DEA supervisory personnel assigned to the
Task Force. The Lubbock Sheriff’s Office and Texas Department of Public Safety will also supply
personnel to the HIDTA. DEA will assign four (4) Special Agents to the Task Force.  DEA will provide
necessary funds and equipment to support the activities of the DEA Special Agents and officers assigned
to the Task Force.  This support will include office space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the
purchase of evidence and information, investigative equipment, training, and other support items.
 
The Department of Justice (DOJ) will receive a minimum of 20 percent of awarded assets as result of
Task Force investigations. Up to 80 percent of the remainder is subject to equitable sharing among the
participating agencies, based on the number of officers assigned to the Lubbock HIDTA at the time of
the seizure.
 
Upon approval, the term of the agreement will be in effect until September 30, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to



LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
the Task Force. The Lubbock HIDTA will, subject to availability of funds, reimburse the LPD for
overtime payments made to its officers assigned to the Task Force, capped at the equivalent of 25% of a
GS-12, Step 1, of the general pay scale for the rest of the United States, per officer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 26.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, by and
between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022 Program-Funded State and Local Task
Force Agreement - Task Force Group (Lubbock) and any associated documents, including an Asset
Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area.

Item Summary
Trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area has a substantial and detrimental effect
on the health and general welfare of Lubbock Citizens.  Participation with the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration (DEA), as part of a task force, is effective in combating the problem. 

The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) participation in a Task Force with the U.S. DEA Lubbock
Resident Office, will include the following activities and duties:
  

a. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area by immobilizing targeted violators and
trafficking organizations;
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs; and
c. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional methods of
investigation in order that the Task Force’s activities will result in effective prosecution before the
courts of the United States and the State of Texas.

The LPD will detail two (2) experienced officers to the Task Force for not less than two (2) years. These
officers will be under direct supervision and control of DEA supervisory personnel assigned to the Task
Force.  DEA will assign five (5) Special Agents to the Task Force.  DEA will provide necessary funds
and equipment to support the activities of the DEA Special Agents and officers assigned to the Task
Force.  This support will include office space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the purchase of
evidence and information, investigative equipment, training, and other support items.

The Department of Justice (DOJ) will receive a minimum of 20 percent of awarded assets as result of
Task Force investigations.  Up to 80 percent of the remainder is subject to equitable sharing among the
participating agencies based on the number of officers assigned to the DEA Task Force Group
(Lubbock) at the time of the seizure.

Upon approval, the term of the agreement will be in effect until September 30, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to



LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
the Task Force. The DEA will, subject to availability of funds, reimburse the LPD for overtime
payments made to its officers assigned to the Task Force, capped at the equivalent of 25% of a GS-12,
Step 1, of the general pay scale for the rest of the United States, per officer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 27.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, and any
associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice,
and the United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2022 -
SURGE-Asset Forfeiture Sharing Agreement, to combat trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in
the Lubbock area.

Item Summary
Trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area has a substantial and detrimental effect
on the health and general welfare of Lubbock Citizens.  Participation with the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration (DEA) SURGE Program, as part of a task force, is effective in combating
the problem. 
 
The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) participation in the SURGE Program with the U.S. DEA
Lubbock Resident Office will include the following activities and duties: 

a. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area by immobilizing targeted violators and
trafficking organizations;
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs; and
c. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional methods of
investigation in order that the Task Force’s activities will result in effective prosecution before the
courts of the United States and the State of Texas.

  
The LPD will detail one (1) experienced officer to the SURGE Program for not less than two (2) years.
These officers will be under direct supervision and control of DEA supervisory personnel assigned to the
Task Force.  DEA will assign five (5) Special Agents to the Task Force.  DEA will provide necessary
funds and equipment to support the activities of the DEA Special Agents and officers assigned to the
Task Force.  This support will include office space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the purchase
of evidence and information, investigative equipment, training, and other support items.
 
The Department of Justice (DOJ) will receive a minimum of 20 percent of awarded assets as result of
Task Force investigations.  Up to 80 percent of the remainder is subject to equitable sharing among the
participating agencies based on the number of officers assigned to the DEA Task Force Group
(Lubbock) at the time of the seizure.
 
Upon approval, the term of the agreement will be in effect until September 30, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to



LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
the Task Force. The DEA will, subject to availability of funds, reimburse the LPD for overtime
payments made to its officers assigned to the SURGE Program, capped at the equivalent of 25% of a
GS-12, Step 1, of the general pay scale for the rest of the United States, per officer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution 
Agreement 























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 28.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, by
and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting through the Texas Department of
Transportation, for the temporary closure of State right-of-way during the 2021 Mayor's Marathon.

Item Summary
The Mayor's Fitness Council is hosting the 2021 Mayor's Marathon in the City of Lubbock on Sunday,
October 31, 2021. Organizers anticipate 1,500 athletes to participate in this one-day event.  A 1-mile
Kids Fun Run will be held for runners under the age of 8. Other events are a 5k (3.1 mile), a
half-marathon (13.1 miles), and a full marathon (26.2 miles). The races will begin and end Downtown at
the Buddy and Maria Elena Holly Plaza where there will be food trucks, local vendors and a festival
atmosphere for spectators.    

The proposed resolution authorizes the Mayor to execute an agreement with the State of Texas acting
through the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), for the temporary closure of State
right-of-way. This agreement is in the best interest of public safety and welfare of the citizens of
Lubbock, to expedite all other traffic matters related to the 2021 Mayor's Marathon.  The following
intersections would be temporarily impacted upon approval of this agreement:

Intersection of US 62/SH 114 (East 19th Street) and Canyon Lakes Drive
Intersection of US 82 (Parkway Drive) and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of IH 27 and Cesar Chavez Drive
Intersection of US 82 (Marsha Sharp Freeway) and Buddy Holly Avenue
Intersection of IH 27 and East Broadway
Intersection of US 84 (Avenue Q) and Glenna Goodacre Boulevard
Intersection of US 82 (Marsha Sharp Freeway) and 9th Street
Intersection of FM 2255 (4th Street) and Indiana Avenue
Intersection of FM 2255 (4th Street) and Quaker Avenue
Intersection of SH 114 (19th Street) and Chicago Avenue
Intersection of US 62/82 (Marsha Sharp Freeway) and Chicago Avenue

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - TxDOT, Temporary Closures - Mayor's Marathon 



Agreement 





Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 1 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 

COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

AGREEMENT FOR THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE 
OF STATE RIGHT OF WAY 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the State of Texas, acting by and through the 
Texas Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the “State,” and the City  
of         Lubbock, TX                      , a municipal corporation, acting by and through its duly 
authorized officers, hereinafter called the “local government.” 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

1. WHEREAS, the State owns and operates a system of highways for public use and 
benefit, including   

2. Intersection of US 62/SH 114 (East 19th) and Canyon Lakes Drive 

3. Intersection of US 82 (Parkway Drive) and Cesar Chavez Drive 

4. Intersection of IH 27 and Cesar Chavez Drive 

5. Intersection of US 82 (MSF) & Buddy Holly Ave 

6. Intersection of IH 27 & East Broadway 

7. Intersection of US 84 (Ave Q) and Glenna Goodacre Blvd 

8. Intersection of US 82 (MSF) and 9th St 

9. Intersection of FM 2255 (4th ST) and Indiana Ave 

10. Intersection of FM 2255 (4th ST) and Quaker Ave 

11. Intersection of SH 114 (19th ST) and Chicago Ave 

12. Intersection of US 62/82 (MSF) and Chicago Ave 

                                      , in          Lubbock                  , County; and 
1.  

WHEREAS, the local government has requested the temporary closure of Intersection of US 

62/SH 114 (East 19th) and Canyon Lakes Drive 

2. Intersection of US 82 (Parkway Drive) and Cesar Chavez Drive 

3. Intersection of IH 27 and Cesar Chavez Drive 

4. Intersection of US 82 (MSF) & Buddy Holly Ave 

5. Intersection of IH 27 & East Broadway 

6. Intersection of US 84 (Ave Q) and Glenna Goodacre Blvd 

7. Intersection of US 82 (MSF) and 9th St 

8. Intersection of FM 2255 (4th ST) and Indiana Ave 

9. Intersection of FM 2255 (4th ST) and Quaker Ave 

10. Intersection of SH 114 (19th ST) and Chicago Ave 

11. Intersection of US 62/82 (MSF) and Chicago Ave 

___________________________________________________ for the purpose of 
conducting a portion of the 26.2 mile run of the Mayors Marathon_________to ________as 
described in the attached “Exhibit A,” hereinafter identified as the “Event;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the Event will be located within the local government’s incorporated area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State, in recognition of the public purpose of the Event, wishes to cooperate 
with the City so long as the safety and convenience of the traveling public is ensured and that 
the closure of the State’s right of way will be performed within the State’s requirements; and 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 2 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

 
WHEREAS, on the    19th       day of        April        , 20 20    , the  __Lubbock City Council 
passed Resolution / Ordinance No.                             , attached hereto and identified as 
“Exhibit B,” establishing that the Event serves a public purpose and authorizing the local 
government to enter into this agreement with the State; and 
 
WHEREAS, 43 TAC, Section 22.12 establishes the rules and procedures for the temporary 
closure of a segment of the State highway system; and 
 
WHEREAS, this agreement has been developed in accordance with the rules and 
procedures of 43 TAC, Section 22.12; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants and 
agreements of the parties hereto, to be by them respectively kept and performed as 
hereinafter set forth, it is agreed as follows: 
 

A G R E E M E N T 
 

Article 1. CONTRACT PERIOD 
This agreement becomes effective upon final execution by the State and shall terminate upon 
completion of the Event or unless terminated or modified as hereinafter provided. 
 
 
Article 2. EVENT DESCRIPTION 
The physical description of the limits of the Event, including county names and highway 
numbers, the number of lanes the highway has and the number of lanes to be used, the 
proposed schedule of start and stop times and dates at each location, a brief description of 
the proposed activities involved, approximate number of people attending the Event, the 
number and types of animals and equipment, planned physical modifications of any man-
made or natural features in or adjacent to the right of way involved shall be attached hereto 
along with a location map and identified as “Exhibit C.” 
 
Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the Event, 
to include but not limited to, plan development, materials, labor, public notification, providing 
protective barriers and barricades, protection of highway traffic and highway facilities, and all 
traffic control and temporary signing.  
B. The local government shall submit to the State for review and approval the construction 
plans, if construction or modifications to the State’s right of way is required, the traffic control 
and signing plans, traffic enforcement plans, and all other plans deemed necessary by the 
State.  The State may require that any traffic control plans of sufficient complexity be signed, 
sealed and dated by a registered professional engineer.   The traffic control plan shall be in 
accordance with the latest edition of the Texas Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.  
All temporary traffic control devices used on state highway right of way must be included in 
the State’s Compliant Work Zone Traffic Control Devices List.  The State reserves the right to 
inspect the implementation of the traffic control plan and if it is found to be inadequate, the 
local government will bring the traffic control into compliance with the originally submitted 
plan, upon written notice from the State noting the required changes, prior to the event.  The 
State may request changes to the traffic control plan in order to ensure public safety due to 
changing or unforeseen circumstances regarding the closure.  



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 3 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

C.  The local government will ensure that the appropriate law enforcement agency has              
reviewed the traffic control for the closures and that the agency has deemed them to be 
adequate.  If the law enforcement agency is unsure as to the adequacy of the traffic control, it 
will contact the State for consultation no less than 10 workdays prior to the closure. 
D.     The local government will complete all revisions to the traffic control plan as requested 
by the State within the required timeframe or that the agreement will be terminated upon 
written notice from the State to the local government.  The local government hereby agrees 
that any failure to cooperate with the State may constitute reckless endangerment of the 
public and that the Texas Department of Public Safety may be notified of the situation as 
soon as possible for the appropriate action, and failing to follow the traffic control plan or 
State instructions may result in a denial of future use of the right of way for three years. 
E. The local government will not initiate closure prior to 24 hours before the scheduled Event 
and all barriers and barricades will be removed and the highway reopened to traffic within 24 
hours after the completion of the Event. 
F. The local government will provide adequate enforcement personnel to prevent vehicles 
from stopping and parking along the main lanes of highway right of way and otherwise 
prevent interference with the main lane traffic by both vehicles and pedestrians.  The local 
government will prepare a traffic enforcement plan, to be approved by the State in writing at 
least 48 hours prior to the scheduled Event.  Additionally, the local government shall provide 
to the State a letter of certification from the law enforcement agency that will be providing 
traffic control for the Event, certifying that they agree with the enforcement plan and will be 
able to meet its requirements. 
G. The local government hereby assures the State that there will be appropriate passage 
allowance for emergency vehicle travel and adequate access for abutting property owners 
during construction and closure of the highway facility.  These allowances and accesses will 
be included in the local government’s traffic control plan. 
H. The local government will avoid or minimize damage, and will, at its own expense, restore 
or repair damage occurring outside the State’s right of way and restore or repair the State’s 
right of way, including, but not limited to, roadway and drainage structures, signs, overhead 
signs, pavement markings, traffic signals, power poles and pavement, etc. to a condition 
equal to that existing before the closure, and, to the extent practicable, restore the natural 
and cultural environment in accordance with federal and state law, including landscape and 
historical features. 
 
Article 4. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
Upon completion or termination of this agreement, all documents prepared by the local 
government will remain the property of the local government.  All data prepared under this 
agreement shall be made available to the State without restriction or limitation on their further 
use. At the request of the State, the Local Government shall submit any information required 
by the State in the format directed by the State. 
 
Article 5. TERMINATION 
A. This agreement may be terminated by any of the following conditions: 
 (1) By mutual written agreement and consent of both parties. 
 (2) By the State upon determination that use of the State’s right of way is not  
  feasible or is not in the best interest of the State and the traveling public. 
 (3) By either party, upon the failure of the other party to fulfill the obligations as set  
  forth herein. 
 (4) By satisfactory completion of all services and obligations as set forth herein. 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 4 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

B. The termination of this agreement shall extinguish all rights, duties, obligations, and 
liabilities of the State and local government under this agreement.  If the potential termination 
of this agreement is due to the failure of the local government to fulfill its contractual 
obligations as set forth herein, the State will notify the local government that possible breach 
of contract has occurred.  The local government must remedy the breach as outlined by the 
State within ten (10) days from receipt of the State’s notification.  In the event the local 
government does not remedy the breach to the satisfaction of the State, the local government 
shall be liable to the State for the costs of remedying the breach and any additional costs 
occasioned by the State. 
 
Article 6. DISPUTES 
Should disputes arise as to the parties’ responsibilities or additional work under this 
agreement, the State’s decision shall be final and binding. 
 
Article 7. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
The State and the Local Government agree that neither party is an agent, servant, or 
employee of the other party and each party agrees it is responsible for its individual acts and 
deeds as well as the acts and deeds of its contractors, employees, representatives, and 
agents. 
 
Article 8. INSURANCE 
A. Prior to beginning any work upon the State’s right of way, the local government and/or its 
contractors shall furnish to the State a completed “Certificate of Insurance” (TxDOT Form 
1560, latest edition) and shall maintain the insurance in full force and effect during the period 
that the local government and/or its contractors are encroaching upon the State right of way. 
B. In the event the local government is a self-insured entity, the local government shall 
provide the State proof of its self-insurance.  The local government agrees to pay any and all 
claims and damages that may occur during the period of this closing of the highway in 
accordance with the terms of this agreement. 
 
Article 9. AMENDMENTS 
Any changes in the time frame, character, agreement provisions or obligations of the parties 
hereto shall be enacted by written amendment executed by both the local government and 
the State. 
 
Article 10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
The local government shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local environmental 
laws, regulations, ordinances and any conditions or restrictions required by the State to 
protect the natural environment and cultural resources of the State’s right of way. 
 
Article 11. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION 
In case one or more of the provisions contained in this agreement shall for any reason be 
held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or 
unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions hereof and this agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained 
herein. 
 
Article 12. NOTICES 
All notices to either party by the other required under this agreement shall be delivered 
personally or sent by certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, addressed to such party at the 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 5 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

following respective addresses: 
  

Local Government:  
 

_____City of Lubbock_______ 
    _____Attn: City Manager________ 
 

____1625 13th St. Room 205_________ 
 

_____Lubbock, Texas 79457_____ 
 

State: 
 

Texas Department of Transportation  
 

__Terry Harris & Steve Warren______ 
 

 __135 Slaton Road________ 
 

___Lubbock, Texas  79404-5201______ 
 

 

All notices shall be deemed given on the date so delivered or so deposited in the mail, unless 
otherwise provided herein.  Either party hereto may change the above address by sending 
written notice of such change to the other in the manner provided herein. 
 
Article 13. SOLE AGREEMENT 
This agreement constitutes the sole and only agreement between the parties hereto and 
supersedes any prior understandings or written or oral agreements respecting the within 
subject matter. 
  



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 6 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

 
 
Each party is signing this agreement on the date stated beside that party’s signature. 

THE CITY OF ___LUBBOCK______ 
Executed on behalf of the local government by: 
 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
 City Official 
 

Typed or Printed Name and Title _________________________________________ 
 

         _________________________________________ 
 
 
  
    

THE STATE OF TEXAS  
Executed for the Executive Director and approved for the Texas Transportation Commission 
for the purpose and effect of activating and/or carrying out the orders, established policies or 
work programs heretofore approved and authorized by the Texas Transportation 
Commission. 
 

By_________________________________    Date__________________________ 
District Engineer 

  



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 7 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

 

Exhibit A 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 8 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

Exhibit B 



Agreement No.________________  

Traffic Closure Incorporated (TEA30A) Page 9 of 9 Rev. 02/22/2019 

Exhibit C 
 
 



Article 3. OPERATIONS OF THE EVENT 
A. The local government shall assume all costs for the operations associated with the 
Event, to include but not limited to,  

• plan development,  

• Donated by Marti Greer BSLT Triathlon Inc 

• materials, 

• Donated by Marti Greer BSLT Triathlon Inc  

• labor,  

• Donated by Volunteers 

• public notification, 

• Donated by Primitive Social  

• providing protective barriers and barricades,  

• Donated by Marti Greer BSLT Triathlon Inc. 

• protection of highway traffic and highway facilities,  

• Due to the Mayors Fitness Council being a 501 (c) (3), the protection of highway 
traffic and highway facilities is being donated 

• all traffic control and temporary signing.  

• Due to the Mayors Fitness Council being a 501 (c) (3), the traffic control and 
temporary signing is being donated 

The required paperwork and plan development and execution have been submitted to 
TXDOT by Marti Greer as of 8/31/2021. 
 



 

August 31, 2021 

To:  Traffic Engineer III 

From:  Marti Greer, Race Director, Mayors Marathon 

Subject: Request for closure, incorporated area, run portion of the event 

The following is submitted relative to the run portion of the marathon that is conducted on  
1.  Intersection of US 62/SH 114 (East 19th) and Canyon Lakes Drive 

2. Intersec*on	of	US	82	(Parkway	Drive)	and	Cesar	Chavez	Drive	

3. Intersec*on	of	IH	27	and	Cesar	Chavez	Drive	

4. Intersec*on	of	US	82	(MSF)	&	Buddy	Holly	Ave	

5. Intersec*on	of	IH	27	&	East	Broadway	

6. Intersec*on	of	US	84	(Ave	Q)	and	Glenna	Goodacre	Blvd	

7. Intersec*on	of	US	82	(MSF)	and	9th	St	

8. Intersec*on	of	FM	2255	(4th	ST)	and	Indiana	Ave	

9. Intersec*on	of	FM	2255	(4th	ST)	and	Quaker	Ave	

10. Intersec*on	of	SH	114	(19th	ST)	and	Chicago	Ave	

11. Intersec*on	of	US	62/82	(MSF)	and	Chicago	Ave	

a. The run portion is conducted in Lubbock on the above listed road ways.   All lanes will be used for the run 
course. Runners will have a tendency to run the shortest course, so they will stay closer to the inside lane/
shoulder area.   A map, not to scale, is enclosed. 

b. The actual start time of the overall event is 7:00am; the run portion that impacts the above mentioned roads 
will see the first runner at approximately 7:00am and the last runner at 1:30pm with this portion of the 
course being cleared by 2:00pm.  The date of this event is October 312, 2021. 

c. The activity involved is running and the total number of people planned for is 2000. 

d. The traffic control plan consists of using the Lubbock Police Department's personnel.  They will man all 
intersections. The runners will follow a lead vehicle.  The usage of 28" traffic cones will be used to separate 
runners from vehicular traffic when feasible.  There will also be a trail vehicle to follow the last runner. 

e. The public purpose of this event is: The Mayor’s Fitness Council was created to promote healthy living. We 
want to drive ideas about healthy living — the way we eat, the way we take care of ourselves. We’ll battle 
it all over time as we continue to do different things. Most of our effort will be around exercise and getting 
people out and being active. 

Thank you so much for the attention to details and for your desire to help our staff to conduct a safe and legal event.  
We appreciate your consideration and look forward to your reply. 

Sincerely, 

Marti Greer 

Marti Greer



 

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT PLAN 

Traffic control for the Mayors Marathon will consist of lead and/or trail vehicles with 

signs having the legend "Runners Ahead”. 

The Lubbock Police Department will provide any additional traffic control deemed 

necessary for the safety of motorists and participants.  A letter from the Lubbock Police 

Department to this affect is included. 

Thank you, 

Marti Greer 

Marti Greer 

806.438.0893 

marti@buffalospringslaketriathlon.com 





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 1.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution approving the Civic Park project to be located at
1301 Broadway Avenue utilizing the Wind + Water design as created by TBG Partners and as
recommended by the Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Reinvestment Zone Board. 

Item Summary
On June 9, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2020-R0187 to approve and adopt the
Downtown Master Plan Update as recommended by the Central Business District Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone (CBD TIF) Board of Directors.  The plan included many
recommendations for downtown redevelopment.  Green space is a key component in the City's plan for
downtown redevelopment, and one of the recommendations is for a large, centralized Civic Park on
Broadway at the former Lubbock Power & Light location. This park will serve as a multi-functional
“living room” for all of Lubbock, filling a great need for an iconic and vibrant hub of activity in the heart
of downtown. 

On December, 15, 2020, the City Council approved Contract 15438 with TBG Partners to provide
professional services for the design of a Downtown Civic Park. The scope of work included schematic
design and cost estimating for a civic park located at 1301 Broadway. TBG Partners was led by a
committee that was appointed by the Mayor, and also conducted two public input sessions throughout
the design process. The final schematic design, Wind + Water, was presented to the City Council on
August 24, 2021. The construction of the park was presented using a three-phase approach, with the
timing of each phase to be dependent upon City Council approval and funding availability:
  

Phase One: Base Scope: $5.89M total 
Phase Two: Preferred Alternates: $3.35M additional 
Phase Three: Tier Two Alternates: $1.57M additional 

On Tuesday, September 7, 2021, the Civic Park Advisory Committee unanimously approved a motion to
recommend that the City move forward with the Downtown Civic Park at the location recommended in
the Downtown Master Plan Update, 1301 Broadway and that, through the CBD TIF, the City move
forward with fundraising for, and construction of, the Wind + Water design concept as presented to the
City Council by TBG Partners on August 24, 2021. 

On Thursday, September 9, 2021, the CBD TIF Board unanimously approved a motion to recommend
the following to the City Council:  

That the City approve the Civic Park Project; and 1.
That the Civic Park be located at 1301 Broadway; and 2.
That the TIF be directed by the City Council to begin fundraising efforts for the park; and 3.
That the recommended design for the Civic Park construction is the Wind + Water design created
by TBG Partners.   

4.



Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Central Business District Tax Increment Financing Board

Attachments
Resolution 
TIF Recommendation 
Committee Recommendation 
Civic_Park_Design (L) 
FUMC Letter of Support 











lubbock civic park
schematic design

Lubbock, Texas
08/24/2021
City of Lubbock

TBG – [210] 366 9933 – tbgpartners.com
430 austin street, suite 100, san antonio, tx 78215
The information shown is subject to change without notice. 8

budget & phasing

budget & phasing



lubbock civic park
schematic design

Lubbock, Texas
08/24/2021
City of Lubbock

TBG – [210] 366 9933 – tbgpartners.com
430 austin street, suite 100, san antonio, tx 78215
The information shown is subject to change without notice.

0 25’ 50’ 100’

9

phasing

base scope

- water feature    $1,305,000
- restroom pav. $912,000
- stage   $893,000
- landscape  $785,000
- MEP   $750,000
- site/civil   $571,000
- public art  $266,000
- audio/visual  $152,000
- brand/signage $133,000
- structural    $66,500
- irrigation    $60,000

TOTAL:     $5.89M

+ demolition      $1,000,000
+ soft costs      $1,000,000
- $$ raised      $3,000,000

FUNDRAISING GOAL: 
  $4.89M

- restroom pav. 
$912,000
--------------- rerererereereeeereeeerrererrerereererererrererrrrererrrrreeeereeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeststsststststststsstststtttttttttttttttttststststssssttttttttttststsststststtttsttttssstsstttttttttttstsstststttttttstsststttttttsttttttttttsttttststttttttttttttststtttsttttstttstttsttttttssttstttsststttss rororororororooororororoorrororororroorrroorrrroroorrrrrrrrorrrrrrrrrrrorrrrroooooooooooooooomoomomommmmmmmommmmmmmmmmmmoooooomooomooooommmmmmmommmmmmmmooooomoomoooommommmmmmommmmmmmmmmoooomomomommmmmmomommmmmmmmmmmoooooomommmmmommmmmmmmmmoooomommmmmmmmmooommmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmooooooommommmmmmmoooommmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmommmmmmmmmmmmmmommmmmmoommmmmmmooommmmmmmmmmmmmommmmmmmmmmmmommmmmmmmooommmmmmommomooooommmmommmmommmoooooommoooomomoooooooo pppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppppavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavavaavavaavavavaaaaaaavavavvavavavvavavvaa ..........
$$9$$$$$$9$9$9$$$$$$9$9$$9$9$$$9$9$9$9$$9$$$$9$9$9$9$9$$9$$9$9$$9$$$9$9$$$9$9$9$99$$$9$$9$9$9$9$$$$$$9999$$$$9$99$9$999$$$$99$9$$99999999999$99$999999$999$9999$999999999$$$$$$$$$$$$$ 111111112112121212121212222222211122222211112222222212222222221111122222112222112222211222122222221221221222222122222222222222222221212222222222222222222222222222222212111122222222111121122,0,0,0,,00,0,0,00,0,000,,0,000,0000000000000, 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

excludes broadway



lubbock civic park
schematic design

Lubbock, Texas
08/24/2021
City of Lubbock

TBG – [210] 366 9933 – tbgpartners.com
430 austin street, suite 100, san antonio, tx 78215
The information shown is subject to change without notice.

0 25’ 50’ 100’

10

phasing

preferred alternates 

- shade armature         $1,330,000
- water feature upgrades    $440,000
- landscape upgrades   $390,000
- site/civil upgrades   $210,000
- MEP upgrades    $138,000
- public art (murals)     $66,000
- interpretive signage     $50,000
- rainwater harvesting     $33,000
- structural upgrades     $33,000

- additional soft costs    $275,000

TOTAL:         $3.35 M

$125k



lubbock civic park
schematic design

Lubbock, Texas
08/24/2021
City of Lubbock

TBG – [210] 366 9933 – tbgpartners.com
430 austin street, suite 100, san antonio, tx 78215
The information shown is subject to change without notice.

0 25’ 50’ 100’

11

phasing

tier 2 alternates 

- full audio/visual           $750,000
- landscape upgrades   $225,000
- solar panels                   $133,000
- site/civil upgrades   $110,000
- conditioned restrooms/av   $40,000
- add’l structure             $33,000
- branding/signage     $15000

- additional soft costs    $275,000

TOTAL:        $1.57 M

A
ve

nu
e 

M



lubbock civic park
schematic design

Lubbock, Texas
08/24/2021
City of Lubbock

TBG – [210] 366 9933 – tbgpartners.com
430 austin street, suite 100, san antonio, tx 78215
The information shown is subject to change without notice.

0 25’ 50’ 100’

12

phasing

- restroom pav. 
$912,000

base scope   $5.89m

 “curb in”

tier 1 alternates   $3.35m
+ broadway
+ shade armature
+ misc improvements/upgrades

 

tier 2 alternates   $1.57m
+ avenue M
+ full A/V
+ adjacent streetscapes (L & 13th)
+ misc improvements/upgrades

      Total: $10.8m

- re- re- rerererere- re- rerer- rererere- re- rerere- rereeereeer- rererererererere- reee-- ereee- e- -- rereeeeesssstttrorotrotrootrotrororooostsstttttrosstsstttrtrotroststsstssststtrtrotrostsstttrtrottroststsststrtttrotrosstssttttroststststrtstsstsstrrotrotstrootrsssttttrssttttr ooooomommmm pmm pm pm pm pmm pm pmm pm pm pm pm pm pm pm poooooommm pm pm pmooommmmm poooommmmmmoooommmmmmmmm poooooommmm pm m pooomommmmmooommm poomm oommmmm poooomoomm ppoooooooooomoo av.av.av.av.av.avav.avavav.avavav.aav.av.v.v.vv.vaaaaav
$91$91$91$$$9$91$91$9$919191$91$91212$9122$91222222$912$91$$9$91$9$91$91222$91$$912$91$91$9$91$91$9122222222$$$91$$91$91$9$912$91222222222$$$9$9911122222$9191222222$$919 222$999 222999 2222$9 22229912222$912$9 2299129 22222222222222$ 22222$$$$ ,000,00,00,000000000,000000000000,00000000000,0000000000000000000000000000000000000,00000000,0000000000000000000000000000,0000000000000000





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 2.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, to execute a Grant
Agreement and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the CH Foundation, for
receipt of Grant Funds for the construction of a Downtown Civic Park, located at 1301 Broadway.

Item Summary
On June 9, 2020, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2020-R0187 to approve and adopt the
Updated Downtown Master Plan as recommended by the Central Business District Tax Increment
Financing Reinvestment Zone (CBD TIF) Board of Directors. The plan includes many recommendations
for downtown redevelopment. Green space is a key component in the City's plan for downtown
redevelopment, and one of the recommendations is for a large, centralized Civic Park on Broadway at
the former Lubbock Power & Light location. This park will serve as a multi-functional "living room" for
all of Lubbock, filling a great need for an iconic and vibrant hub of activity in the heart of downtown. 

On May 1, 2021, the City of Lubbock submitted an application for support of the Civic Park Project. On
July 9, 2021, the City received notice that the CH Foundation voted to support the project at an amount
of $500,000. The grant will be paid in January of 2022, and must be used for park construction no later
than December 31, 2022. 

Acceptance of the grant must be submitted to the CH Foundation no later than October 1, 2021.

Fiscal Impact
This grant is fully funded by the CH Foundation and therefore, does not require a local match.
Acceptance of this grant will result in no additional cost to the City of Lubbock. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
CHF Grant Agreement - S 
Award Letter 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 3.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider a resolution to nominate board members to serve as
Appraisal District Directors for the Lubbock Central Appraisal District.

Item Summary
Section 6.03 of the Texas Property Tax Code establishes the selection process for the appraisal district
directors. Before October 15, 2021, the presiding officer of the governing body shall submit the name(s)
of nominees to the chief appraiser, and may submit its nominations by adopting a resolution stating the
candidate for each position to be filled on the Board of Directors.
 
The City of Lubbock currently has five directors serving on the board: 

• Sonny Garza
• Brady Goen
• Greg Jones
• Bobby McQueen
• Noe Reynolds

All of the aforementioned are eligible for reappointment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution 





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 4.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 0335-C, a request of Rudy and Elida
Morin, for a Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District (C-4), at 1813, 1815,
and 1819 East Broadway, located north of East Broadway and west of Teak Avenue, Gearhart Addition,
Block 2, Lots 20-23, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 0335-C 
Staff Report Zone Case 0335-C 
Documentation Zone Case 0335-C 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 0355-C 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Rudy and Elida Morin 

Property Owner  Rudy and Elida Morin 

Council District  2 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 15, 1949: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 942 and zoned Single-Family

District (A).
• May 25, 1950: Ordinance 988. Zone Case 94-A: This property was zoned from Single-Family District (A) to

Central Business District (H).
• January 29, 1952: Ordinance 1174: Zone Case 355. This property was zoned from Central Business District

(H) to Commercial District (C-4).
• January 12, 2021: Zone Case 0355-B. A request for a Specific Use for a Gameroom on property zoned

Commercial District (C-4) was denied by City Council.
• September 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a request for a

Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District (C-4) by a vote of 7-1-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 17
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is developed with a building that was constructed in 1950. The building was previously used 
as a nightclub.  

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north and east are occupied by commercial and manufacturing businesses zoned M-1 and 
C-4. To the south, properties are developed with commercial uses and churches. To the west is a funeral home
and chapel.

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 1819, 1815, and 1813 East Broadway, located north of Broadway and west 
of Teak Avenue. The applicant requests a Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District 
(C-4), Gearhart Addition, Block 2, Lots 20-23. The intent of the request is to open an event center. 

Commercial District (C-4) 

Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a Dance Hall 

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current C-4 zoning is, “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which serve 
a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or federal 
highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent residential 
areas should be carefully considered.” 

The intent of the requested Specific Use is, “… to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along Broadway, which is designated as a Minor Arterial. Minor Arterials 
are intended to move high volumes of traffic at relatively high speeds. The current infrastructure is suitable for 
the requested zone change in this location. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area. This property is immediately adjacent to 
both commercial and manufacturing districts. The subject property was previously in use as a nightclub; however, 
because there was a period of over a year where there was no business conducted in the building, this property 
has lost the nonconforming nightclub use.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is appropriate in this location and is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The 
applicant intends for this property to be used as an event center. Currently, the Code of Ordinances does not 
have a use for event center and it is most compatible with the Dance Hall Specific Use. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use as an event center and does not require additional public 
improvements. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-3147
bshillings@mylubbock.us 

Kristen Sager 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 
806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 0335-C 

 

Allowable Uses:    Commercial District (C-4) 

 Specific Use District  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Broadway.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Broadway 
Minor Arterial, Completed 

R.O.W. 100 feet, four-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.1 Case 0335-C: Rudy and Elida Morin 

Request for a Specific Use for a Dance Hall on property zoned Commercial District (C-4), at:  

 1813, 1815, and 1819 East Broadway, located north of East Broadway and west of 
Teak Avenue, Gearhart Addition, Block 2, Lots 20-23. 

 

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were seventeen (17) notifications sent out. There have been zero (0) 

returned in favor and one (1) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures 

and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT ELIDA MORIN 3619 27th Street and REGINA MORIN 4709 46th Street stated  they want to use the 

building for events that will only have a positive effect on the area; they intend for the building to be an event 

center, not a bar. They will have adequate parking. 

BOARDMEMBER RENEE CAGE asked if they will sell alcohol. The applicant stated they will not sell alcohol, but 

events will have the option to bring alcohol. No glass containers will be allowed. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 0335-C a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

RENEE CAGE cast the vote in opposition. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523










0355-C 

 

  

Subject property. View to the north. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the west. 

  









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 5.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2690-D, a request of AMD Engineering,
LLC for KWTHEM, LLC, for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail
District (C-3) to Local Retail District (C-2) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at 2501 Iola
Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, West End North Addition, Tract D1, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. The applicant requested a zone change to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use; however the
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended a zone change to Local Retail District (C-2) Specific
Use instead. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of C-2 with Specific Use
for a Self-Storage Facility by a vote of 7-1-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2690-D 
Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D 
Documentation Zone Case 2690-D 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  KWTHEM, LLC  

Council District  6 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 002535 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• April 14, 1994, Zone Case 2960: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) to High-

Density Apartment District (A-2) through Ordinance No. 009545.
• May 8, 2008, Zone Case 2690-A: This property was rezoned from High-Density Apartment District (A-2) to

Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) through Ordinance No. 2008-O0044.
• July 27, 2021, Zone Case 2690-C: A zone change request from A-1 and C-3 to Interstate Highway

Commercial District (IHC) was denied by City Council.
• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 2690-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of

a zone change to C-2 Specific Use for self-storage tied to the sight plan, no windows facing west, by a
vote of 7-1-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 40
• Received In Favor: 2
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The property to the north is zoned Family Apartment District (A-1) and is developed with townhomes. The 
property to the east is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with a commercial business. The 
property to the south is zoned Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and is vacant. The property to the west is 
zoned Single Family District (R-1) and is developed with residential homes.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 2501 Iola Avenue and is located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, 
West End North Addition, Tract D1. The applicant requests a zone change from (A-1) and (C-3) to (C-3) Specific 
Use, with the intent to construct a self-storage facility. 

Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) 

General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use  

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements
The intent of the current A-1 zoning is “…to promote medium-density, multiple-occupancy development. The 
regulations are designed to promote family-oriented development which provides the occupants with the proper 
environmental quality, and compatibility with lower-density development. The purpose of this district is not to 
isolate multi-family units, but to encourage compatible residential land uses through effective planning and 
urban design.” 

The intent of the current and requested C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium 
activity centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares 
such as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 
planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 
will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.”  

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Iola Avenue and 26th Street, which are both designated as Collectors 
by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial, 
and industrial areas. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for the development of a self-storage facility. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Residential High Density” land uses 
and notes that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity 
for C-3 Specific Use is appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan designates the surrounding properties 
for Residential High Density use. Although the C-3 Specific Use zoning is not consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan, it is appropriate next to the established commercial use to the east and the IHC zoning to the south.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-3 zoning district or the Specific Use for a self-storage facility. 

Attachments 
A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map
C Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map
E. Future Land Use Map
F. Photos
G. Application and supporting documentation

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 
Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department Planning Department 
806-775-2107
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us 

806-775-2109
ksager@mylubbock.us



Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2690-D 

Allowable Uses: General Retail District (C-3) 

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from Iola Avenue, 26th Street and 

24th Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Iola Avenue, 
Collector,  Not 

Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

26th Street, Collector, 
Not Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

24th Street, Collector, 
Not Completed  

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.2 Case 2690-D: AMD Engineering, LLC for KWTHEM, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Family Apartment District (A-1) and General Retail District (C-3) to General 

Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at:  

 2501 Iola Avenue, located east of Iola Avenue and north of 26th Street, West End
North Addition, Tract D1.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were forty (40) notifications sent out. There have been two (2) 

returned in favor and zero (0) in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL asked if the streets were reviewed for this location. Staff advised the Engineering 

Department is given the opportunity to review zone cases prior to the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing 

and no comments were made on this case. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked why they are requesting C-3 Specific Use instead of  C-2 Specific Use. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2690-D 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, explained why this request is coming back 

to the Commission and items proposed on the site plan including trees, brick walls, etc. There will be no windows 

facing west and he is open to visiting with the residents before moving forward if needed. 

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL wanted to make sure the applicant understands the setbacks for a multi-story 

development. 

OPPOSITION - JOE KJOSA 6310 22nd Street, advised he is against a self-storage facility in his neighborhood. There 

are already several. He feels like 24th and 26th Street may not be able to handle heavy traffic. He would like GRACO 

to find another use for the properties that would be better for the neighborhood. 

REPRESENTATIVE TYLER PARR 5307 W Loop 289 Suite 300, with GRACO, stated they could go to C-2 zoning instead 

of C-3 if needed.   

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2690-D a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by DAN WILSON to 

approve a zone change to C-2 with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility with conditions, and the Commission 

members voted 7 (in favor) to 1 (in opposition) to approve the motion with the following conditions: 

1. Tied to the proposed site plan. 

2. No windows are allowed on the west side of the building. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JAMES BELL case the vote in opposition. 

 

 













2690-D 

 

  

View of the subject property to the east View of property to the north 

View of property to the south View of property to the west  

  





Example of proposed
residential facing wall
construction type

Example of climate controlled
multi-story self storage. No upper
level windows would face Iola Avenue.

Example of perimeter
trees with 29’ spacing







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 6.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-H, a request of Ingenium Civil
Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial
District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-Family District (R-3) to IHC, at 301, 303, 305,
307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, and 310 Avenue Q, located north of Marsha Sharp
Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts & McWhorter Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and
Tracts A-C and the north part of Tract D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet
of Lot 6, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2904-H 
Staff Report 2904-H 
Documentation 2904-H 







Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2904-H 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. 
 
Property Owner  Inn of South Plains, LLC 
 
Council District   1 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• April 21, 1909: This property was annexed through Ordinance V1 P12.  
• March 13, 1941: This property was zoned District C (Multi-Family District) through Ordinance 661. 
• April 14, 1949, Zone Case 84-A: A portion of this property was zoned from District C to District G (General 

Retail District) through Ordinance 907. 
• January 29, 1952, Zone Case 228: A portion of this property was zoned from District C to District H 

(Commercial District) through Ordinance 1174. 
• July 9, 1953, Zone Case 426: A portion of this property was zoned from District G and District H to District 

H through Ordinance 1422. 
• March 22, 2001, Zone Case 2904: A portion of this property was zoned from Commercial District (C-4) to 

Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) through Ordinance 2001-O0017. 
• September 2, 2021, Zone Case 2904-H: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change to IHC by a vote of 8-0-0. 
 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 27 
• Received In Favor: 6 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1909 and was developed with a hotel in 1955. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The property to the north of the subject property is zoned C-4 and is developed with a tire shop. The properties 
to the east are zoned IHC and have been developed with auto service commercial buildings. Marsha Sharp 
Freeway is to the south, and the property further to the south are zoned Central Business District 5 (CB-5) and 
are developed with a restaurant and an office building. The properties to the west are zoned Multi-Family District 
(R-3) and are developed with residences.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject properties are addressed as 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, 310 
Avenue Q, and are located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q. The applicant requests to re-
zone the subject property from IHC, C-4, and R-3 to IHC. 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), and Multi-
Family District (R-3)  

 
Requested zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the current R-3 zoning is “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 
land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 
and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land uses. 
When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned property, the 
proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development.” 
 
The intent of the current C-4 zoning is “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which serve 
a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or federal 
highways. Because of the heavy commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with adjacent residential 
areas should be carefully considered.” 
 
The intent of the current and proposed IHC zoning is “…to provide for quality commercial office, retail and 
wholesale uses which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent 
to residential areas.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is along Avenue Q, which is designated as a Principal Arterial, and 3rd Street, 
which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Principal Arterial roads are designed 
for a higher intensity of traffic, while Local Streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at 
lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas 
(Comprehensive Plan, page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for these types of roads.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. The proposed use is for a new hotel. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 
of intensity for a hotel is appropriate for this area, and IHC conforms to the Comprehensive Plan principles and 
Future Land Use Plan.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the IHC zoning district. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Response Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documents 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-H 

Allowable Uses: Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway and 

Avenue Q.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway 

Freeway, Completed 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

Avenue Q 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.3 Case 2904-H: Ingenium Civil Engineering, Inc. for Inn of South Plains, LLC 

Request for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC), Commercial District (C-4), 

and Multi-Family District (R-3) to IHC, at:   

 301, 303, 305, 307, 309, 311, and 313 Avenue R and 302, 304, 306, 310 Avenue Q,
located north of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of Avenue Q, Roberts & McWhorter
Addition, Block 3, Lot 1 and part of Lot 2, and Tracts A-C and the north part of Tract
D, and Dodson Addition, Block 3, Lots 1-5, and the south 16 feet of Lot 6.

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were twenty-seven (27) notifications sent out. There were six 

(6) returned in favor and zero (0) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including 

pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT JEREMY PETTIT 310 Avenue Q stated he can answer any questions regarding engineering. Questions 
were asked regarding discussion with staff on landscape, parking, building height, etc. He advised they will be 
asking for a variance on the north setback and building height. 

TOMMY MOJICA 3628 59th Street is not opposed to the case, but wanted to know if there will be a wall? His 
parents’ house is on Avenue R and he wants to know what will happen to the neighborhood facing the hotel? 
Once they demolish the existing hotel, how will they prevent the rats and roaches coming into their homes? 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised most traffic will come from Avenue Q and Marsha Sharp Freeway. 

Demolition is not fun, but the new finished product will be 10x better than what is there now. This use fits the 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001487


Zone Case 2904-H 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

corner well and there will likely be a screening wall around the perimeter towards the homes. There should be 

very little traffic on Avenue R.  

BOARDMEMBER AVIRAJ PATEL stated the brand on this site plan is intentioned for business travelers with 

extended stay.  

OPPOSITION - DAVID MOJICA 312 Avenue R, advised right now there is too much traffic and noise and wanted to 

know what will make it better? There are people walking back and forth at all hours of the night and you do not 

feel safe in the area. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated he is not sure anything will make traffic better, but the main entrance is 

not on Avenue R, so it may diminish the Avenue R traffic. Property values may go up, but the tax base should not. 

OPPOSITION - IAN MOJICJA, 2012 Avenue R, advised from Clovis Road to Marsha Sharp Freeway, Avenue R is a 

clear path. He asked what can be done to block that area and keep the Marsha Sharp Freeway traffic from going 

through there?  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated that needs to be discussed with Traffic Engineering. This board has no 

authority over that. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-H a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 













2904-H 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View north. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north. View of adjacent property. View west. 

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 7.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-I, a request of Stough Real Estate
Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate
Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific
Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center, at 5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and
north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition, Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way, and consider an
ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2904-I 
Staff Report 2904-I 
Documentation 2904-I 









Page 1 of 3 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2904-I 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant  Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 
Property Owner   Isom Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 
Council District   3 
 
Recommendations   

• Staff recommends Approval. 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 15, 1949: This property was annexed and zoned District A (Single-Family District) through 
Ordinance 951. 

• August 25, 1950, Zone Case 0122: This property was zoned from District A to District F (Local Retail 
District) through Ordinance 1019. 

• April 6, 1955: This property was zoned from District F to General Retail District (C-3) through Ordinance 
1695. 

• March 22, 2001, Zone Case 2904: A portion of this property was zoned from C-3 to Interstate Highway 
Commercial (IHC) through Ordinance 1695. 

• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 2904-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 
a zone change to IHC Specific Use by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 
Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 3 
• Received In Favor: 1 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1949 and was constructed with a commercial retail building in 1995. The 
building has been vacant for many years. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the north, west and east are zoned Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and are developed 
with a mixture of commercial uses. The property to the south is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is 
developed with a shopping center.   
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 5120 34th Street and is located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway, east of Slide 
Road, and north of 34th Street, on 1.22 acres of land, on Tract A, Eckerd Addition. The applicant requests a zone 
change from C-3 and IHC to IHC Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center. 
 
Current zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC)   
 
Requested zoning:  Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood 

Plasma Center 
 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is, “to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic.” 

The intent of the current IHC zoning is, “…provide for quality commercial office, retail and wholesale uses 
which serve a city-wide or regional area. Such uses require careful consideration when adjacent to residential 
areas.”  

The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require 
specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land 
use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Marsha Sharp Freeway, Slide Road and 34th Street, with Marsha 
Sharp Freeway designated as a freeway, Slide Road designated as a Principal Arterial and 34th designated as a 
Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile 
traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances. The primary function of a freeway is to connect local areas 
to other regions, rather than serve local traffic needs. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the 
transportation network, so best practices are to consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous 
routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 
that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for IHC with 
a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood Plasma Center is appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan 
designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use. The request is consistent with the Future Land Use 
Plan and is appropriate next to the established commercial uses.   
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent and next 
to other commercial uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the IHC zoning district or for the Specific Use for a blood bank and blood plasma 
center. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map      
C Aerial Map 
D.  Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 
 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-2109 
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-I 

Allowable Uses: Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) 

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has points of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway, 

Slide Road and 34th Street.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway, 
Freeway,    

Completed  

R.O.W. 330 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 330 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved 

Slide Road,     
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

34th Street, 
Minor Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W 100 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.4 Case 2904-I: Stough Real Estate Holdings, LLC for Isom E34, LLC 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and Interstate Highway Commercial District 

(IHC) to Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) with a Specific Use for a Blood Bank and Blood 

Plasma Center, at:  

 5120 34th Street, located east of Slide Road and north of 34th Street, Eckerd Addition,
Tract A, less 3,585 square feet of right-of-way.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were three (3) notifications sent out. There has been one (1) returned 
in support and none returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT LAURA PRATT 9002 Rochester Avenue, Attorney with Brady and Hamilton, advised she is representing 

the applicant and she is a former City Of Lubbock employee. This is a Specific Use for a Class A medical facility and 

blood plasma center. This property has been vacant for 7-8 years. Their client has been in the plasma industry for 

over 50 years and has a reputation for building state-of-the-art facilities. Plasma and other blood products have a 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001487
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2904-I 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 2 

huge shortage right now. This will be a $5-6 million development that will create 45-60 jobs and take 12-18 months 

to establish. It will have little to no impact on city services and will not create additional noise or other nuisances. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-I a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  







































   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 8.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2904-J, a request of Fusion LED
Displays DBA Sign-Express for Behold the Signs, for a Specific Use for a billboard on property zoned
Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), at 901 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located south of Marsha Sharp
Freeway and west of Texas Avenue, Original Town of Lubbock Addition, Block 7, part of Lots 22-24,
and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended denial of the request by a vote of
0-8-0. Therefore, a minimum of 6 out of 7 Council votes are required to approve the request.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 2904-J 
Staff Report 2904-J 
Documentation 2904-J 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2904-J 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Fusion LED Displays DBA Sign-Express 

Property Owner  Behold the Signs  

Council District  1 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• April 21, 1909: This property was annexed through Ordinance V1 P12.
• March 13, 1941: This property was zoned District L (Heavy Manufacturing District) through Ordinance

661.
• September 2, 2021, Zone Case 2904-J: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a

Specific Use for a Billboard on property zoned M-2 by a vote of 0-8-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 6
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 2 (One received from outside boundary area)

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1909 and is currently vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Marsha Sharp Freeway is located to the north, and the properties further to the north are zoned High Density 
Apartment District (A-2) and are developed with apartments. The property to the east is zoned M-2 and IHC and 
is vacant. The properties to the south and west are zoned IHC and Central Business District, Civic Center (CB-5). 
There is an industrial building to the southwest of the subject property, on the opposite side of the railroad 
tracks.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 901 Marsha Sharp Freeway, and is located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway 
and west of Texas Avenue. The applicant is requesting a Specific Use for a billboard on property zoned M-2. The 
billboard is proposed to be in a “V” shape, with each sign being 30 feet wide by 10 feet tall for a total area of 
600 square feet, taking into account both sides of the sign.  

Current zoning: Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) 

Requested zoning: Specific Use for a Billboard 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current M-2 zoning is “…to provide for those uses defined as heavy industrial and/or 
manufacturing use which will or may produce off-site noise, odor, or dust. The regulations are designed to provide 
standards for proper on-site development and to protect the environmental quality of adjacent areas and the 
city in general.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
The intent of the proposed Specific Use zoning is “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 
districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided 
the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed Specific Use location is along Texas Avenue, which is designated as a Collector, and Marsha Sharp 
Freeway, which is designated as a Freeway by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Freeways are intended to 
move high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long distances and Collector streets are 
designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds that provide access and movement within 
residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive Plan, pages 86-87). These types of roads will be 
suitable for the proposed use of the property.  
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed Specific Use is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed Specific Use is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other uses 
that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support a 
billboard. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Response Map 
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and supporting documents 

 
Staff Contacts 
Jacob Hawkins    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2096    806-775-2109 
jhawkins@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2904-J 

 

Allowable Uses:   Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) 

    Specific Use District 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Marsha Sharp Freeway and 

Avenue Q.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Marsha Sharp 
Freeway 

Freeway, Completed 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 350 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

Texas Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided 

R.O.W. 110 feet, eight-
lane, undivided, paved  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.5 Case 2904-J: Fusion LED Displays DBA Sign-Express for Behold the Signs 

Request for a Specific Use for a billboard on property zoned Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), at: 

 901 Marsha Sharp Freeway, located south of Marsha Sharp Freeway and west of 
Texas Avenue, Original Town of Lubbock Addition, Block 7, part of Lots 22-24. 

 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were six (6) notifications sent out. There was one (1) returned in 

opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding 

area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT LEOLA ORMAN 2414 33rd Street, and son Justin McCray, advised their property is of no use for 

commercial business because you cannot drive to it. They have already cleaned up the property and will continue 

to maintain it. Justin recovered stolen lights from Buddy Holly Hall that had been stashed on the property and in 

his discussions with Tim Lee, found out they would be interested in advertising on the billboard. He was surprised 

that TxDOT sent a response in opposition; when he called TxDOT to set up the right-of-way, he was told there was 

no need, as there is room to access it from the service road. They will never cross the TxDOT property. They have 

used the easement to access the property and clean it up. It is a perfect solution to use the property for a billboard. 

If they are denied, then why are they being taxed on a property that is of no use? A billboard would be great for 

local business and a digital sign can be changed every day to advertise events in the Arts District. They would not 

have bought the property it if they couldn’t have used it. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001453
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523


Zone Case 2904-J 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked how long they have owned this tract of land. The applicant advised 9 

months. They purchased it with the intent to construct a billboard.  

ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY KELLI LEISURE asked the applicants if they have received a permit from TxDOT. The 

applicants stated TxDOT told them they do not issue permits, but the City does. It will require TxDOT approval. 

BOARDMEMEBER RENEE CAGE asked how tall the billboard will be. The applicant advised it is 35 feet in height. 

The highway is 25 feet. They will target the east and west traffic on Marsha Sharp Freeway. It will be a V mounted 

sign that is 25 feet long. TxDOT has limits on placement near on and off ramps and it will meet those requirements.  

OPPOSITION - MARY CRITES 4617 8th Street, advised the comp plan shows mixed use for this location, which 

would not allow a billboard. Billboards should have at least a 45 degree angle, so the shallowness of the angle 

would be 13 ½ degrees and the property will need to be plated, which would requires access. 

OPPOSITION - STEPHEN FAULK MWM Architects, 2022 Broadway, has a client looking to redevelop the old LP&L 

building south of this property. This is a major entrance to the Arts District. This sign will block the view of his 

clients’ property. This sign will also block Buddy Holly Hall. He severely doubts Buddy Holly Hall would use this 

sign. Ballet Lubbock will never use this billboard to advertise. 

OPPOSITION - TIM COLLINS 311 York Avenue advised he is the Board Chairman for Lubbock Entertainment and 

Performing Arts. Tim Lee is the Operations Manager and cannot authorize any type of advertising on this sign. It 

is not the feeling of Buddy Holly Hall or LEPA to use this sign. He appreciates our sign ordinance. 

OPPOSITION - JANE HENRY 5233 20th Street, advised her mother Louise Underwood moved to Lubbock when 

there were about 35,000 people here. She and her father worked to grow the Arts movement in the city. Once 

LHUCA and CASP got underway, that all changed and now we have a thriving First Friday Art Trail. She asked that 

the City not put more billboards up, especially digital ones. This billboard would block the hard work of LHUCA 

and CASP. She suggested the applicant could donate the property to LHUCA and they will put a sculpture on it. 

OPPOSITION - CHAD DAVIS 8303 CR 6950 advised he serves on the LHUCA board. They were not within the 200’ 

notification boundary, but are a neighbor. They are concerned about glare, as they have many outdoor activities 

where the glare would be a nuisance. They are also concerned about the size of the lot and access to the lot. A 

billboard is a business and must have access. To the north is a depressed part of Marsha Sharp Freeway. There is 

no access from the access road. Texas Avenue is also depressed. A driveway would probably not be approved at 

that corner, so how will emergency services access the site?  

OPPOSITION - MONT MCCLENDON 16th and Salem, advised he works at 1500 Broadway. This request is not in 

conformance with the Comprehensive Plan. It is not the right use or the right time.  

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2904-J a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 0 (in favor) to 8 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 











2904-J 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View west. View of adjacent property. View south. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View east. View of adjacent property. View north. 





TOLL�FREE:�800-888-5051
SIGN-EXPRESS.COM©�2021�ALL�RIGHTS�RESERVED PG 1 OF 3

ARTIST:C. ELLIS

3'-1 13/16" Tall x 3'-1 13/16" Wide HD Full Color 10mm SMD 96x96 Matrix Single Face Outdoor LED Display Modular Section

BEHOLD THE SIGNS 210701-0905-A QUO-

904 4th Street Lubbock, TX, 79545

1924�RANKIN�RD.�STE�300,�HOUSTON,�TX�77073

07/01/2021BAYLEE CUTSINGER-HAY

CLIENT APPROVAL
PRODUCTION RENDERING

ACCOUNT #
SE0754

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

20
'-0

"

10'-0"

15
’-

0”

35
’-

0”

3’-0”

13
’-

6”



Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

20
'-0

"

10'-0"

15
'-0

"

35
'-0

"

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

20
'-0

"

10'-0"



Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

20
'-0

"

10'-0"

15
'-0

"

35
'-0

"

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

Q235 STEEL
TS 3X3X1/4”
(TS 75X75X7)
WIND FRAME
6 PER FACE

20
'-0

"

10'-0"

15
'-0

"

35
'-0

"







From: Chad Davis
To: Bryan Isham
Subject: Item on Council Agenda tonight
Date: Thursday, September 2, 2021 12:11:52 PM

WARNING: This message was sent from outside the City of Lubbock's email
system.
It could contain harmful attachments or links to harmful web pages.

Hello Sir!
 
I am on the Board for LHUCA and there is an item on Council Agenda tonight for a zoning change in
preparation for a new LED Billboard at 901 Marsha Sharp. We are in opposition to this billboard for a
number of reasons but, when I looked up the parcel I noticed it was very small. Are there any
required setbacks for a sign of this size on that parcel? Is it allowed to overhang the property line?
 
Just curious if you could assist me here.
 
Chad Davis , ASLA, LI
Director of Landscape Architecture | Principal

Parkhill
806.473.3517 | CDavis@Parkhill.com

Please note that our email domain and website have changed to Parkhill.com.

 

mailto:CDavis@Parkhill.com
mailto:BIsham@mail.ci.lubbock.tx.us
tel:806.473.3517
mailto:CDavis@parkhill.com
https://protect-us.mimecast.com/s/fFyoCQW8A3FkAvlfx8fSC?domain=parkhill.com/


   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 9.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3135-B, a request of Westar Commercial
Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial
District (C-4) Specific Use for a bar at 11824 Indiana Avenue, Suites #400 and #500, located west of
Indiana Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza Addition, Tract C, and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3135-B 
Staff Report 3135-B 
Documentation 3135-B 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3135-B 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Westar Commercial Realty 

Property Owner   Tophat Operators, LLC 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• June 23, 2005: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance 2005-O0067.
• July 8, 2010, Zone Case 3135: This property was zoned from T to General Retail District (C-3) through

Ordinance 2010-O0051.
• September 02, 2021, Zone Case 3135-B: The Planning and Zoning Commission Recommended approval of

a zone change to C-4 Specific Use for a bar by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 8
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property was annexed in 1984 and developed with a shopping center. 

Adjacent Property Development  
The properties to the east and south are zoned General Retail District (C-3) and remain vacant. The property to 
the north is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and is developed with a shopping center. The property to the 
west is zoned High Density Apartment District (A-2) and is developed with an apartment complex.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 11824 Indiana Avenue Suite 400 and 500 and is located west of Indiana 
Avenue and south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza, Tract C. The applicant requests a zone change from C-3 to C-4 
Specific Use for a bar. 

Current zoning: General Retail District (C-3)  

Requested zoning: Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 
centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 
as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 
adjacent residential areas should be considered. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The intent of the proposed C-4 zoning is, “…to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area. Such districts should have frontage on regional thoroughfares such as state or 
federal highways. 
 
The intent of the proposed Specific Use is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 
This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 
principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 
planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 
will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance. 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location will be along Indiana Avenue, with Indiana Avenue designated as a Principal 
Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation 
network, so best practices are to consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous routes whose 
function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic and regional traffic. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 
that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for C-4 
Specific Use is appropriate for this area and is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. The Future Land Use 
Plan designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use and the proposed use is appropriate next to the 
established commercial uses.   
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
commercial uses that are already established.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 
intensity of uses described in the C-4 zoning district or the Specific Use for a bar. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map      
C Aerial Map 
D.  Zoning Map 
E.  Future Land Use Map 
F.  Photos 
G.  Application and supporting documentation 
 

 
Staff Contacts 
Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2107    806-775-2109 
ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3135-B 

Allowable Uses: Commercial District (C-4)  

Specific Use District 

Transportation: The proposed development has point of access from Indiana Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue, 
Partial  Arterial,  

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.6 Case 3135-B: Westar Commercial Realty for TopHat Operators, LLC 

Request for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for 

a bar, at:  

 11824 Indiana Avenue, Suites #400 and #500, located west of Indiana Avenue and
south of 118th Street, Cooper Plaza Addition, Tract C.

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were eight (8) notifications sent out. There was one (1) received in 
support and zero (0) in oppoition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and 

discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WADE AND SARAH CYPERT 4001 125th Street, advised they have a winery license with TABC and the 

location will have a front retail area, and they will serve wine with charcuterie boards. They are not a restaurant, 

but will have a wine dinner quarterly. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked if it would be similar to the Wine Nest. The applicant advised it would, but 

they will be more focused on wine and retail. They will sell wine products, meats and cheese, etc. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3135-B a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by SUSAN TOMLINSON to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted  8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001523












3135-B 

 

  

Subject property view to the west. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the north. 

  





Scale:  1/4" = 1'-0"

keynote floor plan
12

K
7

K9

K
1
6

K19

K19

K17

K
3
1

K
3
1

K20A K20AK20A

K
3
2

K
5
1

K
3
2

K
3
2

K
5
1

K32

K51

K
7

K
1
5

K
2
7

K34

K8

K8

K8

K8

K
3
1

K44 K44

K
2
0
A

K
3
2

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
2
0
A

K
2
0

K
2
0

K
2
0

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
1
5

K
1
5

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
1
4

K
2
0
A

K
2
0

COOK

BAR

WOMEN

MEN

PREP

DISH

CLEAN

PREPPREP

OFFICE

12
'-4

7 8"

15
'-5

"

10'-0"

21-11

issue:

sheet:

date:

project number:

F
O

R

11
8-

- 
In

di
an

a 
A

ve
nu

e,
 S

ui
te

 -
-,

 L
ub

bo
ck

, T
X

  7
94

23

--
-

N
O

T
 F

O
R

 R
E

G
U

L
A

T
O

R
Y

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L
, 

P
E

R
M

IT
T
IN

G
,

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N

A1.0

802 ncr 1100

shallowater, texas

79363

cell: 806.543.7246

5.14.21 prelm

© 2017 - Grayson Harrist, Architect - All Rights Reserved





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 10.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3257-M, a request of Hugo Reed and
Associates, Inc. for 1585 Development, LLC and Rocket Partners I, LLC, for a zone change from
Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for
Townhomes, generally located south of 137th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, on 3.4 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 1, and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3257-M 
Staff Report 3257-M 
Documentation 3257-M 











Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3257-M 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates 

 

Property Owner  Thomas Payne on behalf of 1585 Development LLC and Rocket Partners I 

LLC 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 18, 2014: The northern portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance 

number 2014-O0148 and Zoned Transition (T). 

 July 9, 2015, Zone Case 3257-A: The northern portion of this property was rezoned as Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks. 

 April 28, 2016: The southern portion of this property was annexed through Ordinance 2016-O0054 

and zoned Transition (T). 

 October 13, 2016, Zone Case 3257-B: The southern portion of the property was rezoned from 

Transitional (T) to Single-Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks. 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3257-M: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 

approval of a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District 

(R-1) with a Specific Use for Townhomes by a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 3 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The northern portion of the property was annexed in 2014 and the southern portion was annexed in 2016. 

Both properties have remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north, west, and south are unsubdivided vacant land zoned R-1 Specific Use. Property 

to the east is vacant land zoned T, which has been subdivided as residential lots. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are located south 137th Street and of west of Elgin Avenue. The applicant is 

requesting to rezone the subject properties from R-1 with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks to R-1 

with a Specific Use for Townhomes. 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks 

 

Requested zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes  



Intent Statements 

The intent of the current and proposed R-1 zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development of 

single-family residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments 

from inharmonious and harmful land uses, and to provide a ‘quality environment’ for the residents of 

the district and city.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is “to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various 

districts. This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, 

provided the intent, principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The 

regulations require specific site planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any 

variations of land uses or land use standards will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the 

zoning ordinance” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is located to the south of 138th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, both of 

which are designated as collectors. Collector streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles 

operating at lower speeds and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and 

industrial areas. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development. 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential” 

land uses. The proposed zone change to R-1 with a Specific Use for Townhomes is consistent with the 

designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to 

other existing residential areas.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses but may require additional public improvements to support 

the intensity of uses described in the R-1 zoning district. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E. Future Land Use Map 

F. Photos 

G. Application and supporting documents 

 

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2021    806-775-2109 

ahenry@mylubbock.us                ksager@mylubbock.us  

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3257-M 

 

Allowable Uses:   Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use for Townhomes 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 138th Street and Elgin 

Avenue   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

138th Street 
Collector, Proposed 

R.O.W. 52 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

Elgin Avenue 
Collector, Proposed 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 64 feet, two-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.7 Case 3257-M: Hugo Reed and Associates for 1585 Development LLC and Rocket Partners I LLC  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Single-Family District (R-1) with 

a Specific Use for Townhomes, at:  

 Generally located south of 137th Street and west of Elgin Avenue, on 3.4 acres of 
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 1. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were three (3) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN 1601 Avenue N, Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc, explained this request is within the 

next phase in the Viridian development. It is located in the middle of the square mile of the entire development 

and they are proposing a row of townhomes. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3257-M a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted  8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001079










View of the subject property to the south View of property from the east

View of property to the north View of property to the west

3257-M









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 11.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3308-D, a request of AMD Engineering,
LLC for Dreambuilt Homes, Inc., Bushland Springs, LLC, Bo Properties, and HomeMakers Building
Group, LLC, for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with
Reduced Setbacks (R-1A), at 7211 through 7224 23rd Street, located east of Upland Avenue on the
north and south sides of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs Addition, Lots 245-258, and 1.48 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 43, located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue and 26th
Street, and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinance 3308-D 
Staff Report 3308-D 
Documentation 3308-D 









Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3308-D 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner  DreamBuilt Homes Inc, Bushland Springs LLC, Bo Properties, HomeMakers 

Building Group LLC 

 

Council District   5 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 27, 1984: This property was annexed through Ordinance number 008660 and zoned Transition 

(T).  

 October 10, 1985, Zone Case 2538: The property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Single-Family District 

(R-1). 

 April 13, 2017, Zone Case 3308: The property was rezoned from Single-Family district (R-1) to Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks, Two-Family District (R-2) with a Specific 

Use for Reduced Setbacks, High-Density Apartment District (A-2), General Retail District (C-3), and 

Industrial Park District (IDP) 

 October 13, 2020, Zone Case 3308-B: The property was rezoned from Single-Family district (R-1) to Single-

Family District (R-1) with a Specific Use for Reduced Setbacks, Two-Family District (R-2) with a Specific 

Use for Reduced Setbacks, and Industrial Park District (IDP) to Single-Family District (R-1) and Two-Family 

District (R-2). 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3308-D: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks (R-1A) by 

a vote of 8-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 14 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The property was annexed in 1984 and platted into 14 residential lots in May 2021. The properties are currently 

vacant.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Property to the north is vacant, zoned R-2, and platted as residential lots. Property to the east is vacant, zoned 

R-1 Specific Use, and also platted as residential lots. Property to the south is vacant, zoned R-2, and is 

unsubdivded. The property to the west is zoned Commercial District (C-4) and is developed with commercial 

retail. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are located south of 19th Street and east of Upland Avenue. The applicant is requesting 

to rezone the subject properties from R-1 to R-1A. 



Page 2 of 2 

Single-Family District (R-1)  

Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning and the proposed R-1A zoning is “to promote orderly and proper development 

of single-family residential units, to protect established and future single-family residential developments from 

inharmonious and harmful land uses, and to provide a ‘quality environment’ for the residents of the district and 

city.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will have access from Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial 

in the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume 

needs of local traffic and regional traffic.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low Density Residential”. The 

proposed zone change to R-1A is consistent with the designation and conforms to the principles of the 

Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Plan. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

existing residential areas.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-1A zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 

Aslyn Henry Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2021 806-775-2109

ahenry@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3308-D 

 

Allowable Uses:   Reduced Setback Single-Family District (R-1A) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Upland Avenue   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

(Modified) 

R.O.W. 85 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.8 Case 3308-D: AMD Engineering LLC for Dreambuilt Homes Inc, Bushland Springs LLC, Bo 

Properties, HomeMakers Building Group LLC 

Request for a zone change from Single Family District (R-1) to Single Family District with Reduced Setbacks 

(R-1A), at: 

 7211 – 7224 23rd Street, located east of Upland Avenue on the north and south sides 
of 23rd Street, Bushland Springs Addition, Lots 245-258 and 1.48 acres of unplatted 
land out of Block AK, Section 43, located at the northeast corner of Upland Avenue 
and 26th Street. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were fourteen (14) notifications sent out. There were zero (0) returned. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WESTIN MCCOWEN AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, was available to answer questions. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3308-D a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by DAN WILSON to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001093










View of the subject property to the south View of property from the east

View of property to the north View of property to the west

3308-D



ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION

EXHIBIT

to the City of Lubbock,

Lubbock County, Texas

100'0 50' 200'

SCALE: 1" = 100'

Accuracy - Efficiency - Integrity

CIVIL ENGINEERING

LAND SURVEYING

AMD Engineering, LLC

6515 68th Street, Suite 300

Lubbock, TX  79424

Phone: 806-771-5976

Fax: 806-771-7625
TBPE Reg. # F-9197

NOT TO SCALE

VICINITY MAP

SITE

LOCATION









HomeMakers Building Group LLC

Tim Roten Jr
4401-82nd St Suite 1500 Lubbock Tx

79424 806.392.2726 t.roten@builtbyhomemakers.com

07/28/2021 Tim Roten



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 12.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3314-A, a request of SK Architecture
Group, for a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to General Retail District (C-3), at 14101
Quaker Avenue, located east of Quaker Avenue and north of 142nd Street, on 3.097 acres of unplatted
land out of Block AK, Section 4, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 5-3-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3314-A 
Staff Report 3314-A 
Documentation 3314-A 











Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3314-A 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 

Applicant SK Architecture Group 
 

Property Owner  Sara Bradshaw 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 February 26, 2015: This property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance No. 2015-

O0012. 

 June 8, 2017: This property was rezoned to Garden Office (GO) through Ordinance No. 2017-O0075 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3314-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to General Retail District (C-3) by a vote of 5-3-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 6 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 2015 and has since remained undeveloped and unsubdivided.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

All of the surrounding property is currently vacant. Properties to the north, west, and south are zoned GO, with 

additional General Retail District (C-3) zoning to the south and Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) zoning to 

the east.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 14101 Quaker Avenue, located east of Quaker Avenue and north of 142nd 

Street, on 3.097 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4. The applicant is requesting a zone change from 

GO to C-3. 
 

Current zoning:  Garden Office District (GO) 
 

Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) 
 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current GO zoning is, “… to provide for quality garden office development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between offices and adjacent uses and promote a stable environment between residential and 

commercial uses.” 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “… to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The property is located location is along Quaker Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial. Principal 

Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional traffic. Speeds are 

relatively high on arterial streets and handle high volumes of traffic. This type of road can handle the traffic 

associated with the permitted uses in the C-3 district. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low-Density Residential”. While the 

C-3 district does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan designation, it is in conformance with existing zoning 

and development in the area. A C-3 district along a Principal Arterial would be in conformance with the 

Neighborhood Center concept outlined in the Comprehensive Plan; “Areas suitable for Neighborhood Center uses 

include areas between nodes (major intersections) and at appropriate areas in close proximity to residential 

neighborhoods.” (pg. 60). 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

commercial uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses though it may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the C-3 zoning district as it is currently vacant. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-2109 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3314-A 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Quaker Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue 
Principal Arterial, 

Future 

R.O.W. 63 feet, three-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, 7-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.9 Case 3314-A: SK Architecture Group 

Request for a zone change from Garden Office District (GO) to General Retail District (C-3), at 

 14101 Quaker Avenue, located east of Quaker Avenue and north of 142nd Street, on 
3.097 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 4. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were six (6) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked why the request is for C-3 zoning. Staff deferred to the applicant.  

APPLICANT SARA BRADSHAW owner of SK Architecture at 6302 70th Street stated they would need C-3 for a 

carwash and gas station, which are two uses they are considering. There is additional C-3 zoning to the south. The 

C-3 zoning makes the property more marketable. Adjacent to this property is the future Trinity School location. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON advised uses such as a car wash or gas station are usually seen on corners and is 

concerned with this location’s proximity to residential uses. He asked if the applicant would be comfortable with 

C-2 zoning instead. The applicant once again stated she needs C-3 for a car wash, which would be a great 

opportunity with Loop 88 being constructed. There is a large buffer between this lot and the residential lots. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER asked if the applicant would be willing to consider C-2 at this time. The applicant stated it 

is an option.  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON suggested the applicant arrange a neighborhood meeting so the neighbors can 

understand what they would like to do on the property. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272


Zone Case 3314-A 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

VICE CHAIR JORDAN WHEATLEY stated he has no issue with C-3 zoning in this location and this is prime land for 

development. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3314-A a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by JAMES BELL to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted  5 (in favor) to 3 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forward to City Council for consideration.  

ZACH SAWYER, DAN WILSON and JAMES BELL cast the votes in opposition. 

 

 











3314-A 
 
 

 

View of adjacent property. View south. View of subject property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north.        View of adjacent property. View west. 



Lubbock Planning Department 

PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 

APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes           No      Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes            No      

Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner)

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 

by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

___ ph ______

:___________________________________________________________________________:_:_

______________________________________

Quaker Avenue and approximately 142nd St.

BLK AK SEC 4 AB 746 TR 1E3A & 1G & 1F1C &1F3C

3.097

None Garden Office

C-3 General Retail District

SK Architecture Group

Sara Bradshaw

6302 70th St. Lubbock TX

79424 806.300.8151 sara@skarchgroup.com

07.13.2021 Sara Bradshaw

07.13.2021 Sara Bradshaw

✔



   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 13.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3443, a request of Dr. Piyush Mittal and
Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments, for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to
Local Retail District (C-2), at 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd
Street, on 0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 19, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3443 
Staff Report Zone Case 3443 
Documentation Zone Case 3443 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3443 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett 

Property Owner  JKLM Investments 

Council District  4 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• December 8, 1977: Property was annexed through ordinance 007557 and zoned Transition (T).
• September 9, 1999, Zone Case 2849: Property was rezoned from Transition (T) to Restricted Local Retail

District (C-2A).
• September 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change from

Restricted Local Retail (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 19
• Received In Favor: 0
• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 
The property was annexed in 1977 and has remained vacant and unsubdivided. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north is zoned Garden Office (GO) and is developed with offices. Property to the east is zoned T 
and is developed with single-family residences. Property to the south is zoned Restricted Local Retail District 
and is developed with an insurance office. Property to the west is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 
and is developed with a church. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is located south 103rd Street and of east of Indiana Avenue. The applicant is requesting to 
rezone the property from C-2A to C-2. 

Current zoning:  Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) 

Requested zoning: Local Retail District (C-2) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-2A zoning and the proposed C-2 zoning is “to provide limited local retail and service 
commercial uses which serve one of several neighborhoods. Such districts may be located on existing 
thoroughfares or at the intersections of major thoroughfares.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed rezoning location is located south of 103rd Street and west of Indiana Avenue, which are designated 
as a Local Street and Principal Arterial respectively by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local Streets typically 
provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business 
districts. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of local traffic and regional 
traffic. Both of these streets can handle the traffic associated with the uses allowed in the C-2 district. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 
development. 
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial”. The proposed zone 
change to C-2 is consistent with the designation and conforms to the principles of the Comprehensive Plan and 
Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 
existing commercial areas.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed uses and does not require additional public improvements to support 
the intensity of uses described in the C-2 zoning district. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Aerial Map 
D. Zoning Map 
E. Future Land Use Map 
F. Photos 
G. Application and supporting documents 

 
Staff Contacts 
Aslyn Henry    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2021    806-775-2109 
ahenry@mylubbock.us                ksager@mylubbock.us  
  
 

mailto:ahenry@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3443 

 

Allowable Uses:   Local Retail District (C-2) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from Indiana Avenue 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Indiana Avenue 
Principal Arterial 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.12 Case 3443: Dr. Piyush Mittal and Greg Garrett for JKLM Investments  

Request for a zone change from Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) to Local Retail District (C-2), at: 

 10301 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana Avenue and south of 103rd Street, on 
0.8193 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 19. 

 

PLANNER ASLYN HENRY stated there were nineteen (19) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared 

the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANTS GREG GARRETT 3926 85th Place and DR. PIYUSH MITTAL 4709 130th Street want to have a UPS store 

at this location. They need the C-2 zoning due to the printing services that are provided by UPS stores. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request.   

In the matter of Zone Case 3443 a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. Item will 

be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001256










3443 

 

  

 

View of the subject property to the north View of property from the east 

View of property to the south View of property to the west 

  





   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 14.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3444, a request of AMD Engineering,
LLC for Escondido Lubbock, LLC, for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family
District (R-2), at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street on 32.63
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3444 (L) 
Staff Report Case 3444 
Documentation Case 3444 















Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3444 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner  Escondido Lubbock LLC 

Council District  5 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 January 14, 1999: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance

No. 010117.

 February 8, 2018: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance

No. 2018-O0024.

 March 26, 2018: A portion of this property was annexed and zoned Transition (T) through Ordinance No.

2018-O0049.

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3444: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 28

• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 0 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed between 1999 and 2018 and has since remained undeveloped and 

unsubdivided.  

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north is vacant and zoned Transition District (T). The property to the east is zoned T and 

developed with residences. The property to the west and south is zoned High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

and remains vacant. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is located at 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street 

on 32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34. The applicant is requesting a zone change from T to 

R-2.

Transition District (T) 

Two-Family District (R-2) 

Current zoning:  

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements
The intent of the current T zoning is “…to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 

until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 

increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density and 

high-density or non-residential districts.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is along Upland Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial. Minor Arterial streets are continuous 

routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional traffic. Speeds are relatively high on arterial 

streets and handle high volumes of traffic. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low-Density Residential”. While the 

R-2 district does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan designation, it is in conformance with existing zoning

and development in the area. R-2 zoning in this location does abide by the Comprehensive Plan’s recommendation

of “adequate buffering” between the existing single-family uses to the east and the A-2 uses to the west (Pgs.

56-57).

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses though it may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-2 zoning district as it is currently vacant. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Notification Map
C. Thoroughfare Plan Map

D. Aerial Map

E. Zoning Map

F. Future Land Use Map

G. Photos

H. Application and supporting documentation 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer   Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2103 806-775-2109

sspencer@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 1 

Case Information: Zone Case 3444 

Allowable Uses: Two Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Upland Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Upland Avenue 
Minor Arterial 

(Modified), Partial 

R.O.W. 24 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.13 Case 3444: AMD Engineering, LLC for Escondido Lubbock LLC 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Two-Family District (R-2), at: 

 5802 Upland Avenue, located west of Upland Avenue and south of 58th Street on
32.63 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 34.

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were twenty-eight (28) notifications sent out and one (1) received in 
favor and zero (0) returned in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and 

maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT NATHAN FLEMING AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street was available to answer any questions. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3444 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107












3444 
 
 

 

View of adjacent property. View south. View of adjacent property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north.        View of subject property. View west. 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 15.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3445, a request of Hugo Reed and
Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, for a zone change from Transition
District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2), located east of East Loop 289 and south of 4th Street
on 407.3 acres of unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3445 
Starr Report Case 3445 
Documentation Case 3445 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3445 
City Council Meeting September 28, 2021 

Applicant Hugo Reed & Associates, LLC 

Property Owner  Lubbock Economic Development Alliance 

Council District  2 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends APPROVAL of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• August 10, 2021: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2021-O0093 and zoned Transition (T).
• September 2, 2021: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone change case

from Transition (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) by a vote of 8-0-0.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 31
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 8 (Two total properties within notification boundary) 

Site Conditions and History 
The subject property is vacant and has remained undeveloped since annexation. 

Adjacent Property Development 
Property to the north, east, and south is outside city limits. The properties to the north are occupied by some 
residential uses, two auto parts stores, and a Dollar General. To the south and east, properties are sparsely 
developed with residential or are vacant. To the west properties are developed with a mixture of manufacturing 
uses zoned Heavy Manufacturing (M-2).  

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is generally located east of East Loop 289 and south of East 4th Street on 407.3 acres of 
unplatted land. The applicant requests a zone change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District 
(M-2).  

Current zoning:  Transition District (T) 

Requested zoning: Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2) 

Intent Statements 
The intent of the current T zoning is, “… to protect existing and future development in newly annexed territory 
until the proper zone classification can be determined and established by zone change.” 

The intent of the requested M-2 zoning is, “… to provide for those uses defined as heavy industrial and/or 
manufacturing use which will or may produce off-site noise, odor, or dust. The regulations are designed to provide 
standards for proper on-site development and to protect the environmental quality of adjacent areas and the 
city in general.” 



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along 19th Street and 4th Street, which are both designated as a Principal 
Arterials by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials are intended to move high volumes of traffic at 
relatively high speeds. The current infrastructure is suitable for the requested zone change in this location. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area. M-2 zoning already exists directly to the 
west of the subject property. The property is also located along Principal Arterials and is just to the east of East 
Loop 289, which is designated as an expressway.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates the subject property for Low Density Residential uses. The proposed zone 
change to M-2 is not in conformance with the Future Land Use Map, however, there is already M-2 in this area 
and the property borders two Principal Arterials and is near an Expressway.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate in this location.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and may require additional public improvements. 
 
Attachments 

A. Case Information  
B. Thoroughfare Map 
C. Notification Map       
D. Aerial Map 
E.  Zoning Map 
F.  Future Land Use Map 
G.  Photos 
H. Application and supporting documentation 
I.  Notification Replies 

 
 
Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings    Kristen Sager 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-3147    806-775-2109 
bshillings@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:bshillings@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 2 

Case Information: Zone Case 3445 

Allowable Uses:  Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 19th Street and 4th Street. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

19th Street 
Principal Arterial, Modified 

R.O.W. 110 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

4th Street 
Principal Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W 110 feet, two-lane 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, seven-
lane, undivided paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.14 Case 3445: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance 

Request for a zone change from Transition District (T) to Heavy Manufacturing District (M-2). 

 Generally located east of East Loop 289 and south of 4th Street on 407.3 acres of
unplatted land out of Block O, Section 6.

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were thirty-one (31) notifications sent out one (1) was received in 
support and eight (8) were received in opposition. Staff shared the location of the property including 

pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN 1601 Avenue N, Hugo Reed & Associates, Inc, assisted LEDA in acquiring and 

annexing the property, so the City will get the tax dollars. The intent is to develop an industrial style park, so they 

are requesting to extend the existing M-2 from East Loop 289. M-2 zoning does not allow everything, and some 

uses still require approval of a Specific Use. The property abuts 4th Street and 19th Street and the agriculture use 

to the southeast is a City land application site for wastewater. All other abutting property is outside city limits, 

except for the M-2 zoning to the west.  

APPLICANT JOHN OSBORNE 8917 CR 6860, President and CEO of LEDA stated he is bound by a confidentiality 

agreement, but the proposed developments would be agriculture research and food manufacturing. There will 

not be heavy traffic. The manufacturing traffic would access the property from 19th Street, with a small amount 

of access off 4th Street. There could be an odor, but they do their best to ensure it is as odorless as possible. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON stated he appreciates what LEDA does for Lubbock and asked if there would be 

any pollutants, toxic issues, or noise issues.  Mr. Osborne stated there is no smelting process, just food 

manufacturing. He has toured one of their facilities and did not smell anything offensive. This company does their 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001453


Zone Case 3445 
 

Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 2 
 

best to ensure they are good neighbors. If they do not win the project, they will search for other prospects, but 

they felt it necessary for the property to be inside city limits, in order to have the greatest impact.  

OPPOSITION - LILY HERNANDEZ 4617 East 4th Street stated her family is having a hard time understanding what 

type of development would be on this property. She is speaking on behalf of the Trevino – Hernandez household. 

On August 25th they were notified of this zone case and she spoke with the Planning Department, but found it 

hard to support the case with only minor details given. She requested information from Terry Holeman and John 

Osborne as well. She is concerned that M-2 provides opportunities for C-4 uses. She has lived in this area her 

entire life. Mrs. Hernandez went on to read a letter regarding her family’s history in the area as well as their 

concerns. 

No one spoke in favor of the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3445 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY to 

approve the request and the Commission members voted 8 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

 













3445 

 

Subject property. View to the north. View to the east. 

View to the south. View to the west. 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 16.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3446, a request of AMD Engineering,
LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family
District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2), at 5601 Ursuline Street, located south of
Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, on 134.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section
6, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a vote
of 7-0-1.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3446 
Ordinance Zone Case 3446 (L) 
Staff Report 3446 
Documentation 3446 































Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3446 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 
Applicant  AMD Engineering, LLC 

 

Property Owner   NWP EB-5 Project, LLC 

 

Council District   6 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed and zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through Ordinance 

2536. 

• September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3446: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment 

District (A-2) by a vote of 7-0-1. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 21 

 Received In Favor: 1 

 Received In Opposition: 1 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

 

Adjacent Property Development  

The properties to the north, east, and south are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and Transition (T). Property 

to the west is zoned R-1. Most of the surrounding land is undeveloped, with some residential uses.   

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Ursuline Street, on 134.45 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. The applicant requests a zone change from R-1 to R-2 and A-2. 

 

Current zoning:   Single-Family District (R-1).   

 

Requested zoning:  Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density Apartment District (A-2). 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “…to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 

residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 

and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city. 

The intent of the proposed R-2 zoning is, “…to promote stable, quality residential development of slightly 

increased densities and multiple occupancy. This district may include entire neighborhoods or when used in 

accordance with the intent of the comprehensive plan, may provide a “buffer” district between low-density 

and high-density or non-residential districts. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the proposed A-2 zoning is, “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land uses. 

When proposed development in this district is adjacent to “RR,” “R-1,” “R-1A,” or “R-2” zoned property, the 

proposed development shall be designed to provide for maximum compatibility with the adjacent development. 

Architectural design, landscaping, screening and parking areas shall be properly provided to ensure maximum 

protection of lower-density uses. 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Frankford Avenue and Ursuline Street, with Frankford Avenue 

designated as a Principal Arterial and Ursuline Street designated as a Minor Arterial by the Master Thoroughfare 

Plan, 2018. Arterial streets provide connectivity across the transportation network, so best practices are to 

consider all modes on these streets. Arterials are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs 

to local traffic and regional traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development or zoning. Properties to the south are already zoned High Density Apartment District (A-2) and Two-

Family District (R-2). 

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Residential Low Density” land uses 

and notes that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity 

for R-2 and A-2 is appropriate for this area. While the R-2 and A-2 zoning is not consistent with the Future Land 

Use Plan, it is appropriate next to the established residential uses along with the R-2 and A-2 zoning to the south.   

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the R-2 and A-2 zoning districts. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map      

D. Aerial Map 

E.  Zoning Map 

F.  Future Land Use Map 

G.  Photos 

H.  Application and supporting documentation 

I. Response Letters 

 

 

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Vasquez    Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2107    806-775-2109 

ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us   ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3446 

 

Allowable Uses:   High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Two-Family District (R-2)  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue and 

Ursuline Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue, 
Partial Minor Arterial,  

Modified  

R.O.W. 100 feet, three-
lane, undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, four-
lane, undivided, paved 

Ursuline Street, 
Future Minor  
Arterial, Not 
Completed  

R.O.W. 20 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, not paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 5.15 Case 3446: AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC  

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to Two-Family District (R-2) and High-Density 

Apartment District (A-2), at:  

 5601 Ursuline Street, located south of Ursuline Street and east of Frankford Avenue, 
on 134.45 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were twenty-one (21) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff 

shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff 

recommends approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street stated they are continuing development from 

the south to the north and are requesting R-2 and A-2 zoning to allow for flexibility on what can be constructed. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3446 a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES BELL to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) with 1 (recusal) to approve the 

motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY recused from the case. 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001142
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001107












3446 

 

  

Subject property view to the east. View to the south. 

View to the west. View to the north. 

  









   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 17.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3447, a request of AMD Engineering,
LLC for NWP EB-5 Project, LLC, for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General
Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility, generally located east of Frankford
Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6, and
consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 2, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a 7-0-1
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Zone Case 3447 
Staff Report 3447 
Documentation 3447 















Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3447 
City Council Meeting  September 28, 2021 

 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 
 

Property Owner  NWP EB-5 Project LLC 
 

Council District   1 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends Approval. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958: This property was annexed and zoned Single-Family District (R-1) through Ordinance 

No. 002536. 

 September 2, 2021, Zone Case 3447: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Self-

Storage Facility by a vote of 7-0-1. 

 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 5 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped and unsubdivided.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north and east are zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and are currently vacant. To the west is a 

mix of Local Retail District (C-2), Transition District (T), and R-1. There are some homes developed outside city 

limits. To the south is property zoned High-Density Apartment (A-2) which is developed with a church. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. The applicant is requesting a zone change from R-1 to C-3 Specific Use 

for a Self-Storage Facility. 
 

Current zoning:  Single-Family District (R-1) 
 

Requested zoning:  General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for Self-Storage Facility 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current R-1 zoning is, “… to promote orderly and proper development of single-family 

residential units; to protect established and future single-family residential developments from inharmonious 

and harmful land uses; and to provide a “quality environment” for the residents of the district and city.” 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

The intent of the proposed C-3 zoning is, “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways.” 

 

The intent of the proposed Specific Use is, “…to provide for design and land use flexibility in the various districts. 

This district provides for variations in the land use standards within the [zoning] ordinance, provided the intent, 

principles, and innovations of modern urban planning and design are used. The regulations require specific site 

planning on all aspects of proposed development to ensure that any variations of land uses or land use standards 

will be in harmony with the purposes and objectives of the zoning ordinance.” 

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along Frankford Avenue, which is designated as a Minor Arterial. Minor Arterial streets are 

continuous routes whose function is to serve high volumes of local and regional traffic. Speeds are relatively high 

on arterial streets and handle high volumes of traffic. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Low-Density Residential”. While the 

C-3 Specific Use district does not conform to the Comprehensive Plan designation, it is in conformance with 

existing zoning and development in the area. The Specific Use for a self-storage facility would be appropriate 

nearby to residential uses and along a thoroughfare.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses though it may need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the C-3 Specific Use zoning district as it is currently vacant. 

 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and supporting documentation 

 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Kristen Sager 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-2109 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  ksager@mylubbock.us 

 

 

 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3447 

 

Allowable Uses:   General Retail District (C-3)  

Specific Use District 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Frankford Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Frankford Avenue 
Minor Arterial 

(Modified), Partial 

R.O.W. 53 feet, three-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 100 feet, 5-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

5.16 Case 3447: AMD Engineering, LLC for NWP EB-5 Project LLC 

Request for a zone change from Single-Family District (R-1) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific 

Use for a Self-Storage Facility, at:  

 Generally located east of Frankford Avenue and south of Princeton Street, on 4.21 
acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 6. 

 

PLANNER SHANE SPENCER stated there were five (5) notifications sent out and zero (0) returned. Staff shared the 

location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the surrounding area. Staff recommends 

approval of this request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS AMD Engineering, LLC, 6515 68th Street, advised the intent is to construct a self-

storage facility and he has provided a site plan. 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked why they are requesting C-3 zoning instead of C-2. Mr. Stephens stated that 

other similar facilities are zoned C-4, but they would be open to C-2 on this case if needed. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3447 a motion was made by JAMES BELL and seconded by DAN WILSON to approve 

the request and the Commission members voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) with 1 (recusal) to approve the 

motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration.  

JORDAN WHEATLEY recused from the case. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001272










3447 
 
 

 

View of adjacent property. View south. View of subject property. View east. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north.        View of adjacent property. View west. 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 18.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Discuss and take appropriate action on an ordinance amending Chapter 40
“Zoning” of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, amending Section 40.01.003 “Definitions” to add
a definition for “Office/Warehouse”; amending Division 15 “C-3 General Retail District” to update
General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and amending Section 40.03.2233 “C-4 Permitted Uses” to add
“Office/Warehouse” setting forth regulations for outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.

Item Summary
Recent zoning requests caused concerns amongst the City Council regarding the lack of an adequate
Office/Warehouse land use. Although the City is currently writing a Unified Development Code (UDC),
an update to the City's Zoning Code and land use regulations, the Council requested that staff update the
current zoning code to provide for this use as soon as possible. While working with the UDC Council
Subcommittee on this item, staff identified additional land uses and requirements that are also in need of
updates based on past concerns. They are as follows: 

Section 40.01.003 Definitions, adding a definition for “Office/Warehouse;”
Division 15 C-3 General Retail District, updating General Provisions and Permitted Uses; and
Section 40.03.2233 C-4 Permitted Uses, adding “Office/Warehouse” and setting forth regulations for
outside storage in the “Office/Warehouse” use.
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this amendment on September 2, 2021, and recommended
approval of the request by a unanimous vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance Chapter 40 Amendment 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 19.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Consider Ordinance No. 2021-O0133, pursuant to Chapter 43 of
the Texas Local Government Code, for annexation of the property located south of 34th Street and west
of Upland Avenue, containing approximately 7.867 acres, out of Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock
County, Texas, and commonly identified by the Lubbock Central Appraisal District Reference Number
R126622.

Item Summary
On September 14, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

In April 2018, the City Council finalized an annexation of approximately 1,450 acres, and also approved
development agreements with many property owners under Chapter 212 of the Local Government Code,
exempting the properties from annexation under certain terms. These “212 Agreements” contained
several conditions for the property, including provisions for the termination of the agreement upon
commencement of development activities.

In the case of the subject property, the City received a preliminary plat from the property owners,
showing their intent to develop the property and request termination of the agreement. This termination
also constitutes a petition for voluntary annexation.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager

Attachments
Ordinance - 34th and Upland Annexation 
Annexation Map 
212 Agreement 
Service Plan 











As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

33RD ST

VI
OL

A 
AV

E

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(IN

)

0 500 1000 1500 2000
Feet

³
Termination of 212 Agreement and Proposed Annexation of 7.867 Acres 

Located in the Northeast Quarter of Section 39, Block AK, Lubbock County

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(O

UT
)

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(IN

)

AK-36AK-39

ROLLING

PLAINS
PINE
HILLSUPLAND

CROSSING

AL
CO

VE
 A

VE

THE VINEYARDS AT

ESCONDIDO RANCH

MILWAUKEE

RIDGE

Proposed Annexation
Area (7.867 Acres)

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(O

UT
)

34TH ST
AK-42

WI
NF

IEL
D 

AV
E

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

32ND ST

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

34TH ST



CITY OF LUBBOCK - — -- 
OFFICE PICK UP

2018024133 13 PGS AGREE

Resolution No. 2018- RO151 , III ri 1I1AI % IlAWM% " 1W9W 11* 1 , I II I

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE

ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED OF RECORD IN THE

REAL PROPERTY RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER' S LICENSE NUMBER. 

CITY OF LUBBOCK

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IN LIEU OF ANNEXATION

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT IN LIEU OF ANNEXATION ( the " Agreement") is

made by and between the City of Lubbock, Texas, a State of Texas, Tier 1 home rule municipal
corporation (the "City"), and the undersigned property owner( s) ( the " Owner"), [ the term " Owner" 

includes all owners of the property that is the subject of this Agreement; and, the City and the
Owner each being a " Party" and collectively the " Parties"], and this Agreement is entered into by
the Parties pursuant to Section 212. 172 of the Texas Local Government Code to satisfy the
conditions required under Section 43. 016 of the Texas Local Government Code and is made
effective on April 26 , 2018 ( the " Effective Date"). 

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Owner owns a parcel of real property ( the " Property") in Lubbock County, 
Texas, which is more particularly depicted and described in the attached " Exhibit B"; and

WHEREAS, the City has instituted annexation proceedings for all or portions of the Property and
held public hearings regarding the proposed annexation on March 8 and March 22, 2018; and

WHEREAS, at the public hearings, a service plan for the Property was made available to the
Owner and the Owner was given the opportunity to be heard by the City Council of the City; and

WHEREAS, the Owner does not want any portion of the Property to be annexed and desires to
have the Property remain in the City' s extraterritorial jurisdiction ( the " ETJ"), in consideration for
which the Owner agrees to enter into this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, it is the City' s intention to allow the Owner to continue to use the Property as it is
being used at the time of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is binding upon the City and the Owner
and their respective successors and assigns for the duration of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, this Agreement is to be recorded in the real property records of Lubbock County, 
Texas; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, the
Parties agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT

Section 1— The Property: Current Status. 
The City acknowledges that the Property, more particularly depicted and described in the attached
Exhibit B," is located within the ETJ of the City, is subject to an Agricultural Use tax exemption

according to the most recent Lubbock Central Appraisal District' s ad valorem tax appraisal, and

Development Agreement In Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 Page 1



is included in the area noticed for annexation by the City unless this Agreement is signed by the
Owner and approved by the City Council of the City. 

Section 2 — The Property: Continued Status. 
a. In lieu of annexation, the Owner desires that the Property remain in the ETJ of the City for the
duration of this Agreement. The Owner agrees that the primary use of the Property shall continue
to be agricultural, consistent with Chapter 23 ofthe Texas Tax Code, except for any existing single- 
family residential use on the Property that supports the primary agricultural use. If the City
proceeds with the annexation of the Property, then the Owner' s use of the Property at the time of
this Agreement is " grandfathered" into the acceptable uses of the City, and the City is prohibited
from interfering with any uses on the Property that comply with Section 43. 002 of the Texas Local
Government Code. 

b. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, throughout the duration of this Agreement, the
City shall not annex the Property, shall not institute proceedings to involuntarily annex the
Property, and shall not include the Property in a statutory annexation plan. The Owner
acknowledges that unless the Property is annexed by the City, the Property shall remain ineligible
to receive City services, the Property shall continue to be excluded from the City' s voting
precincts, and the Property shall remain exempt from City property taxes for the duration of this
Agreement. 

c. The Owner acknowledges that Section 22. 03. 091( a) of the Code of Ordinances of the City
prohibits the City from providing water to any entity outside of the city limits, and acknowledges
that the City will not be providing water to the Property unless the Property is annexed into the
City. Pursuant to Section 43. 016( b)( 1)( B) of -the Texas Local Government Code, the City is
authorized to enforce all of the City' s regulations and planning authority that do not materially
interfere with the primary use of the Property for agriculture in the same manner that the
regulations are enforced within the City' s boundaries. The City specifically reserves its authority
pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas Local Government Code to exercise eminent domain over
property that is subject to a development agreement. Further, the City reserves its regulatory and
planning authority in the ETJ, as such authority has been granted to it by the City Council. 

Section 3 — The Property: Change in Status. 
a. The Owner warrants that the Property will continue to be used primarily for agriculture. The
Owner agrees not to develop any portion of the Property for any other purpose than agriculture, 
and the Owner agrees not to file any type of subdivision plat or related development document for
the Property with Lubbock County or the City throughout the duration of this Agreement. 

b. The Owner acknowledges that if any plat or related development document is filed for the
Property, or if the Owner commences any development of the Property other than that which
supports or promotes the agricultural use of the Property, then the exemption offered in this
Agreement shall terminate, and in addition to the City' s other remedies, such act will constitute a
request for voluntary annexation by the Owner, and the Property will be subject to annexation at
the discretion of the City Council. The Owner agrees that such annexation shall be voluntary and
the Owner hereby consents to such annexation as though a development agreement under Chapter
212. 172 of the Texas Local Government Code for such annexation had been tendered by the Owner

Development Agreement In Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 page 2



to the City. If the Property is annexed pursuant to a provision of this Agreement, then the City shall
provide services to the Property pursuant to Chapter 43 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

c. If annexation proceedings begin pursuant to this Section, then the Owner acknowledges that this
Agreement serves as an exception to. Section 43. 052 of the Local Government Code, requiring a
municipality to use certain statutory procedures under an annexation plan, and as an exception to
requiring certain statutory procedures as to the Owner to effectuate an annexation. Further, the
Owner hereby waives any and all vested rights and claims that it may have under Section
43. 002( a)( 2) of the Local Government Code and Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government

Code that would otherwise exist by virtue of any plat or construction the Owner may initiate during
the time between the expiration of this Agreement and the institution of annexation proceedings
by the City. 

Section 4 — The Term. 

The term of this Agreement ( the " Term") shall be five (5) years from the date that this Agreement
is approved by the City Council of the City of Lubbock, unless terminated earlier according to the
provisions contained in this Agreement. Until this Agreement is terminated, this Agreement shall
run with the land and be recorded in the real property records of Lubbock County, Texas. 

Section 5 — Termination. 

This Agreement will automatically terminate at the end of the Term. This Agreement shall
terminate upon the development non -agriculture of the Property for any use other than agriculture, 
upon the filing of any plat or related development document with the City or with Lubbock County, 
upon the Lubbock County Appraisal District' s removal of the agricultural exemption on the
Property, or upon the Owner' s failure to prove that it is the sole owner of the Property with the
authority to sign this Agreement. The Parties may agree in writing to terminate this Agreement
prior to the expiration of the Term of this Agreement. 

Section 6 — City Council Approval Required. 
If the City Council of the City of Lubbock does not affirmatively vote to annex an area that contains
at least a portion of the Property, then this Agreement will be null and void in its entirety. 

Section 7 — Notification. 

a. Any person who sells or conveys any portion of the Property shall, prior to such sale or
conveyance, give written notice of this Agreement to the prospective purchaser or grantee, and
shall give written notice of the sale or conveyance to the City. Further, the Owner and the Owner' s
heirs, successors, and assigns shall give the City written notice within fourteen ( 14) days of any
change in the agricultural exemption status of the Property. Failure to provide notice as required
in this subsection will constitute a failure of the Owner to prove its ownership of the Property, and
will be grounds for the termination of this Agreement under Section 5 of this Agreement. 

b. A copy of any notice required by this section shall be forwarded to the City at the following
address: 

City ofLubbock With copy to: City of Lubbock
Attn: City Secretary Attn: Director of Development Services

P.O. Box 2000 P. O. Box 2000

Lubbock, Texas 79457 Lubbock, Texas 79457

Development Agreement In Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 Page 3



Section 8 — Waiver. 

Any failure by the Owner or the City to insist upon strict performance by either Party of any
material provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver thereof, and the Owner or the
City shall have the right at any time thereafter to insist upon strict performance of any and all
provisions of this Agreement. No provision of this Agreement may be waived except by a written
agreement signed by the Parties waiving such provision. Any waiver shall be limited to the specific
purposes for which it is given. No waiver by the Owner or the City of any provision of this
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to be a waiver of any other provision or subsequent
waiver of the same provision. The Parties expressly agree that no provision of this Agreement is
in any way intended to constitute a waiver by any Party of any immunity from suit or liability that
it may have by operation of law. The Parties agree that the City shall retain all of its governmental
immunities. 

Section 9 — Assurance of Ownership. 
The Owner hereby expressly affirms that it is the sole owner of the Property and that no other
person or entity has a valid claim to any right, title, or ownership in the Property. Should any
dispute of right, title, or ownership concerning the Property arise subsequent to the Owner' s
execution of this Agreement, then the Owner hereby agrees to be solely responsible for defending
and confirming its absolute right, title, and ownership to the Property. If the Owner cannot defend
or fails to defend its right, title, and ownership to the Property, then this Agreement shall terminate. 
subject to Section 5 of this Agreement. 

Section 10 — Governing Law. 
This Agreement is entered into under and pursuant to, and is to be construed and enforceable in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas. All obligations of the Owner and the City under
this Agreement are performable in Lubbock County, Texas. Venue for any action to enforce or
construe this Agreement shall be Lubbock County, Texas. This Agreement is subject to all
applicable federal, state, and local laws and any applicable ordinances, rules, orders and
regulations of any local, state, or federal governmental authority, having or asserting jurisdiction. 
However, nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by the Owner or the
City of any right to question or contest any law, order, rule, or regulation which may affect the
terns and conditions of this Agreement in any forum having jurisdiction, and the Owner and the
City each agree to make a good faith effort to support all proposed laws and regulations which
would be consistent with the performance of this Agreement in accordance with its terms. No
subsequent change in the law regarding annexation shall affect the enforceability of this
Agreement or the City' s ability to annex the Property pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 11— Remedy. 
The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 
or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court
of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to
exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this Agreement, the former shall
control. 

Development Agreement In Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 Page 4



Section 12 — Public Information. 

This Agreement is public information. To the extent, if any, that any provision of this Agreement
is in conflict with the Texas Public Information Act (Tex. Gov' t. Code Ann. Chapter 552 et seq., 
as amended), the same shall be of no force and effect. 

Section 13 — Third -Party Beneficiaries. 
This Agreement inures only to the benefit of, and may only be enforced by, the Owner and the
City. No other person or entity shall have any right, title, or interest under this Agreement or
otherwise be deemed to be a third -party beneficiary of this Agreement. 

Section 14 — No Personal Liability & No Joint Venture. 

Nothing in this Agreement is construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any
employee, officer, or agent of any public body that may be a party to this Agreement. This
Agreement is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, create any joint enterprise between or
among the Parties. 

Section 15 — Due Diligence & Force Majeure. 

The Parties shall use good faith, due diligence, and reasonable care in the performance of the
obligations under this Agreement, and time shall be of the essence in such performance. In the
event that either Party is unable to perform its respective obligations under this Agreement due to
any event or circumstance that is not within the reasonable respective control with the exercise of

good faith, due diligence, and reasonable care of that Party ( a " Force Majeure"), then the

obligations affected by the Force Majeure shall be temporarily suspended. Within three ( 3) 
business days after the occurrence of a Force Majeure, the affected Party shall give notice to the
other Party with such notice including a detailed explanation of the Force Majeure, a description
of the action that will be taken to remedy the Force Majeure, and the estimated earliest possible
time the full performance of the Agreement may resume. 

Section 16 — Enforcement. 

This Agreement may be enforced by the Parties by any proceeding at law or in equity. Failure to
do so shall not be deemed a waiver to enforce the Agreement thereafter. 

Section 17 — Governmental Powers. 

It is understood that through its execution of this Agreement the City does not waive or surrender
any of its governmental powers, except as expressly set forth herein. 

Section 18 — Counterparts. 

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed
an original and constitute one and the same instrument. The Owner acknowledges that each and
every owner of the Property must execute this Agreement in order for it to take full effect. 

Section 19 — Severability. 
If any provision of this Agreement is determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
unenforceable for any reason, such unenforceable provision shall be deleted from this Agreement, 
and the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be interpreted
to give effect to the intent of the Parties. 

Development Agreement M Ueu Of Annexation . 2018 Page 5



Section 20 — Entire Agreement. 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior
agreements, whether oral or written, covering the subject matter of this Agreement. The Owner
acknowledges that each and every Owner of the Property must sign this Agreement in order for
the Agreement to take full effect, and that " Exhibit A" attached to this Agreement is where
additional Owners shall execute this Agreement. 

Section 21 — Captions & Recitals. 

Captions and headings used in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and shall not be
deemed a part of this Agreement. However, each of the recitals contained herein, by this reference, 
shall be incorporated into, and deemed a part of, this Agreement. 

Section 22 — Modification of Agreement. 

This Agreement cannot be modified or amended except in writing signed by the Owner and the
City and attached and made a part of this Agreement. 

Section 23 — International Warranties. 

The Parties warrant that each complies with Chapter 2270, Subtitle F, Title 10 of the Texas
Government Code by verifying: ( 1) that Neither Party boycotts Israel; and, ( 2) that Neither Party
will boycott Israel during the term of the Agreement. Additionally, the Parties recognize that Texas
Senate Bill 252 prohibits the City of Lubbock from entering into a contract with a vendor that is
identified by the Texas Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide
supplies or service with Iran, Sudan, or a foreign terrorist organization. 

The Parties hereby enter this Agreement on tq9 2 1 ' ,( 0 12018

For the City: 

Ll/- 
DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

SIGNATURES

For the Owner: 

Additional Owners .sign the uttnched " Exhibit AV

J VC9C.. C 1

OWNER' S SIGNATURE

OWNER' S PRINTED NAME

Development Agreement In aeu of Annexation - 2018 Page 6



ATTEST: 

Steven O' Neal, Direc or o Development Services

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Justin ruitt, Assistant City Attorney

Development Agreement In Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 page



NOTARIZATION

State of Texas § 

County of Lubbock § 

This instrument was executed before me on 492 j jjQ 2018, by QrVAj
of the City of Lubbock, a Texas municipal corporation, on behalf of said

mu

corporation. 

E(S:
JENNIFERSOWOEACIEMENTS

NatuyNSlate of Teas
ot ryINPullk12497068. 3NeneyIDY124970693Notarytlic Commissm

Epi9s06204020 State

of Texas § County

oU obleeek § f—
fthu This

instrument was executed before me on M tireh2, 2018, byy (t ttI OL [HSt'.0 I A I r on behalf
of said Owner. n.,a 

CARISSA NOYES

C Y.

SNOTARYFUIxl0$
TATE0FTEXASf .••`'' COMM. 

EXP. 09- 09- 2010 Oi AJr

NOTARYIn 128MI428 Notary Public
When Recorded

Return To: City Manager

City of
Lubbock, Texas 1625 1311
Street Lubbock, Texas
79401 Development Agreement

Inneu WAnnexation - 2018 page 8



EXHIBIT A — ADDITIONAL OWNER SIGNATURES

All signatures listed in this Exhibit must be accompanied by Notarization

Owner Name — Printed Owner Name — Signature

Development Agreement to Lieu Of Annexation - 2018 Page 9



Chapter 43 Agreement for Annexation No. 2018- 00049



Pfoperty ' Owner Property Address 2017 Assessed Value

R126622 ST CLAIR, CYNTHIA 79407 $ 535

2018 GENERAL INFORMATION 2017 VALUE INFORMATION

Property Status Acute

PropertyType Agricultural Land Legal

Description BLK AK SEC 39 AB 228 TR A14A AC: 7. 867 Neighborhood

1100- Frenshiplsd Account

AC12039- 90228- 17305- 000 Map

Number 118 2018

OWNER INFORMATION Owner

Name ST CLAIR, CYNTHIA Owner

ID 00189754 Exemptions

Agriculture Use Percent

Ownership 100% Mailing

Address 3509 EDGWOOD DR AMARILLO, TX 79109 2017

ENTITIES & EXEMPTIONS Special

Exemptions AG - Agriculture Use Improvement

Homesite Values0 Improvement

Non-Homesite $0
Value

Total

Improvement Market Value $0 Land

Homesite Value 0 Land

Non-Homesite Value 0 Land

Agricultural Market Value 27, 535 Total

Land Market Value 27, 535 Total

Market Value 27, 535 Agricultural

Use 535 Total

Appraised Value0 Homestead

Cap Loss s0 Total

Assessed Value 535 TAXING

ENTITY I EXEMPTIONS EXEMPTIONS AMOUNT TAXABLE VALUE TAX RATE PER 100 TAX CEILING GLB- 

Lubbock County 0 535 0. 3581580 HSP- 

Lubb Cnty Hospital 0 535 0. 109778 0 SFR- 

Frenship ISO 0 535 1. 49 0 WHP- 

Hi Plains Water 0 535 0. 0069 0 TOTALS

1. 964836 2017

LAND SEGMENTS LAND

SEGMENT STATE
CODE MARKET

AG USE HOMESITE
LAND SIZE TYPE -- - VALUE LOSS_-_ _ 01 - 

Real: Qualified Open -space 1 -
DryCrop Land No $ 27,

535 $ 535 7. 867000 acres TOTALS 342,

687 Sq. ft / 7. 867000 acres VALUE
HISTORY

YEAR IMPROVEMEN

f LAN MARKET I AG
MARKETAG

LOSS APPRAISED ' I HS CAP LOSS ASSESSED 2016 S0

f0 SO 62 9 $ 0 $ 629I SALES HISTORY
DEED DATE

SELLER BUYER INSTR # VOLUME/ PAGE 2/12/

2014 ST CLAIR. CYNTHIA 2014- 4363 12/20/

2013 ST CLAIR JEAN ESTATE ST CLAIR, CYNTHIA 2013. 49S47 . 1.1/

9/ 2013 ST CLAIR JEAN ALICE ST CLAIR JEAN ESTATE 2013- 359P DISCLAIMER Every

effort

has been made to offer the most current and correct information possible on these pages. The information included on these pages
has been compiled by District staff from a variety of sources, and Is subject to change without notice. The Lubbock Central Appraisal
District makes no warranties or representations whatsoever regarding the quality, content, completeness, accuracy or
adequacy of such Information and data. The Lubbock Central Appraisal District reserves the right to make changes at any time
without notice. Original records may differ from the information on these pages. Verification of information on source documents is
recommended. By using this application, you assume all risks arising out of or associated with access to these pages, Including but
not limited to risks of damage to your computer, peripherals, software and data from any virus, software, file or other cause associated
with access to this application. The Lubbock Central Appraisal District shall not be liable for any damages whatsoever arising
out of any cause relating to use of this application, Including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, deletions, errors, or
defects in any information contained in these pages, or any failure to receive or delay In receiving information saidor Implied. 



w07

TUP4¢ 1I0 81Q 22
iwe V9ue $ 2], 535

O— Name ST CW0., tt m TN^ u

On. 27 jl 2

kft.—, 0 We n, F. 

Vor 80ft 0

Tax DW. O Gl8, SlA, N5P, WNP

FILED AND RECORDED
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS,,, 

J

Kelly Pinion County Clark
Lubbock County. TEXyS
06/ 27/ 2018 0449 PM
FEE: gT4. 00
2018024133















   
Regular City Council Meeting 8. 20.           
Meeting Date: 09/28/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution making findings that the Willow Bend
Villas Public Improvement District Petition meets the requirements of Chapter 372 of the Texas Local
Government Code; accepting the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District Petition, which
covers a portion of an area in the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by 19th
Street to the north, Kelsey Avenue to the east, and railroad tracks to the south and west; and calling for a
public hearing to receive public comment on the formation of a public improvement district in the area
depicted and described. 

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock received a petition from property owners requesting that the City of Lubbock
establish a Public Improvement District (PID) for the proposed Willow Bend Villas Development area.
The area covers approximately 63.1982 acres. PID establishment can only be initiated by a petition of
property owners meeting two tests outlined in the statute. The petition must be signed by:

(a) Owners of taxable real property representing more than 50% of the appraised value of the taxable
real property liable for assessment; and 
(b) Record owners of property liable for assessment under the PID petition who:  

Constitute more than 50% of all the record owners of property liable for assessment under the
proposal; or

1.

Own taxable real property that constitutes more than 50% of the area of all taxable real property
that is liable for assessment under the proposal. 

2.

The petition received by the City of Lubbock was signed by authorized agents of property owners of
100% of the total appraised value for the area and 100% of the total land area contained in the proposed
PID. The petition has been examined, verified, and found to meet the requirements of Section
372.005(b) of the Texas Local Government Code, and to be sufficient for consideration by the City of
Lubbock. 

The Willow Bend Villas PID is a defined assessment area providing specific types of services for a given
area. 

The purpose of the Willow Bend Villas PID will be: 
(i) acquisition, construction, or drainage facilities or improvements,  

(a) the design, construction, and maintenance of parks and green spaces, together with any ancillary
structures, features or amenities such as playgrounds, splash pads, pool(s), athletic facilities,
pavilions, community facilities, irrigation, walkways, lighting, benches, trash receptacles, and any
similar items located therein along with all necessary grading, drainage, and similar infrastructure
involved in the construction of such parks and greens; landscaping, hardscaping, and irrigation; and

 (ii) payment of costs associated with developing and financing the public improvements listed in
subdivision (i) including costs of establishing, administering, and operating the District. 



The owner of the property submitting the petition paid the application fee of $5,000, which should cover
the cost of creating the Public Improvement District, with any remaining money reimbursed to the
developer. If the cost of creating the PID exceeds $5,000, the developer will reimburse the City for the
remaining cost. 

One of the statutory requirements for establishing the PID is that the City Council hold a public hearing
regarding the advisability of creating the District. The resolution calls for the public hearing to be held
on October 26, 2021.  If the City Council approves this resolution calling the public hearing, a notice of
public hearing will be published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal, and notices will be mailed to the
property owners before the 15th day before the public hearing as required by the statute.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager 

Attachments
Resolution 
Willow Bend - Exhibit 1 
Willow Bend - Exhibit 2 




































	Agenda
	3.03.__Board Appointments 
	4.04.__Board Recognitions
	6.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.24.2021
	       ATT_8.26.2021 S UDC
	       ATT_9.7.2021 S Budget
	7.01.__BA 43
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 43
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 43 Original
	7.02.__BA 44
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 44
	7.03.__Budget Amendment #1
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 1
	       ATT_Updated Exhibit E
	7.04.__Amend to Grant Mgmt Agmt with MLI
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_MLI Grant Management Agreement
	7.05.__Cyber Insurance
	       ATT_Cyber Resolution
	       ATT_Cyber Coverage
	7.06.__ROW - Underground Utility Easement, Northridge 
	       ATT_ROW - Abandon and Close Underground Utility Easement, Lot 45-C Northridge 
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Closure of  a Underground Utility Easement - Lot 45-C Northridge 
	7.07.__ROW - Drainage Easement, Section 1, Block AK 
	       ATT_ROW - Portions of Drainage Easement, Section 1, Block AK , Viridian
	       ATT_ROW Exhibit A- Drainage Easement, Sec 1, Blk AK - Viridian
	       ATT_Map - Closure of a Portion of a Drainage Easement - Section 1 Block AK 
	7.08.__Resolution - Monitor Well Permit - Stephens and Associates Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates, Inc.
	       ATT_ Street Use License - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc.
	       ATT_Exhibit A -  Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc.
	       ATT_Letter - Monitor Well Permit, Stephens and Associates Inc. 
	7.09.__Resolution - Street Use License, 2 Monitor Well Permits- AFCEC
	       ATT_Resolution - 2 Monitor Well Permits, AFCEC
	       ATT_Street Use License_Monitor Well Permits, AFCEC
	       ATT_Exhibit A - 2 Monitor Well Permits,  AFCEC
	7.10.__Resolution - Dedication Deeds - Upland Avenue Expansion
	       ATT_Resolution - Street and Public Use Dedication Deed - Section 30 and 34 Block AK - Upland Avenue 
	       ATT_10109_Parcel_76 (L)_-_Street_and_Public_Use_Dedication_-_Section_34_Block_AK_-Upland_Ave (3)
	       ATT_Parcel 114 - Dedication Deed - Section 30 Block AK - Upland Avenue 
	       ATT_10109_Parcel_120 (L)_-_Street_and_Public_Use_Dedication_-_Section_30_Block_AK_-_Upland_Ave (1)
	       ATT_Location Map 
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.11.__Reese Water Line Improvements - Plummer Associates, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - Reese Water Line
	       ATT_Resolution 2021-R0106 - USAF Funding Agreement
	7.12.__Change Order 1 - Red River Construction, SWRP, Plant 3
	       ATT_10112_Resolution (L))
	       ATT_10112_Change_Order_2 (L)_Combined (1)
	       ATT_Change Order No. 1
	       ATT_Location Exhibit 
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.13.__Rebuild Sections of Frankford & Alcove Avenues
	       ATT_Resolution - Lone Star Dirt and Paving
	       ATT_Contract 16027 - Lone Star Dirt and Paving
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary - Contract 16027 
	7.14.__Community Health Worker Program
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	CHW Contract
	sig page

	7.15.__Prevention Grant Program
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_10004_Prevention_Grant_Contract_(L)1.1 (8)
	Prevention Grant Contract 1.1
	sig page

	7.16.__Substance Use Disorder Outpatient - Covenant
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_10082_Contract (L)_15629 (1)
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	7.17.__OfficeWise  - Cubicles for Health Dept.
	       ATT_Resolution - OfficeWise Commercial Interiors
	       ATT_PO 364432 - OfficeWise Commercial Interiors
	7.18.__Mobile Vaccination Bus 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Quote
	       ATT_Mobile_Vac. (L) Sample_Floor_Plan (1)
	7.19.__Abernathy Landfill Gate House - Johnson General Contractors
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	7.20.__Municipal Parking Garage - Parkhill Remaining CA Work
	       ATT_Resolution - Parkhill Contract 16135
	       ATT_Parkhill Professional Services Agreement 16135 - Municipal Parking Garage
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	7.21.__Officewise Furniture Replacement
	       ATT_Resolution Officewise Furniture Replacement
	       ATT_PO for Officewise Furniture Replacement
	7.22.__Used 2018 John Deere Excavator
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	7.23.__Dell Marketing LP - Voice and Data Network Software
	       ATT_Dell Marketing Resolution
	       ATT_Dell Marketing PO 33001539
	7.24.__LMSCU Interlocal Agmt - Lubbock County
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Original Agreement
	       ATT_Metro-Comparitive_ (L)Compensation_Data (3)
	       ATT_Memo
	7.25.__2022 HIgh Intensity Drug Trafficking Area HIDTA
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	7.26.__2022 Program-Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	7.27.__FY 2022 HIDTA Surge Program Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement
	7.28.__TxDOT Temporary ROW Closure - Mayor's Marathon
	       ATT_Resolution - TxDOT, Temporary Closures - Mayor's Marathon
	       ATT_Agreement
	8.01.__Civic Park Resolution 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_TIF Recommendation 
	       ATT_Committee Recommendation 
	       ATT_Civic_Park_Design (L)
	       ATT_FUMC Letter of Support
	8.02.__CH Foundation Grant Acceptance
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_CHF Grant Agreement - S
	       ATT_Award Letter 
	8.03.__Board Appointments
	       ATT_Resolution
	8.04.__ZC 0335-C
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 0335-C
	       ATT_Staff Report Zone Case 0335-C
	       ATT_Documentation Zone Case 0335-C
	Packet.pdf
	Packet.pdf
	Zone Case 0355-C - Case Information
	0355c_1locator

	Notification Map 0355-C
	Packet
	0355c_2imag
	0355c_3zoning
	0355c_4flup
	Zone Case 0355-C - Photos
	Case 0355-C Application.pdf
	Case 0355-C - Letter

	Reply 1 - Opposed


	8.05.__ZC 2690-D
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2690-D
	       ATT_Staff Report Zone Case 2690-D
	       ATT_Documentation Zone Case 2690-D
	Case Information 2690-D.pdf
	2690d_1locator
	Notification Map
	2690d_2imag
	2690d_3zoning
	2690d_4flup
	Zone Case 2690-D- Photos
	Application
	site plan 2
	letters 1&2

	8.06.__ZC 2904-H
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2904-H
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-H
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-H
	2904-H Staff Report
	2904-H Case Information
	2904h_1locator
	2904h_2imag
	2904h_3zoning
	2904h_4flup
	2904-H Photos
	2904-H Application

	8.07.__ZC 2904-I
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2904-I
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-I
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-I
	Case Information 2904-I.pdf
	2904i_1locator
	Notification map
	2904i_2imag
	2904i_3zoning
	2904i_4flup
	Application
	Site
	Letter

	8.08.__ZC 2904-J
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 2904-J
	       ATT_Staff Report 2904-J
	       ATT_Documentation 2904-J
	2904-J Staff Report
	2904-J Case Information
	2904j_1locator
	2904j_2imag
	2904j_3zoning
	2904j_4flup
	2904-J Photos
	2904-J Application
	Plot Plan
	Revised Plot Plan.pdf
	Page 1


	8.09.__ZC 3135-B
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3135-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 3135-B
	       ATT_Documentation 3135-B
	Case Information 3135-B.pdf
	3135b_1locator
	Notification Map
	3135b_2imag
	3135b_3zoning
	3135b_4flup
	Zone Case 3135-B - Photos
	Application
	Floor Plan
	3135-b in favor letter

	8.10.__ZC 3257-M
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3257-M
	       ATT_Staff Report 3257-M
	       ATT_Documentation 3257-M
	Packet Photos 3257-M.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.11.__ZC 3308-D
	       ATT_Ordinance 3308-D
	       ATT_Staff Report 3308-D
	       ATT_Documentation 3308-D
	Sheets and Views
	19096-ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION-WRS-FIGURE

	Packet Photos 3308-D.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.12.__ZC 3314-A
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3314-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3314-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3314-A
	3314-A Staff Report - Shane - with KS edits
	5.9 Case 3314-A Packet
	Case Information 3314-A
	3314a_1locator
	3314d_2imag
	3314a_3zoning
	3314a_4flup
	Photos 3414-A
	142nd and Quaker Application 3314-A
	Quaker Avenue Survey


	8.13.__ZC 3443
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3443
	       ATT_Staff Report Zone Case 3443
	       ATT_Documentation Zone Case 3443
	Packet Photos 3443.pdf
	Slide Number 1


	8.14.__ZC 3444
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3444 (L)
	       ATT_Staff Report Case 3444
	       ATT_Documentation Case 3444
	3444 Staff Report - Shane - with KS edits
	5.13 Zone Case 3444 Packet
	Case Information 3444
	3444_1locator
	3444_2imag
	3444_3zoning
	3444_4flup
	Photos 3444
	APP Escondido Crossing East Zone CHange


	8.15.__ZC 3445
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3445
	       ATT_Starr Report Case 3445
	       ATT_Documentation Case 3445
	8.16.__ZC 3446
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3446
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3446 (L)
	       ATT_Staff Report 3446
	       ATT_Documentation 3446
	Case Information 3446.pdf
	3446_1locator
	Notification map
	3446_2imag
	3446_3zoning
	3446_4flup
	Zone Case 3446 - Photos
	site
	Application
	letter in favor
	3446 letter in opposition

	8.17.__ZC 3447
	       ATT_Ordinance Zone Case 3447
	       ATT_Staff Report 3447
	       ATT_Documentation 3447
	Case Information 3447
	3447_1locator
	3447_2imag
	3447_3zoning
	3447_4flup
	Photos 3447
	App and docs 3447

	8.18.__Chapter 40 Ordinance Amendment - Office/Warehouse
	       ATT_Ordinance Chapter 40 Amendment
	8.19.__Annexation at 34th and Upland - Betenbough
	       ATT_Ordinance - 34th and Upland Annexation
	       ATT_Annexation Map
	       ATT_212 Agreement
	       ATT_Service Plan
	8.20.__Willow Bend Villas PID Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Willow Bend - Exhibit 1
	       ATT_Willow Bend - Exhibit 2

